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GENERAL LINDSAY: For  a l o n g  time, a commander 's  most impor- 

t a n t  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ,  v e r y  s e r i o u s l y  I b e l i e v e ,  i f  n o t  t h e  

most i m p o r t a n t ,  o n e  o f  a commander's most i m p o r t a n t  respon-  

s i b i l i t i e s  is t h e  p r o f e s s i o  a1 development  o f  s u b o r d i n a t e s .  7 
I n  keep ing  w i t h  t h a t  be l i e f - -which  I s i n c e r e l y  b e l i e v e - - I  

t o l d  t h e  Ch ie f  when we set up t h i s  Command t h a t  o n e  of t h e  

t h i n g s  we would r e a l l y  have t o  work  on was to make s u r e  we 

have a f i r s t - c l a s s  O f f i c e r  P r o f e s s i o n a l  Development Program 

f o r  

And we worked on  t h a t .  AS a l l  o f  you know who a t t e n d e d  

many of t h e  s e s s i o n s  w e  have  had i n  t h e  pas t ,  f o r  t h e  most 

p a r t ,  it h a s  had some real  s u c c e s s .  Now w e  have had a  

c o u p l e  t h a t  p r o b a b l y  c o u l d  have been  done  a l i t t l e  b e t t e r .  

Bu t ,  I w i l l  t e l l  you I t h i n k  t o d a y  w e  have p r o b a b l y  p u t  

toge the r - John  P a r t i n ,  where are you,  John--has p u t  

t o g e t h e r  p r o b a b l y  t h e  best I t h i n k  t h a t  I have  s e e n  y e t .  I 

know most of t h e s e  guys .  ~ o s t  o f  you know G e n e r a l  Manor, 

G e n e r a l  B lackburn ,  some o f  you may know C o l o n e l  A l l i s o n  and 
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' . .  Colone l  Dut ton .  I p e r s o n a l l y  know t h e  gen t l eman  s i t t i n g  

o v e r  h e r e  v e r y  l o n e l y ,  C o l o n e l  Bud Sydnor.  I have  t h o u g h t  

many times--and I d o n ' t  mean to  e m b a r r a s s  you w i t h  t h i s ,  

Bud--but I t h o u g h t  many times t h a t  if t h e  r e v i t a l i z a t i o n  o f  

SOF had o c c u r r e d  a b o u t  1 5  y e a r s  a g o ,  Bud Sydnor would be 

s i t t i n g  up h e r e  d o i n g  t h e  j o b  I am d o i n g  r i g h t  now because  

h e  is j u s t  a m a g n i f i c e n t  s o l d i e r .  SO I am r e a l l y  l o o k i n g  

fo rward  to  t h e  t h i n g s  he  and t h e  r e s t  o f  t h e  fo lks - -Genera l  

B lackburn ,  G e n e r a l  Manor--have g o t  to t e l l  u s  a b o u t  t h e  

time o f  t h e  Son Tay Raid.  It is unique .  It  i n v o l v e d  a l l  

t h e  S e r v i c e s .  I t  involved--or  i n  o t h e r  words,  i t  was 

t o t a l l y  . But ,  e q u a l l y  i m p o r t a n t ,  a s  many o f  

you have a l r e a d y  d i s c o v e r e d  as  w e  p u t  t h i s  Command 

t o g e t h e r  , . T h i s  is 

e s p e c i a l l y  i m p o r t a n t  t o  me b e c a u s e  w e  are  s t i l l  t r y i n g  to  

sort  o u t  some o f  t h e  t u r f  i s s u e s  t h a t  come w i t h  c o n d u c t i n g  

s u r g e r y - - d i r e c t  a c t i o n s ,  I c a l l  i t - - i n  t h e  areas t h a t  

be long  to  a u n i f i e d  commander. I t h i n k  w e  have made a  l o t  

o f  p r o g r e s s ,  b u t  h o p e f u l l y  w e  c a n  l e a r n  a few t h i n g s  from 

t h e s e  gen t l emen  t o d a y  w i t h  what t h e y  have  done  i n  t h e  

p a s t .  Now I am g o i n g  t o  t u r n  it o v e r  to o u r  modera to r .  

COLONEL LONG: I am C o l o n e l  Wayne Long o u t  o f  J3-S. I w i l l  

i n t r o d u c e  o u r  f i r s t  f o u r  s p e a k e r s  who p l a y e d  key roles i n  

t h e  p l a n n i n g  and c o n d u c t  o f  t h e  Raid. Then w e  w i l l  t a k e  a  

s h o r t  b r e a k  and I w i l l  i n t r o d u c e  o u r  f i f t h  s p e a k e r  who w i l l  

t a l k  to  u s  a b o u t  t h e  Raid from a POW p e r s p e c t i v e ,  s i n c e  he 
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was a POW in Son Tay, itself, Our first speaker will be 

, who has had as much or mote special 
operations experience as any American today. 

s. 

itary Academy; was assigned to Allied 

Northern Forces, Europe; served as Senior Advisor to the 

Vietnamese Commanding General, 5th Military Region, Mekong 

Delta; and assumed command of the 77th Special Forces Group. 

In the last assignment, General Blackburn established the 

White Star training program for the Laotian Army. In the 

early 1960s, he was instrumental in establishing the Limited 

Warfare Laboratory. From 1964 to 1965, he was ~irector of 

Special Operations for the DCSOpS of the Army, commanded MACV 

SOG from 1965 to May 1966. During the Son Tay Raid, General 

Blackburn served as a special assistant for counterinsurgency 

and special actions--which many of you know as SACSA-and he 

retired in June of 1971. 

Our second speaker will be Lieutenant General LeRoy J. 

Manor. Following graduation from Aviation Cadet Training in 

1943, General Manor flew 72 combat missions in Europe. From 

1947 to 1953, he served as instructor pilot at the various 

CONUS air bases and was then assigned to 6th Allied Tactical 

Air Force in Turkey. After graduation from Armed Forces Staff 

College and various command assignments, General Manor was 

assigned to the Deputy Chief of Staff, Plans and Operations, 

at Headquarters, United States Air Force, In 1968 he assumed 



command of the 37th Tactical Fighter Wing in the Republic of 

Vietnam.where he flew 275 combat missions. In February 1970, 

he became Commander of the United States Air Force Special 

Operations Force and was selected as Commander of the Joint 

Contingency Task Group. He served as 13th Air Force Commander 

and then Chief of Staff, United States'pacific Command. 

Our third speaker will be Colonel John B. Allison. In 1951 

Colonel Allison was graduated from pilot training and one year 

later, he completed helicopter pilot training. In the 1950s 

and 1960s, he was assigned to various air rescue units in the 

United States and overseas. These included tours in Morocco, 

Germany, and here at MacDill Air Force Base. In 1967 Colonel 

Allison graduated from the HH-53 program-at Eglin Air Force 

Base, and that same year he was assigned to fly HH-53s at Udorn 

Royal '~hai Air Force Base. He returned to the United States in 

1968. He was assigned to the Aerospace Rescue and Recovery 

Training Center, Eglin Air Force Base. He was then selected as 

one of the HH-53 pilots for the Son Tay Raid. Colonel Allison 

retired from military service as Director of Safety at Head- 

quarters, Aerospace Rescue and Recovery Service, Scott Air 

Force in 1978. 

Our fourth speaker from the operational perspective will be 

Colonel Elliott P. (Bud) Sydnor, Jr. From 1945 to 1948, Colonel 

Sydnor served as a torpedoman aboard the USS RATON. In 1952 he 

was graduated from Western Kentucky university as a distinguished 

military graduate. During the 1950s Colonel Sydnor served in the 

11th Airborne Division, the 2d ~nfantry ~ivision, the 25th 
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Infantry Division, and as the first exchange officer with the 

British 22d Special  i it Service. He served as Battalion 

Commander of the 1st Battalion of the 327th ~irborne Infantry 

Regiment of the lOlst ~irborne Division from 1967 to 1968. 

After graduating from the United States Army War College in 

1970, Colonel Sydnor returned to the Infantry School as a 

faculty member. /while at Benning, he was, selected to be the 
- 

Ground Force Commander for the Son Tay Raid. Until his 

retirement in 1981, he served as Commander of the 1st special 

Forces Group on the Army Staff and as Director of the Ranger 

Department, and finally, as Director of Plans and Training at 

the Infantry School, itself. 

please join me in welcoming our first four speakers. 

General Blackburn, it is all yours, sir. 



GENERAL BLACKBURN: Thank you v e r y  much. It is a p l e a s u r e  t o  be  

h e r e .  Thank you ,  G e n e r a l  L i n d s a y ,  f o r  h a v i n g  u s  down. To c o v e r  

t h i s  r a i d ,  I am s u r e  t h a t  some o f  t h e  t h i n g s  w e  may l e a v e  o u t ,  

so t h a t  i n  t h e  q u e s t i o n  and  answer  p e r i o d  I hope  you g e t  your  

d a r t s  s h a r p .  Our s k i n  is t h i c k  so w e  d o n ' t  mind you h a v i n g  a t  

us .  A c o u p l e  o f  r e m a r k s  b e f o r e  I g e t  i n t o  t h e  t e x t .  One o f  t h e  

t h i n g s  I h a v e  f e l t  v e r y  s t r o n g l y  a b o u t  s i n c e  t h e  d a y s  t h a t  I was 

SACSA u p  to  t h e  p r e s e n t  time, and  t h a t  is t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  I 

h e l d  on  t h e  J o i n t  S t a f f .  I h a v e  f e l t  o v e r  t h e  y e a r s  t h a t  t h e  

p o s i t i o n  on  t h e  J o i n t  S t a f f  f o r  S p e c i a l  o p e r a t i o n s  s h o u l d  e q u a l  

t h e  job t h a t  t h a t  5 3  h a s  down t h e r e .  ~t s h o u l d  be on  e q u a l  

b a s i s .  N o w  I was n o t  o n  t h a t  b a s i s  a s  t h e  SACSA. Bu t ,  when t h e  

SACSA was se t  up d u r i n g  t h e  Kennedy y e a r s ,  i t  was g i v e n  t h e  

a u t h o r i t y  t o  r u n  s p e c i a l  o p e r a t i o n s  and  was g i v e n  t h e  a u t h o r i t y  

to  g o  i n t o  t h e  Chairman a n y t i m e  he f e l t  it n e c e s s a r y  to  d i s c u s s  

t h e s e  o p e r a t i o n s .  

When I became SACSA i n  1969 ,  some o f  t h o s e  p r e r o g a t i v e s  had 

been d i m i n i s h e d .  As G e n e r a l  Whee le r ,  who was t h e n  Chairman of 

t h e  ~ o i n t  C h i e f s  o f  S t a f f  s a id ,  "Anytime you have  p r o b l e m s  i n  

t h i s  area t h a t  you wan t  to  d i s c u s s ,  you c a n  come d i r e c t l y  t o  

me." T h a t  was o n e  wha le  o f  a b i g  h e l p  when we s tar ted r u n n i n g  

t h e s e  o p e r a t i o n s .  

Now,  many o f  you read t h e  r a i d - - t h e r e  is a s e c o n d  v e r s i o n  

o f  t h e  r a i d  t h a t  h a s  come out--by and  l a r g e ,  t h a t  r a i d  is v e r y  

a c c u r a t e .  Ben Schemmer, who was t h e  a u t h o r ,  had to do c e r t a i n  

t h i n g s  f o r  s e c u r i t y  r e a s o n s .  T h e r e f o r e ,  t h e r e  a re  a few t h i n g s  



f i c t i o n a l  items i n  t h a t  book. What I am go ing  t a l k  a b o u t  t h i s  

a f t e rnoon- - I  k e p t  a l o g  day-by-day o f  e v e r y  a c t i o n  t h a t  w e  

t o o k .  I k e p t  t h a t  l o g  and so my remarks  where t h e y  c o n f l i c t  

w i t h  t h e  book, t h e y  do c o i n c i d e  w i t h  this Ix>~-,,t&&, I n h ~ e , .  The 

Son Tay o p e r a t i o n  was i n i t i a t e d  on t h e  25 th  o f  May, 1970, w i t h  a 

b r i e f i n g  to  m e  by t h e  t h e n  Deputy DCSOPS f o r  P l a n s  and P o l i c y ,  

A i r  F o r c e ,  G e n e r a l  J i m  Al len--Br igadier  Genera l  J i m  A l l e n  and a 

b r i e f i n g  team o u t  of a n  i n t e l l i g e n c e  u n i t  t h a t  was s t a t i o n e d  a t  

F o r t  B e l v o i r .  The o p e r a t i o n  t e r m i n a t e d  when t h e  J o i n t  Combined 

Task Force  c l o s e d  i n t o  Udorn, T h a i l a n d ,  Air Force  Base a t  0428 

on t h e  2 1 s t  o f  November 1970. 

But n o t - - t h a t  d i d  n o t  t e r m i n a t e  t h e  r e s i d u a l  po l i t i ca l  flak 

and v o l c a n i c  £ a l l - o u t  t h a t  f e l l  on our  heads  a f t e r  w e  d i d  n o t  

g e t  t h e  p r i s o n e r s .  NOW, I a g r e e  w h o l e h e a r t e d l y  t h a t  t h e  

cri t icism t h a t  h a s  been l e v e l e d  t h a t  it t a k e s  s i x  months to d o  

t h i s  was a b s o l u t e l y  u n c a l l e d  f o r .  I t  d i d  n o t  have to  happen. 

But I w i l l  g i v e  you some of t h e  r e a s o n s  a s  w e  went a long  why it 

d i d  happen. 

- I In s h o r t ,  t h e  s t r a t e g y  was t h i s ,  t h a t  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  was to  

prov ide  f o r  a raid i n t o  North Vietnam by Army S p e c i a l  F o r c e s  

p e r s o n n e l ,  a s s a u l t i n g  t h e  Son Tay POW camp s u p p o r t e d  by Air 

Force  HH-53 h e l i c o p t e r s  w i t h  a i r  c o v e r  and s u p p o r t , , a n d  a s s i s t e d  

by Navy a i r  d i v e r s i o n .  The J o i n t  Contingency T a s k  Force  t h a t  

G e n e r a l  Manor w i l l  t a l k  a b o u t  more, was to l a u n c h  from a i r  b a s e s  

i n  T h a i l a n d ,  r e f u e l e d  by t h e  A i r  Force  t a n k e r s  o v e r  t h e  P l a i n e s  

d e s  J a r s  i n  Laos,  and t h e n  descend i n t o  t h e  Son Tay a r e a  where 
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t h e  camp was l o c a t e d ,  which was a b o u t  20 miles n o r t h  o f  ~ a n o i .  

From touchdown t o  t a k e o f f  f rom t h a t  Son Tay camp would take 

30 minu tes .  We used  C-130s, as  G e n e r a l  Manor w i l l  t a l k ,  f o r  

n a v i g a t i o n  t i e d  i n t o  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s .   ow t h e  e s s e n t i a l  i n g r e -  

d i e n t s  o f  t h i s  o p e r a t i o n  was t o  take f u l l  a d v a n t a g e  o f  l e t h a r g y ,  

shock a c t i o n ,  and s u r p r i s e ;  i t  was to  a v o i d  r a d a r  d e t e c t i o n  and 

a l e r t i n g  t h e  n o r t h e a s t  r a d a r  warning n e t - - i t  was on  t h e  i s l a n d  

of Hainan,  Hainan I s l a n d ;  and was t h e  e s t a b l i s h m e n t  of opera-  

t i o n a l  windows based  on wea the r  p r o j e c t i o n s  and t h e  moon p h a s e ;  

and p e r f e c t  i n t e l l i g e n c e .  I w i l l  t o u c h  on  t h a t  a b i t  l a t e r  on .  

N o w  l e t  me d i g r e s s  a l i t t l e  b i t  and t o u c h  on  c e r t a i n  p o l i c y  

and p o l i t i c a l  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s  t h a t  had a n  impact o n  t h e  ope ra -  

t i o n .  I knew from t h e  s t a r t  t h a t  we were g o i n g  to  be s i n g i n g  to  

a r e l u c t a n t  c h o i r .  My i n h i b i t i o n s  stemmed from my d a y s  a s  Ch ie f  

SOG i n  Vietnam. I t h e n  wanted to  d e m o n s t t x t e ,  w h i l e  Ch ie f  SOG, 

t h a t  t h e  u .S .  coald-apsq,at;e e f f e c t i v e  e ~ g r n - - a s  

e f f e c t i v e l y  as  t h e  Vietnamese c o u l d  i n  D a  Nang, Nha Trang,  and 

o t h e r  c i t i e s  i n  Sou th  Vietnam. ~ u t  t h e r e  was no  way. Repeated  

messages  were s e n t  from SOG t o  Washington a s k i n g  for  p r e r o g a t i v e  

to  d e m o n s t r a t e  t h i s  c a p a b i l i t y .  Bu t ,  p r e s i d e n t + - J t p h n g o n ,  a t  t h e  

t i m e ,  was n Q t  i n t e r e s t e d  F h i n  s e i z i n g  Nor th  v i e t n a m e s e  t e r r i t o r y  

and he  would n o t  g o  a l o n g  w i t h  it. There  was a n  off-and-on 

p o l i c y  a t  t h e  time a b o u t  bombing i n  t h e  n o r t h ,  and t h e y  *d.-nut 

want to rock t h e  b o a t  by t h e s e  ground o p e r a t i o n s .  Later o n ,  

Niron ,  a f t e r  t h e  Cambodian i n c u r s i o n ,  and r e c e i v i n g  t h e  c r i t i -  

cism he  d i d  f o r  t h a t ,  he  was n o t  a b o u t  to  t o u c h  moving i n t o  



Nor th  Vietnam. N & i o n s  were g o i n g  o n  in,, a t  t h e  time 

for some sor t  o f  p e a c e  . s e t t l e m e n t .   he u.S. C o n g r e s s  and  t h e  

U.S. p u b l i c  were i n  a  v e r y  unhappy mood o v e r  what  was happen ing  

i n  Vietnam a t  t h e  time. It  was w i t h  a t h o r o u g h  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  and 

'2- 
a p p r e c i a t i o n  o f  t h i s  o b s t a c l e  c o u r s e  t h a t  we took on  and  p u r s u e d  

an i n i t i a t i v e  t o  g o  a f t e r  t h e  p r i s o n e r s  i n  Nor th  Vietnam--in Son 

~ a y  . 
On t h e  2 5 t h  o f  May 1970,  when G e n e r a l  A l l e n ,  w i t h  a team from 

F o r t  B e l v o i r ,  or t h i s  i n t e l l i g e n c e  u n i t  a t  F o r t  ~ e l v o i r ,  came 

down to  see m e ,  he  p o i n t e d  o u t  t h a t  t h e y  had d e f i n i t e l y  p o i n t e d  

o u t  25 American POW--I mean 5, e x c u s e  me, 5 American POWs t h a t  

were w o o d c u t t e r s  o n  Mount Ba v i e   his mounta in  was a b o u t  1 2  

miles from Son Tay. And t h a t  t h e y  wanted--the A i r  F o r c e  would 

l i k e  to r u n  a SAR m i s s i o n  t o  r e s c u e  t h o s e  a i rmen--or  p r i s o n e r s -  

We d i s c u s s e d  it a t  g r e a t  l e n g t h .  The A i r  F o r c e  a lso had i n f o r -  

m a t i o n  a t  t h e  time t h a t  t h e s e  p e o p l e  were coming o u t  o f  Son Tay 

or a n o t h e r  p r i s o n e r  o f  war camp--POW camp--Ap Lo. These two POW 

camps were away from i n h a b i t e d  areas and  were toward t h e  L a o t i a n  

b o r d e r .  A f t e r  d i s c u s s i o n  and  t a l k i n g  a t  g r e a t  1- h s  a b o u t  

t h i s ,  i t  was my f e e l i n g ,  "Why g o  a f t e r  t h e  5 when w e  c o u l  \ a f t e r  and l i b e r a t e  t h o s e  t w o  camps? L e t ' s  g o  a f t e r  A p  Lo and  

l e t ' s  g o  a f t e r  Son Tay." T h e r e  was a  r e l u c t a n t  a g r e e m e n t ,  a g a i n ,  

b e c a u s e  it  was f e l t  t h e  p l a n n i n g  would t a k e  too much time. But  

it was f i n a l l y - - e v e r y b o d y  sa id ,  n y e s ,  l e t ' s  do it i f  we c a n  g e t  

t h e  a p p r o v a l  ." 
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So,  t h a t  a f t e r n o o n  r i g h t  a f t e r  t h e  meet ing  broke  up, I went 

i n  to  see G e n e r a l  Wheeler and l a i d  t h e  p r o p o s i t i o n  b e f o r e  him. I 

t o l d  him a b o u t  t h e  b r i e f i n g  and t h a t  I was on t h e  f e a s i b i l i t y  for  

t h i s  o p e r a t i o n ,  because  t h i s  was n o t  i n  t h a t  much d e p t h ;  and t w o ,  

t o  s e t  up a j o i n t  t a s k  f o r c e  a s  r a p i d l y  a s  p o s s i b l e  to  c a r r y  t h i s  

o p e r a t i o n  o u t .  Wheeler gave  h i s  g e n e r a l  approving o f  t h i s  t h i n g  

b u t  he s a i d  he f e l t  t h a t  w e  shou ld  t a k e  t h i s  t h i n g  up w i t h  t h e  

JCS s o o n e s t .  A f t e r  l e a v i n g  Wheeler ,  because  w e  had now t o  

P r e p a r e  a b r i e f i n g  f o r  t h e  J C S ,  I went to see Genera l  t r 

who was DIA a t  t h e  time, and t o l d  him of t h e  requ i rement  we had 

to  p r e p a r e  t h e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  f o r  such  a b r i e f i n g  to  t h e  JCS. He 

s a i d  a t  t h a t  time t h e  D I A  would h a n d l e  a l l  t h e  i n t e l l i g e n c e ,  do  

a l l  t h e  c o o r d i n a t i o n  t h a t  was n e c e s s a r y .  So he took o v e r  t h e  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  from t h e  A i r  Force--he d i d  t h e  c o o r d i n a t i o n  w i t h  

them, b u t  he,, r a n  t,he,,+abow. S e v e r a l  d a y s  l a t e r ,  on  t h e  5 t h  af  * .  

June, w e  b r i e f e d  t h e  JCS. On 8 J u n e ,  w e  b r i e f e d  t h e  SECDEF. The 

3CS wanted more d e t a i l  b e f o r e  t h e y  would make a d e t e r m i n a t i o n  of 

whether w e  s h o u l d  g o  on w i t h  t h i s  t h i n g  or b e f o r e  t h e y  would 

a g r e e  to  a j o i n t  t a s k  f o r c e  to  be s e t  up t o  p l a n  t h i s  o p e r a t i o n .  

T h i s  was a g r e e d  a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  we would g i v e  such  a b r i e f i n g  

w i t h i n  t h e  month. I s e t  up  a j o i n t  p l a n n i n g  g r o u p  o v e r  i n  

A r l i n g t o n  Hall S t a t i o n  t h a t  was under t h e  a u s p i c e s  o f  D I A ,  drew 

p e o p l e  from t h e  Army, Navy, A i r  F o r c e ,  and CIA;  and f o r  t h e  n e x t  

month we began d e s i g n i n g  a p l a n  f o r  t h i s  o p e r a t i o n .  Now keep i n  

mind t h i s .  Time--time was n o t  of t h e  essenca. W e  j u s t  d i d n ' t  

have t o  g e t  it o u t  tomorrow. More i m p o r t a n t  were t h e  c o n c e r n s  



be ing  e x p r e s s e d  o f  n o t  p u t t i n g  more p e o p l e  i n t o  t h a t  p r i s o n e r  of 

war camp up t h e r e .  Second ly ,  on  t h e  f a i l u r e  to d o  t h i s ,  what  was 

g o i n g  to  happen t o  t h e  p r i s o n e r s  t h a t  were i n  t h e  camp. And 

t h e r e  was j u s t  a myriad o f  q u e s t i o n s  b e i n g  a sked  t h a t  made you 

. sit back and r e a l i z e  why powers  t h a t  be  wanted to  take more t i m e  

t o  have  a l l  o f  t h i s  s p e l l e d  o u t  i n  g r e a t  d e t a i l .  

N o w ,  on t h e  3 1 s t  o f  J u l y - - t h i s  is t h e  d a t e  t h e  JCS  had g i v e n  

us  t o  come up w i t h  more d e t a i l e d  study--we g a v e  a b r i e f i n g  now to  

t h e  JCS. And t h e y  g a v e  t h e  go-ahead f o r  t h e  t r a i n i n g  and t h e  

o r g a n i z a t i o n  o f  a j o i n t  t a s k  f o r c e .  A t  t h a t  time, t h e  t a r g e t  

window f o r  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  which was weather -dependent ,  was t h e  

2 1 s t  t o  t h e  2 4 t h  o f  September.  NOW, mind you,  t h e  t a s k  f o r c e  had 

n o t  been s e t  up. T h i s  was t h e  3 1 s t  of J u l y .  And t h e  wea the r  

b e i n g  what i t  is-- many o f  you i n  ~ i e t n a m  know t h o s e  typhoons  a t  

t h a t  time o f  y e a r  a r e  v e r y  p r e v a l e n t ,  so t h e  a i r - - t h e  wea the r  

P e o p l e  s a i d  t h i s  would be t h e  window, 21-24 September.  On August 

t h e  8 t h ,  we n o t i f i e d  c e r t a i n  u n i f i e d  and s p e c i f i e d  commands t h a t  

a J o i n t  Cont ingency Task F o r c e  was e s t a b l i s h e d  f o r  O p e r a t i o n  

I v o r y  Coast. Then B r i g a d i e r  G e n e r a l  -Roy Manor was t h e  T a s k  

F o r c e  Commander-designated t h e  T a s k  Force Commander. A f e l l o w  

many o f  you remember, C o l o n e l  " ~ u l l "  Simons was d e s i g n a t e d  t h e  

Ground F o r c e  Commander. And t h e  t r a i n i n g  was t o  be  conduc ted  a t  

H u r l b u r t .  And t h e  SACSA would be  r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  p l a n n i n g  

and c o o r d i n a t i n g  s t a f f  and was t o  be  e s t a b l i s h e d  i n  t h e  Pen tagon ,  

and t h e y  would r u n  i n t e r f e r e n c e  f o r  t h i s  t a s k  f o r c e  t h a t  was down 

a t  H u r l b u r t .  



. - 
' * *  

N o w ,  b e f o r e  t h a t  b r i e f i n g  on  t h e  3 1 s t  o f  J u l y  when it looked  

a s  though e v e r y o n e  was g o i n g  to  g o  a l o n g  w i t h  u s ,  I had gone  down 

t o  Bragg and t a l k e d  to  B u l l '  Simons, and I had t a l k e d  to  Roy Manor 

to see where t h e  t r a i n i n g - - o r  were t h e y  a v a i l a b l e  f o r  r u n n i n g  

t h i s  o p e r a t i o n  and where t h i s  t r a i n i n g  s h o u l d  be conduc ted  and So 

f o r t h .  Because  G e n e r a l  Daugher ty ,  t h e  DCSOPS o f  t h e  Ai r  F o r c e ,  

and G e n e r a l  D i c k  S t i l w e l l ,  DCSOPS of t h e  Army, a g r e e d  where t h e  

t r a i n i n g  would b e  c o n d u c t e d ,  if i t  was ~ g l i n  it was g o i n g  to  be 

Air  F o r c e ,  i f  it was Bragg i t  'was g o i n g  to  be  t h e  Army. So I was 

d e n i e d  t h e  u s e  of t h i s  l o v e l y  b u i l d i n g  down a t  F o r t  Bragg which 

was d e s i g n e d  f o r  JUWTF t r a i n i n g ,  b e c a u s e  t h e y  had t h e  l o g i s t i c s  

i n  t h e r e  and some a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  u n i t s  and t h e y  j u s t  c o u l d n q  t 

spare t h i s  and t h e y  were g o i n g  to  p u t  u s  o u t  a t  Camp Mackal l ,  s o  

it looked  l i k e  E g l i n  would be  t h e  b e s t  place. So, a c c o r d i n g  to  

f i n d i n g s  and a s  a r e s u l t  o f  t h i s  t r i p ,  t h e  JCS and everybody 

conce rned  a g r e e d  t h a t  G e n e r a l  Manor would b e  t h e  T a s k  F o r c e  

Commander-not s e l l i n g  you s h o r t ,  t h e r e ,  a t  a l l .  

Now t h i s  c o o r d i n a t i n g  s t a f f ,  or t h i s  s t a f f  t h a t  we had s e t  up 

i n  t h e  Pentagon under  t h e  SACSA--there were a b o u t  38 members of 

t h a t  s t a f f  r i g h t  down t h e  h a l l  f rom t h e  SACSA-was made up o f  

SACSA p e r s o n n e l ,  A i r  F o r c e ,  Navy, Army--from t h e  DCSOPS o f  t h e  

Army--CIA, NSA. T h i s  a r r a n g e m e n t  worked v e r y ,  v e r y  w e l l ,  indeed .  

Manor and t h e  J o i n t  T a s k  F o r c e  d id  t h e  d e t a i l  p l a n n i n g ,  r a n  t h e  

r e h e a r s a l s  and what-have-you down a t  H u r l b u r t .  The SACSA g r o u p  

r a n  i n t e r f e r e n c e  f o r  them i n  Washington,  and  c o o r d i n a t e d  t h i n g s  

t h a t  took place w i t h i n  t h e  Washington area. 



For example ,  i n t e l l i g e n c e .  NOW t h i s  was f u n d a m e n t a l ,  and  t h e  

O p e r a t i o n a l  i n t e l l i g e n c e  (1'11 g e t  i n t o  why t h e y  were n o t  t h e r e  i n  

a  m i n u t e  b u t  r i g h t  now l e t  me s t i c k  w i t h  t h i s ) ,  

. I f  anybody c a n  p i c k  o u t  a n y  f l a w s  

i n  t h a t - - i n  g e t t i n g  u s  i n  t h e r e  and  g e t t i n g  u s  ou t - - I  would l i k e  t o  

know what i t  was. NOW t h i s  had to  come f rom t h e  h i g h e s t  l e v e l .  

When Admira l  [Noe l ]  G a y l e r  o f  t h e  Navy, who was r u n n i n g  NSA a t  t h e  

t i m e ,  was b r i e f e d  on t h i s  o p e r a t i o n  and Mr. [ R i c h a r d  M . ]  H e l m s  of 

t h e  C I A  and  o f  c o u r s e ,  G e n e r a l  [ ~ o n a l d  V. ]  B e n n e t t  o f  t h e  D I A ,  t h e y  

bough t  t h i s  100  p e r c e n t .  And t h e y  d e s i g n a t e d  t o p  p e o p l e  o u t  of 

t h e i r  h e a d q u a r t e r s  t h a t  would be  i n  t h a t  p l a n n i n g  g r o u p  t h a t  I had 

set  up i n  t h e  Pen tagon .  I had a b o u t  t h e  number 3 guy o u t  of NSA. 

How e f f e c t i v e  were t h e s e  g u y s ,  f o r  example? Well, o n e  d a y  w e  

g o t  from Manor, "Hey, d o  you r e a l i z e  t h a t  t o  f l y  f fom t h e  P l a i n e s  

d e s  Jar  down i n t o  Son Tay, t h e r e  a r e  two r a d a r s ?  I f  we f l y  be tween  

t h o s e  two r a d a r s ,  we are g o i n g  to  make t h a t  n o r t h e a s t  warn ing  s y s -  

tem g o  h o t .  What d o  we do?" I g o t  a f e l l o w  named [ M i l t ]  Z a s l o v  

from NSA. I s a i d ,  " Z a s l o v ,  w e  have  g o t  a problem.  How do we 

h a n d l e  t h i s  t h i n g . "  H e  s a i d ,  "YOU know, t h e  o n l y  p e r s o n  who r e a l l y  

knows t h e  d e t a i l  a b o u t  t h i s  is t h e  guy  s i t t i n g  o n  Monkey Mountain." 

I s a i d ,  " G e t  him." And t h i s  guy  was i n  t h e  o f f i c e  i n  less t h a n  a 

week and  t h e y  were able to s o l v e  t h e  problem.  T h e r e  is a 5-minute 

g a p  i n  t h e  way t h e s e  t h i n g s  are rotated a n d  we u s e d  t h a t  5 - ~ i n u t e  

9ap and  t h e y  f l e w  t h r o u g h  it u n d e t e c t e d .  But t h a t  is what  I am 

t a l k i n g  a b o u t  i n  r e s p o n s i v e n e s s .  ~ n y t i m e  t h a t  you tasked- -or  t h e s e  

p e o p l e  were t a s k e d ,  t h e y  would come up  w i t h  t h e  answer .  Now w e  



prov ided  many o f  t h e  answers  from o u r  h e a d q u a r t e r s  and informa- 

t i o n  to  Roy, b u t  h i s  p e o p l e ,  i n  runn ing  t h e  e x e r c i s e s  and t h e  

r e h e a r s a l s ,  t h e y  were runn ing  i n t o  problems t h a t  needed answers  

from t h e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  side. And t h e y  would f u n n e l  thew t o  u s .  

I t  wasn ' t  good enough. . . 

- - - - -  END OF TAPE 1 - - - - 

from t h a t  l e v e l  t o  t h e  or to  t h e  Air  Force  o r  

someone--you had to  g e t  to  t h e  t o p  to  g e t  t h i s  k ind  o f  r e a c t i o n .  

I am f i r m l y  convinced t h a t  t h a t ' s  t h e  way w e  had to  d o  i t .  

Secondly ,  c o u n t e r i n t e l l i g e n c e .  A s  t h i s  t h i n g  was c o n t i n u i n g  

to run  and c o n t i n u i n g  t o  expand,  i t  was my g r e a t  concern  was t h a t  

o f  l e a k s .  I c e r t a i n l y  d i d  n o t  want to l a n d  up t h e r e  and have  a 

welcoming p a r t y .  So we set  up t h e  Washington l e v e l  and ex tended  

on down to  h i s  l e v e l ,  a  v e r y  e l a b o r a t e  c o u n t e r i n t e l l i g e n c e  sys tem 

t h a t  c e r t a i n l y  d i d  p rove  its v a l u e .  And s i n c e  t h i s  is so r t  o f  

c l a s s i f i e d ,  y e s ,  everybody--there was a n  a c c e s s  list k e p t  on  

everybody t h a t  knew a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  t h i s .  And maybe t h i s  was a  

l o t  o f  w o r k  t h a t  was u n n e c e s s a r y ,  b u t  e v e r y  one o f  t h o s e  p e o p l e ' s  

phones were tapped  f o r  t h e  d u r a t i o n .  We had a f e l l o w  named-we 

c a l l e d  him   ax Newmano-that was t h e  c o u n t e r  i n t e l l i g e n c e  guy t h a t  

d i d  t h e  job. But to i n d i c a t e  how a few t h i n g s  t h a t  t h e  Washing- 

t o n  l e v e l  p l a n n i n g  and c o o r d i n a t i o n  g r o u p  s t a f f  had t o  d e a l  w i t h ,  

I ' l l  g i v e  it to  you. We i d e n t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e r e  was a  Russ ian  

s a t e l l i t e  t h a t  f l e w  o v e r  E g l i n  on s c h e d u l e .  We i d e n t i f i e d  t h a t  



t h e r e  was a R u s s i a n  t r a w l e r  s i t t i n g  r i g h t  o u t s i d e  ~ u r l b u r t .  T h i s  

meant t h a t  we had t o  b e . v e r y  c a r e f u l  i n  t h e s e  e x e r c i s e s - t h e  

p i l o t s  f l y i G  t h e  p l a n e s  and a l l  t h e  r e h e a r s a l s  i n  what we were 

d o i n g .  ~ l s o ,  it meant t h a t  t h e  mockup o f  t h a t  Son Tay p r i s o n  

compound had to be t o r n  down and reassembled  so t h a t  t h a t  sa tel-  

l i t e  c o u l d n ' t  p i c k  it up. T h i s  was r e v e a l e d  from t h e  Washington 

l e v e l  i n t e l l i g e n c e .  We had t h e  a u t h o r i t y  to t a s k  t h e  SR-71s t h a t  

were s t a t ioned- -based  a t  Kadena--Far E a s t ,  and t h e  ~ u f f a l o  Hunter  

d r o n e s  t h a t  SAC had c o n t r o l  o f - - r i g h t  d i r e c t l y  from t h a t  SAC t o  

s t a f f ,  a s s i g n  them t h e  m i s s i o n s ,  and d i c t a t e  what t h e y  d i d .  And 

t h e y  were d e d i c a t e d  to u s  f o r  t h i s  pu rpose .  Found o u t  t h a t  a 

c e r t a i n  agency was f i d d l i n g  around i n  North Vietnam, And o n e  o f  

t h e  t h i n g s  I c e r t a i n l y  d i d  n o t  want to d o  was to  s t i r  up t h e  

henyard  w i t h  a snake. A s  1 s a y ,  we were depending  on l e t h a r g y ,  

s u r p r i s e ,  shock  a c t i o n .  But  a g a i n ,  w e  p i c k e d  up--s trange 
_V__- -----S-.-_c-- -- 

means-- that  t h i s  agency was hav ing  t h e i r  l i t t l e  o p e r a t i o n s  i n  

North Vietnam. I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h i s  would have been p i c k e d  y p  from 

E g l i n  . And w e  c o u l d  s t o p  i t  by p i c k i n g  up t h e  phone to Mr. J k l r n ~  

and s a y i n g ,  "Let's knock it  ofL." He &&id., 

Now, o n e  o f  t h e  t h i n g s  I p r e s s e d  ' f o r  b u t  d i d n 9  t g e t  was a 

p s y c h o l o g i c a l  a n a l y s i s  of what t 

from a p s y c h o l o g i c a l  p o i n t  of view. Because I knew t h a t  w e  were 

go ing  t o  have  to  b r i e f  M r .   iss singer and t h e  p r e s i d e n t ,  and t h e  

q u e s t i o n s - t h i s  is d e n i e d ,  b u t  I have  a c o n g r e s s i o n a l  Record,  

a f t e r  t h e  f a c t ,  t h a t  r a i s e d  e v e r y  i s s u e ,  n e a r l y ,  t h a t  we had on  

our  list to  be e x p l o r e d .    id you c o n s i d e r  what would happen t o  



I - -  
t h e  o t h e r  p r i s o n e r s  i f  you g o t  some? What would happen if you 

k i l l e d  a b a t c h  o f  t h e s e  North Vietnamese? What is t h e  r e a c t i o n  

going to  be on  t h e  o t h e r  peop le?  What r e a c t i o n  is it going t o  

have i n  P a r i s  a t  t h e  n e g o t i a t i o n s ?  W e  had two f u l l  p a g e s  of 

these q u e s t i o n s  to  be asked and I d i d n '  t f e e l  a t  t h e  time t h a t  

t h e r e  was anyone w i t h i n  t h e  Defense Department a l o n e  t h a t  c o u l d  

come up w i t h  a d e q u a t e  answers ,  b u t  w e  d i d  have a l is t  of p e o p l e  

who we c o u l d  p u l l  t o g e t h e r  who have done t h i s .  But w e  d i d n ' t  do  

it.  Congress  asked u s  a b o u t  i t  a f t e r  t h e  f a c t ,  and L,%~SJ~.;U&~~ 

ha&*, 

P u b l i c  R e l a t i o n s  p l a n ,  A s  you know, a f t e r  t h i s  t h i n g  f a i l e d  

to  g e t  t h e  p r i s o n e r s  o f  war o u t ,  w e  had a r e a l  heyday w i t h  t h e  

p r e s s .  Again, i t  wasn ' t  f e l t  by some p e o p l e  t h a t  t h i s  p l a n  was 

n e c e s s a r y .  One o f  t h e  b i g  items we c o n t r o l l e d  from Washington 

was t h e  f a c t  t h a t  we were u s i n g  t h e  Navy t h a t  was on  Yankee 

S t a t i o n ,  Nor th  Vietnamese w a t e r s - - t h a t  t h e r e  were two a i r c r a f t  

c a r r i e r s  up t h e r e  t h a t  we knew were go ing  t o  be dep loyed ,  or 
0 

redep loyed ,  and r e p l a c e d  by two o t h e r s .  When w e  l e a r n e d  a b o u t  

t h i s ,  I s a i d  w e  j u s t  c a n ' t  have a johnny-come-lately move o n t o  

t h a t  Yankee S t a t i o n  and f l y  ' t h o s e  m i s s i o n s - - t h a t  d i v e r s i o n  

m i s s i o n  up there--we needed t o  have t h e  p i l o t s  who have had t h e  

e x p e r i e n c e  i n  t h e  a r e a .  So Admiral Don Engen ( t h e n  C a p t a i n )  was 

t h e  p o i n t  o f  c o n t a c t  i n  t h e  Navy. W e  g o t  w i t h  Engen and said,  

"Hey, when t h e  AMERICA and t h e  ORISKANY move off t h a t  s t a t i o n  o f f  

t h e r e  and t h e  two new carriers  move i n  a f l y  t h e  p l a n e s  o f f  t h e  

o l d  c a r r i e r s  o n t o  t h e  new and t h e  new p l a n e s  o n t o  t h e  o l d  and 



e * -  

p a r k  them a t  S u b i c  Bay u n t i l  a f t e r  .the o p e r a t i o n  is o v e r .  N o  

q u e s t i o n s  a s k e d .  H e  c o u l d  d o  t h i s .  Admira l  [ John S.,  J r  . I  

McCain, who had a s o n  as  a POW i n  Hanoi ,  came t o  Washington 

d u r i n g  t h i s  p l a n n i n g .  Admiral  [Thomas H.] Moorer, now, had t a k e n  

o v e r  from G e n e r a l  Wheeler a s  Chairman o f  t h e  J o i n t  C h i e f s  o f  

S t a f f  and I s a i d  t o  Moorer,  "We've g o t  t o  t e l l  McCain a b o u t  

t h i s . "  When I b r i e f e d  him t h a t  morning,  t h e  o l d  man a l m o s t  had 

t e a r s .  H e  s a i d ,  w on, how a b o u t  coming back t h i s  a f t e r n o o n .  L e t  

m e  d i s c u s s  t h i s  f u r t h e r  w i t h  you." And h i s  a i d e  l a t e r  came up 

and s a i d ,  "You know a b o u t  t h e  son?" When I walked i n t o  t h e  

b r i e f i n g  t h a t  a f t e r n o o n  and t o l d  him, he s a i d ,  "You have g o t  

a 100 p e r c e n t  s u p p o r t  .from m e . "  H e  s a i d ,  "Go." H e  s a i d ,  "Who 

can  I l e t  know on t h i s ? "  I s a i d ,  " R i g h t  now, no  one." He s a i d ,  

"Fine."  And he d i d n ' t .  For t h e  e n t i r e  o p e r a t i o n .  And he 

s u p p o r t e d  u s  b e a u t i f u l l y - - a n y t h i n g  we wanted. 

After t h e  t a s k  f o r c e  was s e t  up i n  Augus t ,  Roy Manor, B u l l  

Simons, and I went t o  Hawaii and b r i e f e d  McCain on t h e  f i n a l  

d e t a i l s ,  went o v e r  and b r i e f e d  Abrams (MACV) , and they, ,gaua Iza 

c 0 ~ ~ l e 4 t s ~ & ~ ~ r t - - e v e r y t h i n g  we wanted to do .  I hadn'  t g o t t e n  

back from v i e t n a m  when w e  g o t  wind t h a t  a g a i n ,  a c e r t a i n  g r o u p  

wanted to u s e  h e l i c o p t e r s  to s u p p o r t  Vang ~ a o ( s p )  i n  an o p e r a t i o n  

i n  Laos. T h i s  was p i c k e d  up i n  Washington.  ~ i a l  o f  t h e  phone,  

and Abrams-wanted Abrams to  s u p p o r t  t h i s - - a  d i a l  o f  t h e  phone 

knocked i t  of f  r i g h t  away. NO p rob lems  or h a s s l e  on t h a t .  The 

White House a l l  of a sudden d e c i d e d  j u s t  b e f o r e  t h i s  o p e r a t i o n ,  

wou ldn ' t  it be  j u i c y  t o  s t a r t  a n o t h e r  bombing m i s s i o n  i n  t h e  



n o r t h  as  a  d i v e r s i o n ,  or w h a t e v e r .  N o w ,  wen4, .: ti" c . b ~ i q p  i n  

t b a - a o o a b ; i n  I don '  t know how many weeks or months ,  I f e l t  a l l  

t h i s  would d o  would s t i r  t h i n g s  up a g a i n  and  b u i l d  up some o f  t h a t  

a n t a g o n i s m  a g a i n s t  t h o s e  p r i s o n e r s  and  o t h e r s  t h a t  p e o p l e  were con- 

c e r n e d  a b o u t .  J u s t  l e t  a dead  dog l i e ,  We were a b l e  t o  c o n v i n c e  

t h e  White  House t h i s  was t h e  r o u t e  t o  go--keep i t  q u i e t .  Our 

g r e a t e s t  f e a r  came t r u e .  A i r  p e o p l e ,  i n  t h e  Washington a r e a ,  came 

and s a i d ,  "Hey, t h e r e  is t h i s  typhoon coming." T h i s  was j u s t  a  

c o u p l e  o f  d a y s  b e f o r e  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  was to  t a k e  p l a c e .  They 

s t a y e d  o n  t o p  o f  t h i s  t h i n g  and  t h r o u g h  t h e  a c c u r a t e  dope  t h a t  was 

coming o u t  o f  Washington  f u n n e l e d  i n t o  t h e  t h e a t e r ,  Roy Manor was 

a b l e  t o  make t h e  d e c i s i o n  and  r e a c t  a t  t h e  p r o p e r  time. Washing- 

t o n  had to  be  t h e  o n e s  t h a t  d e s i g n e d  t h e  e v a c u a t i o n  p l a n s ,  And w e  

d i d  j u s t  t h a t .  I f  w e  g o t  t h e s e  p e o p l e  o u t ,  where  were t h e y  g o i n g  

to  go?  T h i s  I d i d n g  t f e e l  was a  job to  encumber Manor w i t h  down 

a t  E g l i n .  Washington--we c o u l d  se t  up  s p e c i a l  l o g i s t i c s  c h a n n e l s  

to  t a k e  care o f  s p e c i f i c  r e q u i r e m e n t s  t h a t  Manor needed-- i tems o f  

equ ipmen t  were n o n s t a n d a r d  items. W e  were a b l e  t o  d o  t h i s ,  ~ l l  

he had to  do was p u t  i n  t h e  o r d e r  f o r  them and he  would g e t  them. 

But  w e  were p r o v i d i n g  t h e  i n t e r f e r e n c e  f o r  wha teve r  t h e y  needed  

down t h e r e .  N o w  t h a t  is j u s t  a few o f  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  I f e e l  f o r  

any  o p e r a t i o n  o f  t h i s  k i n d  where you are h a v i n g  to  u s e  t h e s e  

r e s o u r c e s  a t  o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  f i e l d  l e v e l ,  you have  g o t  t o  h a v e  

a  s t r o n g  hand to  d o  it i n  Washington .  G e n e r a l  Vogt  was t h e  

D i rec to r - -he  was t h e  G 3  when t h i s  thing--when we s t a r t e d  t h i s .  H e  

moved up  t o  t h e  Director o f  t h e  J o i n t  S t a f f .  When t h e  new G3 came 



in--J3--I s a i d ,  "Well, I h a v e  t o  g o  down and  b r i e f  G e n e r a l  Zais. 

I ' d  l i k e  your  p e r m i s s i o n . "  H e  s a i d ,  "NO way." Now,  you t a l k  

a b o u t  b e i n g  be tween  a r o c k  and  a h a r d  p l a c e - - t h a t  is where I 

found m y s e l f .  And so, l i t e r a l l y  f o r  many w e e k s ,  Me1 Z a i s  knew 

n o t h i n g  a b o u t  i t  though  he  was t h e  53.  When he d i d  h e a r  a b o u t  

i t ,  he  d i d n '  t need t h i s  mike! B lackburn  needed  a new u n i f o r m ,  

a l m o s t .  But  anyway, I am t o  t h i s  d a y  c o n v i n c e d  t h a t  i f  you are  

g o i n g  to  g e t  t h i s  k i n d  o f  r e s p o n s e ,  you a r e  g o i n g  to  have  to  have  

this k i n d  o f  s u p p o r t  a t  t h e  Washington  l e v e l .  

N o w ,  t h e r e ' s  many o t h e r  t h i n g s  we c a n  t a l k  a b o u t  d u r i n g  t h e  

q u e s t i o n  and  answer  p e r i o d  t h a t  I h a v e n ' t  b r o u g h t  up as l e s s o n s  

l e a r n e d ,  b u t  I have  t a k e n  some o f  Roy ' s  time--too much o f  it. 

And, Roy, I' 11 t u r n  i t  o v e r  t o  you. 
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GENERAL 

l i k e  t o  

MANOR: G e n e r a l  L indsay ,  l a d i e s  and gent lemen.  I would 

e c h o  what Don Blackburn  s a i d  a b o u t  t h a n k i n g  you f o r  

i n v i t i n g  u s  to  come down h e r e  and s h a r i n g  some o f  o u r  t h o u g h t s  

w i t h  you on  t h i s  e x p e r i e n c e  and p e r h a p s  be  a b l e  i n  some way be 

a b l e  to r e l a t e  it to  modern d a y  o p e r a t i o n s .  I migh t  s a y ,  a l s o ,  

t h a t  t h i s  i s n ' t  t h e  f i r s t  t i m e  I have  f o l l o w e d  Don Blackburn .  

A s  a m a t t e r  o f  f a c t ,  a f t e r  t h i s  e p i s o d e  took p l a c e ,  i n  t h e  e a r l y  

1971,  I f o l l o w e d  him i n  t h e  j o b  o f  SACSA on  t h e  J o i n t  S t a f f .  

From what Don s a i d  o n  my appo in tmen t  to t h i s  j o b  as  Commander o f  

t h e  J o i n t  Task Force ,  I am g l a d  t h a t  G e n e r a l  ~ a u g h e r t y ( s p 1  

p r e v a i l e d .  O t h e r w i s e ,  I m i g h t  n o t  have  become i n v o l v e d  t o  t h e  

e x t e n t  t h a t  I d i d .  But it was on t h e  weekend o f  August 80 1970,  

t h a t  I r e c e i v e d  a phone cal l-- i t  was on  a Sa tu rday- - to  r e p o r t  t o  

t h e  Pentagon o n  t h e  Monday-the 8 t h  o f  August .  T i e s  i n  w i t h  t h e  

d a t e  t h a t  Don Blackburn  used-- the 8 t h  o f  August .  The J o i n t  T a s k  

Group was formed. I had no  i d e a  what t h e  c a l l  was f o r  e x c e p t  

t h a t  I was asked  to  s t o p  a t  F o r t  Bragg or Pope F i e l d  and p i c k  up 

an Army C o l o n e l  by t h e  name o f  Simons. I had n o t  met B u l l  

Simons p r i o r  t o  t h a t .  So I s t o p p e d  a t  Pope ~ i e l d .  C o l o n e l  B u l l  

Simons was t h e r e ,  g o t  o n  t h e  a i r c r a f t ,  and he also had r e c e i v e d  

a c a l l  to  come t o  Washington.  H e  was to  r e p o r t  to t h e  Army 

Deputy, and  I was t o  r e p o r t  to  t h e  A i r  F o r c e  Deputy and w e  

wondered i f ,  p e r h a p s ,  t h e r e  was any  c o n n e c t i o n .  well, w e  soon 

found o u t  t h a t  t h e r e  was. J i m  A l l e n  was t h e  p e r s o n  I t a l k e d  

to-I t h i n k  it was C l a r k  Baldwin t h a t  B u l l  ~ i m o n s  t a l k e d  w i t h .  

And t h e n  t h e y  b r o u g h t  u s  t o  Don Blackburn ,  and e v e n t u a l l y  we 9Qt  



Y - . - .  
to Admiral Moorer. 

simple. I remember 

And Admiral Moorervs instructions were very 

them very clearly. He said, "We want you to 

determine whether or not it would be feasible to go in and do 

this job that General Blackburn has briefed you on. And if it is 

feasible, come back and tell us how you would do it. He says, 

"In the meantime, you have the authority to form a task force and 

train that task force and any resource that you need to do this 

is available to you." As a follow-up to that, General Ryan, who 

was Chief of Staff of the Air Force at the time, provided me with 

a letter that was addressed to the major commanders of the Air 

Force advising them that anything I should ask for for a classi- 

fied project I was working on, they should provide it without 

requiring an explanation of what it was. And, of course, this 

became very helpful. And I had the occasion to use it a couple 

of times. 

But my bogs at that time in my regular job as commander of 

the Special Operations Force was ~eneral Momeyer at TAC, so on my 

way back I stopped and briefed him on what it was. I had the 

authority to give him the full pitch. By the same token, I then 

went to MAC which was then commanded by General Catton and I gave 

him a full briefing of it. Those two commands really had the 

resources that we needed. Special Operations Force belonged to 

TAC. That was my parent organization. The helicopters that we 

needed, the rescue helicopters, belonged to MAC. So it was 

necessary that we get those two people--those two commanders--in 

with us so that we could have free use of the resources. I would 



- . *  

l i k e  now t o  t u r n  to  a  few s l i d e s  t h a t  1 have  h e r e  and  p e r h a p s  I 

c a n  b r e e z e  t h r o u g h  t h i s  more q u i c k l y  t h a n  i f  I d i d n ' t  u s e  them. 

G e n e r a l  B l a c k b u r n  p o i n t e d  o u t  where t h e  o b j e c t i v e  a r e a  was. T h i s  

was a b o u t  22 miles from t h e  c e n t e r  o f  Hanoi ,  n o r t h - n o r t h w e s t ,  or 

w e s t - n o r t h w e s t ,  r a t h e r ,  o f  t h e  c e n t e r  o f  t h e  c i t y .  Of C o u r s e ,  a s  

he  p o i n t e d  o u t ,  we were g o i n g  to  o p e r a t e  o u t  of T h a i l a n d .  

A s  s o o n  a s  w e  had t h i s  a s s i g n m e n t ,  we s a t  down and  d e t e r m i n e d  

e x a c t l y  what  t h i s  force- -oops ,  wrong s l i d e - - w e l l ,  h a v e  to  u s e  

t h i s  o n e .  W e  had c o n t i n u o u s  i n t e l l i g e n c e  s t u d i e s .  And Don 

B l a c k b u r n  s t r e s s e d  t h e  i m p o r t a n c e  o f  i n t e l l i g e n c e .  W e  c a n ' t  

o v e r - s t r e s s  it. It is v e r y ,  v e r y  i m p o r t a n t .  And I t h i n k  i t  is 

i m p o r t a n t  t h a t  we take maximum a d v a n t a g e  o f  t h e  members o f  t h e  

i n t e l l i g e n c e  community. For example ,  t h e  s e r v i c e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  

a r e a s - - t h e  D I A ,  t h e  C I A ,  t h e  NSA, and  a n y  o t h e r  i n t e l l i g e n c e  

s o u r c e  t h a t  is a v a i l a b l e .  And w e  d i d n ' t  g o  to  t h e s e  p e o p l e  o n l y  

w i t h - G E I ,  w e  went  to  them w i t h  a  r e q u e s t  t h a t  t h i s  g r o u p  p r o v i d e  

u s  w i t h  a n y  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t ' t h e y  t h i n k  would be v a l u a b l e  to* u s  

i n  what  w e  were p l a n n i n g  to do .  And t h a t  is e x a c t l y  what hap- 

pened.  Of c o u r s e ,  a g a i n ,  we had t h e  Washington  agency  w i t h  

G e n e r a l  B l a c k b u r n  who was able  to keep i n  t o u c h  w i t h  t h e s e  

people- -wi th  t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  t h a t  had been  selected by t h e  

top l e v e l  o f  t h e s e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  a g e n c i e s .  I l o s t  a s l ide  h e r e ,  

somewhere. SO, l e t  m e  t a l k  t o  it. So, w e  d e c i d e d  t h a t  t h e  force 

would be a n  a l l - v o l u n t e e r  f o r c e .  

Don Black--or r a t h e r ,  B u l l  Simons and  Doctor Cata ldo- -Doctor  

C a t a l d o  was a member o f  t h e  p l a n n i n g  g r o u p  i n  w a s h i n g t o n .  H e  
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was--maybe some o f  you know him--he was a Ranger--a Green Beret. 

So he had t h e  r i g h t  background f o r  what  we were do ing .  But  he  

and Simons went  t o  F o r t  Bragg and a s k e d  f o r  v o l u n t e e r s .  We 

wanted a hundred  men. Over f i v e  hundred  showed up. And t h e  t w o  

o f  them i n t e r v i e w e d  e v e r y  o n e  o f  t h o s e  i n d i v i d u a l s ,  and s e l e c t e d  

a hundred  o f  them. NOW w e  were, o f  c o u r s e ,  d o i n g  t h i s  a t  t h e  

r i g h t  time i n  t h a t  we had t h e s e  k i n d s  o f  r e s o u r c e s  a v a i l a b l e  t o  

us .  Today, w e  d o n ' t  have  t h e  p e o p l e  who have  had r e c e n t  combat 

e x p e r i e n c e  s u c h  a s  we d i d  back t h e n .  Exet;y, o n a . ~ z f ,  Shege* ,,Q@ g p l e  

M - b e & n r ' T b  'Vier&-. Some of them had h a d -  twd 'of  llirge- t o u r s  i n  

A hundred  men were s e l e c t e d  and  were t r a n s p o r t e d  to F i e l d  3 

[Duke F i e l d  a t  E g l i n  F i e l d ]  t o  s t a r t  t h e  t r a i n i n g .  A l l  t h e y  were 

t o l d  a t  t h i s  time was t h a t  we were working on  a h u m a n i t a r i a n  

m i s s i o n  t h a t  would r e q u i r e  c o n s i d e r a b l e  TDY and t h e r e  would be 

c o n s i d e r a b l e  r i s k  i n v o l v e d .  The a i r  crews were s e l e c t e d  by some- 

what  d i f f e r e n t  f a s h i o n  t h a n  t h a t .  The crews were s e l e c t e d  under  

known c a p a b i l i t y ,  and  C o l o n e l  A l l i s o n  w i l l  t a l k  more a b o u t  t h i s  

i n  a l i t t l e  w h i l e .  We b r o u g h t  them i n  and  b r i e f e d  them. W e  g a v e  

them t h e  same i n f o r m a t i o n .  And we ended  u p  w i t h  a n  a l l - v o l u n t e e r  

force. We a r r a n g e d  r i g h t  a t  t h e  v e r y  b e g i n n i n g  t h a t  e a c h  crew, 

or t h e  ground f o r c e s  and  t h e  a i r  forces, would w o t k  v e r y  c l o s e l y  

t o g e t h e r .  They were b r i e f e d  t o g e t h e r ,  d e b r i e f e d  t o g e t h e r ,  and 

g o t  to  know o n e  a n o t h e r  v e r y  w e l l .  I t h i n k  t h a t  was good. 

Can w e  back  up o n e  s l i d e ?  Okay, we w i l l  g o  ahead .  G e n e r a l  

B lackburn  ment ioned  s u r p r i s e .  I l i k e  to  look a t  t h i s  as  



s t r a t e g i c  s u r p r i s e  and t a c t i c a l b d o u r p g Q e .  S t r a t e g i c  s u r p r i s e  i n  

t h a t  t h e  m i s s i o n  n o t  be  compromised. ~f it is compromised i n  

any way when you a r e  p l a n n i n g  t h i s  t y p e  o f  a n  o p e r a t i o n ,  as  f a r  

as I am c o n c e r n e d ,  you have  t o  d r o p  it. You c a n n o t  g o  on w i t h  

it. G e n e r a l  B lackburn  ment ioned  t h e  m o n i t o r i n g  o f  t e l e p h o n e s .  

We had a n  e l e m e n t  of t h e  A i r  F o r c e  s e c u r i t y  s e r v i c e  come to 

~ g l i n  and m o n i t o r  e v e r y  o n e  of o u r  t e l e p h o n e s .    hey d i d n ' t  know 

what w e  were working o n ,  b u t  e a c h  e v e n i n g  I would g e t  a b r i e f i n g  

from t h e  c h i e f  o f  t h a t  team and he would t e l l  m e  what he h e a r d  

t h a t  day .  And he was t r y i n g  t o  p u t  t o g e t h e r  what i t  was t h a t  w e  

were working on.  Whenever he g o t  any  i n k l i n g  t h a t  we were w o r k -  

i ng  on  some k i n d  o f  a r a i d ,  t h e n  w e  would t i g h t e n  up o u r  proce-  

d u r e .  And we had Big B.A., Major B.A., and t h e  Blue  Max--for 

Max Newman-wor k ing  t o g e t h e r .  One A i r  F o r c e ,  o n e  Army, working 

t o g e t h e r  on  t h e  t i g h t e n i n g  o f  t h e  s e c u r i t y  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of t h e  

e x e r c i s e .  Big B.A. j u s t  r e t i r e d  a b o u t  two w e e k s  ago  a s  head of 

t h e  Ai r  F o r c e  OSI. 

W e  needed f l e x i b i k i t y  to  re spond  to  emergenc ies .  Here we 

g e t  i n t o  what I c a l l  "what i f . "  What i f  t h i s  happens ,  how w i l l  

we c o p e  w i t h  it? We had o u r  f o r c e s  on  t h r e e  d i f f e r e n t  h e l i c o p -  

ters. A c t u a l l y  w e  u sed  more h e l i c o p t e r s ,  b u t  we had o u r  f o r c e s  

on t h r e e .  We had t h r e e  e l e m e n t s  of t h e  f o r c e .  I s a i d ,  "What if 

we lose o n e  to  enemy a c t i o n ,  to  m e c h a n i c a l  f a i l u r e ,  o r  wha teve r?  

Can we s t i l l  d o  t h e  m i s s i o n ? "  So i n  t h e  t r a i n i n g  s e s s i o n s ,  we 

would p u l l  one  o u t  and g o  ahead  w i t h  two o f  t h e  e lements - -not  

a lways  t h e  same one .  And w e  d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  w i t h  two o f  t h e  
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e l e m e n t s  we c o u l d  d o  it. Now t h e  r i s k  g o e s  up  some, b u t  we 

c o u l d  a c c o m p l i s h  t h e  job w i t h  two of t h e  e l e m e n t s .  Well, what 

i f  w e  lose two--and we o n l y  have  one  l e f t ?  Can w e  d o  it? So w e  

t r i e d  t h a t .  Well, we came t o  t h e  c o n c l u s i o n ,  no ,  you c a n n o t  d o  

it w i t h  j u s t  one .  I f  w e  had t h e  m i s f o r t u n e  of l o s i n g  t w o - t h i r d s  

of o u r  f o r c e ,  t h e n  we are  g o i n g  to  have  to  abort t h e  m i s s i o n .  

But  a t  l e a s t  we knew t h a t .  

Equipment and t e c h n i q u e s .  W e  d i d n ' t  have  t i m e  t o  d e v e l o p  

new e q u i p m e n t s ,  b u t  w e  d i d  m a k e  some m o d i f i c a t i o n s  a s  w e  w i l l  

see a l i t t l e  l a t e r .  We d e t e r m i n e d  we had to  u s e  what was 

a v a i l a b l e .  I t h i n k  t h e  p o i n t  I have  made h e r e  is t h a t  it is 

rea l  i m p o r t a n t  t h a t  a command s u c h  as  t h i s  have a good R and D 

e f f o r t  so t h a t  you h a v e  a l l  your  s p e c i a l  equ ipmen t  a l r e a d y  o n  

t h e  s h e l f .  I f  some th ing  l i k e  t h i s  comes up ,  a l l  you h a v e  to  d o  

is r e a c h  o u t  and g e t  it. 

We have  shown b e f o r e  u s  t h a t  t h e  enemy ground e f f o r t  would 

be p r e s e n t  and  would be c r e d i t a b l e .  Now weather-mentioned 

e a r l i e r - - v e r y  i m p o r t a n t .  ~ l t h o u g h  i n  t h a t  p a r t  o f  t h e  world, 

Oc tobe r  and  November a r e  t h e  best months  t o  d o  t h i s  t y p e  of 

o p e r a t i o n .  T h i s  is when you have  t h e  b e s t  w e a t h e r .  We had a 

w e a t h e r  man o n  o u r  s t a f f  w i t h  l o t s  o f  e x p e r i e n c e  i n  t h a t  a r e a *  

H i s  name was K e i t h  Grimes. And G r i m e s  was also a l i a i s o n  o f f  i- 

cer. H e  a c t u a l l y  l i v e d  w i t h  t h e  Army p e o p l e  o u t  a t  F ie ld  3 a t  

Duke F i e l d .  They g a v e  c o n s i d e r a b l e  t h o u g h t  to  l i g h t  c o n d i t i o n s  

and we d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  a q u a r t e r  moon would be e x a c t l y  what  we 

would want and  w e  would want  t h a t  moon a b o u t  35 d e g r e e s  above  
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t h e  h o r i z o n  i n  t h e  e a s t .  Well, G r i m e s  went  t o  h i s  a l m a n a c s  and 

d e t e r m i n e d  e x a c t l y  when t h a t  would be, and  t h a t  would be be tween  

t h e  2 1 s t  and  t h e  2 5 t h  o f  O c t o b e r  or as  a n  a l t e r n a t e  d a t e ,  t h e  

same time p e r i o d  i n  November. So t h i s  is how w e  came up w i t h  

t h i s  e n v e l o p e  f o r  21-25 October or November, 

The r o u t e  t h a t  we p l a n n e d  was t o  l e a v e  T a k h l i  w i t h  t h e  

C-130s. W e  had t w o  C-130s. These  were COMBAT TALON 130s .  And 

I t r u s t  t h e y  were t h e  same COMBAT TALONS--probably t h e  same t a i l  

numbers t h a t  were used  i n  t h e  I r a n  r a id ,  and  p e r h a p s  w e  have  t h e  

same two t a i l  numbers  h e r e .  ~t t h a t  t i m e  w e  had f o u r  COMBAT 

TALONS i n  t h e  U n i t e d  States t h a t  be longed  to  my command, SOF. 

The re  were f o u r  i n  Europe and  f o u r  i n  t h e  p a c i f i c .  W e  u sed  o n e  

o f  t h o s e  f rom TAC o u t  o f  Pope F i e l d ,  and  w e  u sed  o n e  o u t  of 

PACAF. For t h e  crews, w e  had o n e  crew from Europe and o n e  from 

SOF, We d i d n l  t want to i n t e r f e r e  a n y  more t h a n  w e  had to  o n  t h e  

o t h e r  no rma l  o p e r a t i o n s ,  so we d i d n ' t  want  t o  take too many 

p e o p l e  from t h e  same a r e a ,  
0 

We had f i v e  HH-53s and  o n e  HH-3.  gain, we had 

We knew t h a t  t h e r e  were a b o u t  75  or 80 POWs a t  Son Tay. W e  had 

t h e  names o f  most o f  them. W e  also knew f rom some c o m p u t a t i o n s  

made by t h e  p l a n n e r s  t h a t  t h e r e  was a c a p a c i t y  f o r  100  POWs a t  

Son Tay. We had enough a i r l i f t  t o  b r i n g  o u t  200. Redundancy* 

N o w  t h e r e  have  b e e n  some o p e r a t i o n s  t h a t  w e  have  c o n d u c t e d  where 

w e  h a v e n ' t  had t h e  r edundancy  t h a t  we needed .  Why t h e  two 

C-130s? They were p r i m a r i l y  to lead t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  i n  to  t h e  

o b j e c t i v e  a r e a .  We o n l y  needed  o n e ,  r e a l l y ,  b u t  we wanted t h e  



100  p e r c e n t  r edundancy  a s s u r a n c e  t h a t  i f  some th ing  happened t o  

t h a t  o n e ,  t h e  s econd  o n e  c o u l d  s l i p  i n  and t a k e  o v e r  t h e  job. 

Well t h i s  was t h e  r o u t e  f l own  by t h e  C-1309. Up h e r e  was t h e  

r e f u e l i n g  area--and t h e  r e a s o n  f o r  t h e  . . .. These  are t h e  

TALON 1 3 0 s .  And t h i s  is where t h e  TALON 1 3 0 s  p i c k e d  up t h e  

h e l i c o p t e r s  to  g o  o n  i n .  Up t o  t h i s  t i m e  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  were 

w i t h  t h e  HC-130s f o r  r e f u e l i n g .  Bu t  o n e  o f  them came o v e r  h e r e  

and picked up-- joined up  w i t h  t h e  A - 1 s .  The A - 1 s  came o u t  of 

Nakhon Phanom. Up here--and f l y i n g  i n  t o  t h e  m i s s i o n .  C o l o n e l  

A l l i s o n  w i l l  t a l k  more a b o u t  t h a t  r o u t e  a l i t t l e  b i t  l a t e r ,  

L i k e w i s e ,  he  w i l l  t a l k  a  l i t t l e  a b o u t  t h i s ,  b u t  I need  to  s a y  

some th ing  h e r e ,  too. W e  d i d n ' t  have  any  FLIR [forward l o o k i n g  

i n f r a r e d  r a d a r ]  on  t h e  130--the COMBAT TALONS--in t h o s e  d a y s .  

We borrowed some o f  t h i s  equ ipmen t .  I t  was mounted i n  pods .  We 

borrowed it from t h e  Agency, took t h e  a i r c r a f t  o u t  t o  O n t a r i o ,  

C a l i f o r n i a ,  and  had t h e s e  p o d s  p u t  o n  t h e  1 3 0 s .  S t i l l ,  a F L I R  

w i l l  o n l y  l o o k  f o r w a r d  a b o u t  two miles, maybe t h r e e  miles a t  

best.  &t it is v e r y  i m p o r t a n t  o n  l o w - l e v e l  n a v i g a t i o n  f l i g h t s  

s u c h  a s  w e  were g o i n g  to  do h e r e  t h a t  t h e  p e o p l e  c o n f i r m  t h a t  w e  

a r e  p r e c i s e l y  o v e r  t h e  p o i n t  w e  want to be. 

The B is napalm,  and  t h a t  was u s e d  as a n  a n c h o r  p o i n t  

. I wanted  to g e t  down h e r e  to  t h e  Rockeye(?)  bombs, 

The o n l y  c l u s t e r - t y p e  bomb t h a t  w e  had f o r  t h e  A - 1 s  ( w e  u s e d  t h e  

A-1s f o r  t o p  cove r - - fo r  a n  u m b r e l l a  o v e r  t h e  o b j e c t i v e  area) was 

t h e  t h e  CBU-28. The CBU-28 h a s  t o  be d r o p p e d  from a h i g h  a n g l e .  

High a n g l e  means you have  to  g e t  more a l t i t u d e .  So we needed  



. - 
something that could be dropped at low altitude. We wanted a 

cluster-type bomb-because the A-1 was going to be used to prevent 

any reinforcement from coming to the objective area. The Navy 

had just developed the Rockeye bombs so we made arrangements to 

buy them from the Navy. We actually went to the arsenal where 

they are made--I think it was Indiana or Ohio-and bought some. 

It was arranged, of course, ahead of time with the Navy hierarchy 

in Washington. We brought them to Eglin 

- - - END OF TAPE 2 - - - 

. . . A-1 qualified for carrying the Rockeye bomb. We then 

arranged to have the Rockeye bomb moved to the ~ a k h o n  ~ h a n o m  so 

they could be loaded on the A-1 prior to takeoff for the mission. 

There was an operation called COMBAT MARTIN that had just been 

completed at Eglin for installation of the VHF jammer on the 

F-105. Well, we wanted to be able to jam the frequencies that 

would be used by the M I G ~ ,  and they used VHF. We didn't need VHF 

for oue particular operation so we were free to jam that. We 

tested the VHF jammer at Eglin and it seemed to work well. We 

had some shipped to Nakhon Phanom. We modified some A-1s--the 

A-1s that were going to be used at Nakhon Phanom with the jammer, 

and they were available to us, of course, on the mission. 

Most of this is going to be covered by colonel Sydnor . I 

want to get down to the last two points. One is communications 

equipment compatibility. Now I think probably everyone id this 



4 '  room r e a l i z e s  t h a t  w e  have a lways  had a problem w i t h  communica- 

t i o n s  equipment  c o m p a t i b , i l i t y  among t h e  S e r v i c e s .  And t h i s  is 

p a r t i c u l a r l y  s i g n i f i c a n t ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  between t h e  Army and t h e  ~ i r  

Force .  Well, we d i d  have t h a t  problem,  h e r e ,  i n  t h a t  we d i d  n o t  

have a l l  of  t h e  r a d i o s  w e  would l i k e  t o  have had. We p r o b a b l y  

s t i l l  d o n ' t  have a l l  t h o s e  r a d i o s  today .  We were able,  however,  

to make some m o d i f i c a t i o n s  and have enough o v e r l a p  o f  f t a q u a n c i e s  

so t h a t  we c o u l d  t a l k  e a s i l y  and c l e a r l y  from t h e  a i r c r a f t  t o  t h e  

e l e m e n t s  on t h e  ground and v i c e  v e r s a .  

Medica l .  Doctor  C a t a l d o  made a v e r y  c o n c e n t r a t e d ,  e x t e n s i v e  

s t u d y  o f  POW c o n d i t i o n s .  He s t u d i e d  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  was 

a v a i l a b l e  from POWs on POW c o n d i t i o n s  i n  World War 11, t h e  end of 

t h e  Korean War, he had some i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  was g a t h e r e d  from Da 

Nang POWs i n  North Vietnam t h a t  had a l r e a d y  been r e l e a s e d .  Remem- 

b e r ,  we g o t  t h r e e  r e l e a s e d  e a r l y  on.  And he  came up w i t h  a POW 

p r o f i l e .  And i n  t h i s  p r o f i l e ,  he d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  t h e y  would be 

i n  poor  p h y s i c a l  c o n d i t i o n ,  s u f f e r i n g  from l a c k  o f  n u t r i t i o n ,  

s u s c e p t i b l e  t o  c o l d  t e m p e r a t u r e s ,  n g t  be able t o  assimilate t h e  

mixed-type food t h a t  w e  had i n  o u r  emergency r a t i o n s .  And we may 

be f o r c e d  down on  t h e  way o u t  w i t h  a l o a d  o f  POWs who a r e  i n  t h i s  

c o n d i t i o n .  H e  went to some l a b o r a t o r y .  Some m e d i c a l  l a b o r a t o r y  

up i n  N e w  England and s e c u r e d  some b land- type  food t h a t  c o u l d  be 

p r e p a r e d  w i t h  j u s t  a m i x t u r e  o f  w a t e r .  Now t h i s  was i n  case we 

were f o r c e d  down on t h e  way back.  H e  s e c u r e d  a l a r g e  number o f  

t e n n i s - t y p e  s h o e s  o f  v a r y i n g  s i z e s  and had t h o s e  a l l  on t h e  

h e l i c o p t e r s .  Because he r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h e  POW8 would p r o b a b l y  be  
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coming o u t  b a r e f o o t e d  or p e r h a p s ,  a t  best ,  some shower c l o g s .  

Remember, i t  is t h e  middle  o f  t h e  n i g h t  t h a t  we're  p l a n n i n g  to  g o  

up t h e r e  to  t a k e  them by t h e  hand and b r i n g  them o u t .  Now he g o t  

some ponchos,  and had a b l a n k e t  l i n i n g  sewn i n  t h e  ponchos so they 

would have something warm i f  w e  were f o r c e d  down.  his is i n  l i e u  

o f  a b l a n k e t .  

W h i l e  a l l  o f  t h i s  was go ing  on ,  t h e  t r a i n i n g  was go ing  well. 

We p r e p a r e d  t h e  s i te.  W e  d i s m a n t l e d  p o r t i o n s  o f  i t  so t h a t  it 

would b r e a k  up t h e  c o n t o u r s  so t h a t  t h e  s a t e l l i t e  wouldn ' t  p i c k  UP 

t h e  s i t e  we were working on.  ~ u l l  Simons and I were go ing  back 

and f o r t h  to  Washington q u i t e  f r e q u e n t l y  to  c o n f e r  w i t h  

, to  c o n f e r  w i t h  Blackburn  and h i s  peop le .  

Well, on  t h e  8 t h  o f  September,  we b r i e f e d - - i n  t h e  tank-- the 

Chief  o f  S t a f f  on o u r  c o n c e p t .  Number o n e ,  we s a i d  i t  is f e a s i -  

b l e .  W e  have  de te rmined  t h a t  i t  is f e a s i b l e  and h e r e  is t h e  way 

we a r e  go ing  t o  d o  i t ,  and we l a i d  o u t  t h e  c o n c e p t  f o r  do ing  it. 

I t  was approved,  and a s  I remember, t h e r e  were no changes  a t  a l l  

i n  t h i s  c o n c e p t .  Admiral Moorer s a i d  w e  c o u l d  approve  it here, 

b u t  o f  c o u r s e ,  i t  h a s  t o  g o  to  a h i g h e r  l e v e l  f o r  a p p r o v a l .  You 

w i l l  have to  b r i e f  t h e  S e c r e t a r y  of Defense.  S e c r e t a r y  o f  ~ e f e n s e  

t h e n  was M r .  Melvin Laird. We w e r e n ' t  a b l e  to  s c h e d u l e  a b r i e f i n g  

b e f o r e  him u n t i l  t h e  24th  o f  September,  And a t  t h e  same time, w e  

b r i e f e d  t h e  Director of CIA. Apparen t ly  he had been b r i e f e d  

b e f o r e ,  b u t  he was s i t t i n g  i n  t h e r e  w i t h  Melvin ~ a i r d  t h a t  day .  

They were r a t h e r  noncommit ta l ,  a l t h o u g h  S e c r e t a r y  ~ a i r d  said t h a t  

he  a g r e e d  w i t h  t h e  c o n c e p t  and he a g r e e d  t h a t  it was f e a s i b l e  and 
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w e  would have t o  wait f o r  h i g h e r  a u t h o r i t y .  We knew, o f  cours.e, 

t h a t  i t  would have t o  g o  to  t h e  White  House. But it w a s n ' t  u n t i l  

t h e  8 t h  o f  October  t h a t  we had an  o p p o r t u n i t y  to  b r i e f  t h e  White  

House.. Then we b r i e f e d  Doctor K i s s i n g e r  and G e n e r a l  A 1  Haig. A 1  

Haig ,  t h e n ,  was t h e  m i l i t a r y  a s s i s t a n t  to  K i s s i n g e r .  The b r i e f -  

i ng  was w e l l  r e c e i v e d ,  t h e r e .  NO c h a n g e s  made i n  c o n c e p t .  They 

d i d n ' t  have any  p rob lems  w i t h  how we p lanned  to  do t h i s ,  and t h e y  

had c o n f i d e n c e  t h a t  w e  c o u l d  d o  it. ~ u t  Doctor    is singer s a i d ,  

"How soon  must  you have  a  d e c i s i o n  i n  o r d e r  t o  make your  2 1  O c t o -  

be r  d a t e ? "  2 1  October by t h i s  time was o u r  p r i m a r y  d a t e  f o r  

l i f t - o f f .  And w e  s a i d  w e  have  g o t  to  have  it by tomorrow n i g h t .  

H e  s a i d  t h a t  won ' t  be p o s s i b l e .  The p r e s i d e n t  was o u t  of town, 

o r  maybe he was o u t  o f  t h e  c o u n t r y .  ~t leas t ,  it w a s n ' t  p o s s i -  

b l e .  H e  s a i d ,  "Con t inue  your  t r a i n i n g  and maybe you c a n  g o  on 

t h e  a l t e r n a t e  d a y  of 21 November. Well, w e  were a l i t t l e  b i t  

Concerned--at  least ,  I was--with t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  o f  a compromise. 

I t  g a v e  u s  a l l  t h a t  much more time where you r e a l l y  have  t o  keep  

a t h i n g  t i g h t  so no  i n f o r m a t i o n  leaks  o u t .  We d i d  take good 

a d v a n t a g e  of t h e  time. W e  d i d  t r a i n .  W e  d i d  r e h e a r s e  more. 

W e  made l o t  o f  refinements--many r e f i n e m e n t s .  

On t h e  1st o f  November we were a u t h o r i z e d  by ~ d m i r a l  Moorer t o  

d o  o u r  i n - t h e a t e r  c o o r d i n a t i o n  and remember, a t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  no  o n e  

beyond PACOM, beyond Admira l  McCain, h i m s e l f ,  knew a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  

it. N o w ,  I don '  t t h i n k  we would d o  it q u i t e  t h a t  way, t o d a y ,  b u t  

t h e n  we have  a better o r g a n i z a t i o n  today .  W e  have  your  Command, 

t o d a y ,  t h a t  i s - - t h a t  s h o u l d  have  been  i n  b e i n g  back t h e n ,  r e a l l y .  
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N o w ,  B u l l  Simons and I proceeded to  Sa igon  and I1.ll s a y  j u s t  

a  word a b o u t  t h e  b r i e f i n g  a t  Sa igon .  I had neve r  m e t  G e n e r a l  

[ C r e i g h t o n l  Abrams [Commander, U.S. M i l i t a r y  A s s i s t a n c e  Command, 

Vietnam] b e f o r e ,  and I had h e a r d  he  was a p r e t t y  rough cus tomer  

b u t  r e a l  s m a r t .  H e  and G e n e r a l  [Luc ius ]  C l a y  [Commanding 

G e n e r a l ,  7 t h  Ai r  F o r c e ]  were t h e r e .  A s  t h e  b r i e f i n g  was g o i n g  

o n ,  I would g l a n c e  o n c e  i n  a w h i l e  a t  G e n e r a l  Abrams and I c o u l d  

n o t  g e t  any i n d i c a t i o n  o f  how he  was r e s p o n d i n g  t o  t h i s .  You 

c a n  imagine--here was a g r o u p  from Washington coming up to  d o  

something  i n  h i s  t h e a t e r .  I t h o u g h t  he  migh t  throw u s  o u t .  Sot  

when t h e  b r i e f i n g  was a l l  o v e r ,  I s a i d ,  " S i r ,  t h i s  is how w e  

plan to  d o  t h i s  job.  D o  you have any  q u e s t i o n s ? "  H e  s a i d ,  . 

"Yes. I have  a few. When you are o u t  h e r e  d o i n g  t h i s  th ing-  

who a r e  you working f o r ? "  I s a y s ,  "Sir ,  I w i l l  be working f o r  

Admiral  Moorer." H e  s a i d ,  "You mean, I d o n ' t  have a n y t h i n g  t o  

do  w i t h  t h i s ? "  I s a i d ,  " T h a t ' s  t i g h t . "  H e  s a i d ,  "Well, I o n l y  

have o n e  comment; Any r e s o u r c e  t h a t  I have  under  my c o n t r o l  is  

a v a i l a b l e  t o  you." From t h a t  p o i n t  on  I had a g r e a t  d e a l  of 

a d m i r a t i o n  f o r  G e n e r a l  Abrams. Then he  t u r n e d  to  Clay-and o f  

c o u r s e ,  w e  needed a l o t  o f  h e l p  from C l a y  who was Commander of 

t h e  7 t h  A i r  F o r c e ,  and h e  s a i d ,  "LOU, I assume t h a t  a p p l i e s  t o  

you, too." "Yes, s i r  ." 
W e  t h e n  went  o u t  to  t h e  ORISKANY,  briefed Admiral  F red  

Bardsha r  . NOW, he had made some changes-he had k e p t  h i s  

f l a g s h i p - a t  least ,  it was t h e r e  a t  t h a t  t i m e .  B u l l  Simons and 

I l a n d e d  on h i s  a i r c r a f t  carr ier ,  t h e y  p i c k e d  u s  up and b r o u g h t  
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u s  o u t  t h e r e ,  We t o l d  him what w e  were up t o  and t o l d  him w e  

needed some h e l p .  We need  a f a k e  r a i d  a g a i n s t  t h e  coast o f  

Nor th  Vietnam d u r i n g  t h e  time t h a t  we are g o i n g  to  be  d o i n g  t h e  

o p e r a t i o n  on  t h e  ground.  And he  became v e r y  e n t h u s e d  a b o u t  i t  

and he s a i d ,  "1'11 g i v e  you e x a c t l y  what you want .' H e  s a i d ,  

"1'11 g o  o n e  s t e p  E u r t h e t .  ~f you want ,  I ' l l  h e l p  you i n  t h e  

o b j e c t i v e  a r e a . "  " N o ,  we d o n ' t  need t h e  h e l p  t h e r e .  Where we 

heed i t  is r i g h t  t h e r e  to draw o f f  t h e  d e f e n s e s  of Nor th  V i e t -  

nam, to  make them t h i n k  t h e r e  is a n  a t tack coming from o v e r  t h e  

Gulf  o f  Tonkin so t h e y  w o n ' t  even  see us." Because t h e  m i s s i o n  

p l a n n i n g  t h a t  w e  have  done-- the r o u t e  p l a n n i n g  t h a t  we have  done  

h a s  i n d i c a t e d  t o  US, even  a f t e r  w e  had to  r e a d  o u r  s t u d i e s  a s  

G e n e r a l  B lackburn  men t ioned ,  t h a t  t h e r e  was a p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  

t h e y  c o u l d  p i c k  us  up 12  m i n u t e s  b e f o r e  we g o t  to t h e  o b j e c t i v e  

area. So w e  were p l a n n i n g  t o  l i v e  w i t h  t h a t .  But  as  i t  t u r n e d  

o u t ,  t h e y - n e v e r  *saw us* coming $ a t  a l l ,  .. They d i d n '  t see t h a t  

force coming across t o  t h e  o b j e c t i v e  area. 

01 t h e  1 0 t h  o f  November, w e  moved t h e  1308,  t h e  COMBAT TALON 

1 3 0 s  from E g l i n .  Oh, I must  men t ion .  I f o r g o t  to  men t ion  

ea r l i e r  tha, t  w e  had a Huey i n  t h e  p i c t u r e ,  also. And t h e  Huey 

was moved by o n e  o f  t h o s e  1 3 0 s  and t a k e n  to  T a k h l i .  Now,  why 

t h e  Huey? Well, a t  o n e  p o i n t  we d i d n v  t t h i n k  w e  c o u l d  l a n d  

i n s i d e  t h e  p r i s o n  compound w i t h  t h e  HH-3. W e  d i d n ' t  t h i n k  t h e r e  

would be  s p a c e .  But  w e  d e t e r m i n e d  l a t e r  on  t h a t  t h e r e  was. But 

i n  t h e  meant ime,  we t r a i n e d  w i t h  a n  Army Huey t h a t  had two Army 

crews- a g a i n ,  redundancy--we had redundancy  i n  t h e  crews. And 



w e  t o o k  t h a t  h e l i c o p t e r  w i t h  u s  t o    hail and and w e  took t h e  c rew 

members so t h a t  o p t i o n  would be k e p t  open.  Now t h e  d i s a d v a n t a g e  

of t h e  Huey was t h a t  we would have t o  l a n d  i n  Laos a t  a LIMA 

s i t e  to  r e f u e l  i t  on  t h e  way i n .  Another  d i s a d v a n t a g e  was t h a t  

it  d i d n '  t have  t h e  f o o t a g e  and r e l i a b i l i t y  t h a t  t h e s e  o t h e r  

h e l i c o p t e r s  had--couldnl t . So when 

w e  d e c i d e d  t h a t  w e  c o u l d  u s e  t h e  HH-3, o f  c o u r s e ,  w e  f e l t  t h a t  

was a g r e a t  d e a l  b e t t e r  b e c a u s e  o f  t h o s e  f e a t u r e s  on  t h e  HH-3. 

The C-121, t h e  a i r b o r n e  c o n t r o l  and warning  a i r c r a f t ,  were at 

McClel lan .  They d i d n ' t  t r a i n  w i t h  u s .  A l l  w e  wanted from them 

was t o  p r o v i d e  t h e  s e r v i c e  f o r  u s  t h a t  n i g h t .  So w e  moved some 

from McCle l lan  to  D a  Nang. Between t h e  1 1 t h  and 1 4 t h  o f  Novem- 

b e r ,  w e  moved t h e  f o r c e  i n  121s--141s,  ra ther - f rom E g l i n  to 

T a k h l i .  Now,  how d i d  w e  g e t  t h e s e ?  Well, t o d a y  you have a 

b e t t e r  a r r angement  f o r  d o i n g  t h i s  sor t  o f  t h i n g .  But a t  t h a t  

. t i m e ,  you d i d n '  t have  t h a t .  And I c o u l d n ' t  a f f o r d  to  g o  t h r o u g h  a 

t h e  normal  c h a n n e l s  t o  r e q u e s t  a i r l i f t  b e c a u s e  i t  would t a k e  too 

long  and it would p r o b a b l y  compromise t h e  whole o p e r a t i o n .  I 

went t o  see G e n e r a l  [Jack J.] C a t t o n  and I s a i d ,  " I  need f o u r  

C - 1 4 1 s  a t  E g l i n  to move t h e  f o r c e . "  H e  s a i d ,  "You j u s t  t e l l  m e  

when you want them t h e r e  and t h e y  w i l l  be  t h e r e . "  I n c i d e n t a l l y ,  

t h a t  was when I f i r s t  met t h e  p r e s e n t  CINCMAC who was t h e n  a n  

a i d e  to  G e n e r a l  C a t t o n .  T h i s  worked o u t  well. The crews were 

t o l d  t h e  f l i g h t  p l a n  f o r  a t r i p  to  Norton A i r  F o r c e  Base i n  

C a l i f o r n i a .  We to ld  a l l  o f  o u r  p e o p l e  t h a t  we were moving o u t  

t h e r e .  T h a t  w e  were g o i n g  o u t  t h e r e  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  t r a i n i n g -  
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t h i s  time f o r  desert  t r a i n i n g .  T h a t  w e  had g o t t e n  a l l  t h e  t r a i n -  

i n g  b e n e f i t  t h a t  w e  c o u l d  f rom t r a i n i n g  a t  E g l i n .  After w e  became 

a i r b o r n e ,  t h e  r o u t e  was changed  and  we went  up to  McChord up n e a r  

S e a t t l e ,  r e f u e l e d ,  went up  t o  A l a s k a ,  and  ended  up a t  T a k h l i ,  

T h a i l a n d .  On t h e  1 7 t h  o f  November, we closed t h e  e n t i r e  f o r c e  a t  

T a k h l i .  

Before l e a v i n g  Washington ,  b e f o r e  l e a v i n g  t o  g o  o u t  t h e r e ,  I 

t a l k e d  w i t h  Admi ra l  Moorer a g a i n .  H e  to ld  m e  I had t h e  a u t h o r i t y  

t o  m a k e  wha teve r  d e c i s i o n  had t o  be made o u t  t h e r e  and  any c h a n g e s  

t o  t h e  o p e r a t i o n .  of c o u r s e ,  I s t i l l  d i d n ' t  have  t h e  f i n a l  go- 

a h e a d ,  t h e  f i n a l  g r e e n  l i g h t  o n  t h i s .  B u t  Don B l a c k b u r n  a s s u r e d  

m e  t h a t  it would b e  coming when I a r r i v e d  o u t  t h e r e .  

We had two i n - t h e a t e r  a c t i o n s .  One was t o  move t h e  a i r c r a f t  

from whereve r  t h e y  were to t h e  b a s e s  where we would be  

. The h e l i c o p t e r s  f rom Udorn. The C-1308, o f  c o u r s e ,  

were w i t h  u s  a t  T a k h l i .  We had to mod i fy  t h e  A - 1 s  a t  Nakhon 

Phanom w i t h  t h e  QRC-128. W e  had to b r i e f  a d d i t i o n a l  crews. We 

wanted some Wild Wease l  a i r c r a f t .  Wild Weasel, as  some of you 

know, i s  f o r  missile s u p p r e s s i o n .  We wanted f l i g h t  c o v e r  f o r  t h e  

missile s u p p r e s s i o n .  The A i r  F o r c e  a t  , w e  had 

to b r i e f  a l l  t h o s e  crews. We had to  a r r a n g e ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  for t h e  

t a n k e r s  t o  r e f u e l  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s ,  t h e  t a n k e r s  to  r e f u e l  t h e  1 0 5 s  

and F - 4 s - d i f f e r e n t  k i n d  o f  t a n k e r s .  COMBAT APPLE was an i n t e l -  

l i g e n c e  g a t h e r i n g  m i s s i o n  o f  SAC u s i n g  EC-135s. We wanted t o  have  

a t  l eas t  o n e  o f  t h o s e  i n  t h e  area--SAC p u t  up two. And t h e n ,  of 

c o u r s e ,  t h e  Navy. 



We had to  make a r r a n g e m e n t s  for t h e  Command P o s t .  The Command 

P o s t  we had e s t a b l i s h e d  a t  Monkey hlountain  b e c a u s e  t h e r e  were 

e x t e n s i v e  communica t ions  a l r e a d y  t h e r e  and  t h e y  were e x c e l l e n t  

communica t ions .  I f  you have  r e a d  Ben Schemmer's  book, "The Raid,"  
*- I' "A " 

where he s a y s  t h e  cornmuni ca t  i o n s  brokd  ""dd~rm~=fxt~~,1;he,~~ C@w%anfl,,bPost 

to khe ,4kigc&*1&yge~rea ,  I am h e r e  t o  t e l l  you t h a t  that--&** 
b"&ibrr h** .r 

*-r au.Lw@aw' 

. & 4 p p e n .  Now t h e r e  were times when I w i s h  it had been  a l i t t l e  b i t  

b e t t e r ,  b u t  it worked q u i t e  a d e q u a t e l y .  And I ' h a d  t r emendous  

s u p p o r t ,  communica t ions-wise ,  a t  t h a t  Command P o s t .  

Now a s  a n  Wtwte to  t h a t ,  w e  had a n  a i r b o r n e  concaaand p s t .  
.4*%-"dt 

And t h e  a i r b o r n e  command p o s t  o n  a C-135 was m o n i t o r i n g  a l l  t h e  

communica t ions  t h a t  m i g h t  have  b r o k e n  down from D a  Nang-- f r o m  

Monkey Mountain--and t h e y  would have  b e e n  able t o  take o v e r  a s  a 

command p o s t  f o r  t h e  o p e r a t i o n .  So w e  had command and c o n t r o l .  

These  are some o f  t h e  p r o b l e m s  w e  had.  Typhoon o v e r  t h e  

P h i l i p p i n e s  a t  t h i s  time. Ther-e was a f r o n t  moving s o u t h  o u t  of 

China .  The two were d u e  to  c o n v e r g e  o n  Hanoi o n  t h e  n i g h t  we were 

supposed  to  g o  o n  t h e  21st o f  November. We had e x c e l l e n t  s u p p o r t  

from t h e s e  a g e n c i e s .  We d i d  a w e a t h e r  r e c o n n a i s s a n c e  t h a t  a f t e t -  

noon. I was c o n c e r n e d  w i t h  s u p p o r t  for t h e  Tonkin  Gulf b e c a u s e  of 

t h a t  typhoon-if  i t  h i t  t h e  G u l f ,  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  sea s t a t e .  I t  

would have  p r e v e n t e d  t h e  a i r c r a f t  from t a k i n g  off  and  we were 

r e a l l y  d e p e n d i n g  o n  t h a t  d i v e r s i o n a r y  m i s s i o n ,  d e c e p t i o n  m i s s i o n  

t h a t  was b e i n g  f lown  by  t h e  Navy. 

I t  became a p p a r e n t  t h a t  t h e r e  m i g h t  be a b r e a k  i n  t h e  w e a t h e r  

j u s t  b e f o r e - - t h e  d a y  b e f o r e  t h e  t yphoon  h i t  t h e r e  which was 
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supposed  t o  t h e  t h e  2 1 s t .  Based on  t h a t ,  t h e  d e c i s i o n  was made 

to advance  i t  o n e  day .  Tha t  r e q u i r e d  a h e l l  o f  a l o t  o f  coor-  

d i n a t i o n  b e c a u s e  w e  had to  inform a l l  t h e  s u p p o r t  e l e m e n t s  what 

was p lanned  f o r  t h e  n i g h t  o f  t h e  2 1 s t  was g o i n g  to  take p l a c e  on  

t h e  n i g h t  o f  t h e  20th .  Then, o f  c o u r s e ,  I s e n t  word back t o  

Washington t h a t  w e  had d e c i d e d  to  g o  2 4  h o u r s  s o o n e r .  

T h i s  was t h e  p r i m a r y  f o r c e .  The h e l i c o p t e r s ,  t h e  5 A - l s ,  

t h e  1 0 5 s ,  10 F-4s from TAC, a t o t a l  of 28 a i r c r a f t .  I n  t h e  

immediate  a r e a  we had 148 people--92 A i r  F o r c e ,  56 Army. I s a i d  

we t r a i n e d  56 Army--we o n l y  took 56. R a t h e r ,  

C o l o n e l  Sydnor w i l l  a d d r e s s  

t h a t .  S u p p o r t  a i r c r a f t - - t h e  KC-135 t o  r e f u e l  t h e  f i g h t e r s ,  a 

C-130 t o  r e f u e l  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s ,  . 
F-4s a CAP f o r  t h e  a i r c r a f t  

o p e r a t i n g  o v e r  t h e  Tonkin Gulf--a t o t a l  of-. %&b2 3 

They Navy l aunched  t h e  b i g g e s t  e f f o r t  t h a t  n i g h t  t h a t  t h e y  

had e v e r  l aunched  from t h e i r  c a r r i e r s  a t  n i g h t  up to t h a t  p o i n t .  

I d o n ' t  know i f  t h e y  exceeded t h e  number l a t e r ,  b u t  i t  was 59 

s o r t i e s  w i t h  v a r i o u s  t y p e s  of a i r c r a f t .  And t h i s  is what t h e y  

d i d .  They g o t  i n t o  t h e  a r e a  a t  t h i s  point--and I'll g o  o v e r  

t h i s  v e r y  qu ick ly - -bu t  t h e  g r e e n  g r o u p ,  h i g h - a l t i t u d e  F-$sf came 

up h e r e  to  r e a l l y  e x c i t e  t h e  d e f e n s e s  o f  Nor th  Vietnam to maxi- 

mize t h e  c ross-dow(3)  between t h e  s e n t r y - - t h e  cross-dow between 

t h e  C h i n e s e  r a d a r s  and t h e  ~ o r t h  Vietnamese r a d a r s .  I c a n  t e l l  

you t h a t  t h a t  worked v e r y  w e l l .  One o t h e r  t h i n g  I h a v e n ' t  

mentioned is t h a t  I had a s e r v i c e  p r o v i d e d  by one  o f  t h e  
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i n t e l l i g e n c e  a g e n c i e s  t h a t  e n a b l e d  m e  to  what t h e y  were 

&?the mat~;~JrLera weatre @say r I was g e t t i n g  almost 

a r e a l - t i m e ,  and I c o u l d  t e l l  a l l  t h e  c o n f u s i o n  t h i s  was c a u s i n g  

to  t h e  a i r  d e f e n s e  s y s t e m  up t h e r e  i n  Nor th  Vietnam. The b l u e  

g r o u p ,  o r  A-7s, and t h e y  f l e w  a r o u t e  on--and, of c o u r s e ,  t h e y  

were d r o p p i n g  f l a r e s  a l o n g  h e r e .  They d i d n ' t  d r o p  any  bombs, 

j u s t  f l a r e s .  The A-6 a t  t h a t  t i m e  was o n e  o f  t h e  most f e a r e d  

a i r c r a f t  by t h e  North Vie tnamese  b e c a u s e  t h e y  had a c a p a b i l i t y  

f o r  a c c u r a t e  bombing and low- leve l  a p p r o a c h  i n  bad wea the r  a t  

n i g h t .  And some o f  t h e s e  came i n  a t  t h i s  p o i n t  a t  medium 

a l t i t u d e ,  f o r  t h e  coast, and t h e n  e x i t e d  t h e  

a r e a .  T h i s  was a v e r y  v a l u a b l e  s u p p o r t  to t h e  o p e r a t i o n .  

T h i s  i s ' a  p i c t u r e  o f  t h e  model t h a t  was c o n s t r u c t e d  f o r  u s  

by i n t e l l i g e n c e  a g e n c i e s  i n  Washington.  w his is n o r t h ,  t o  your  

r i g h t .  The d i s t a n c e  ( t h i s  is t h e  t h a t  y o u ' r e  l o o k i n g  

a t ,  o b v i o u s l y ) - - t h e  d i s t a n c e  between t h e  s o u t h  w a l l  and t h e  

n o r t h  wall is 185 f e e t ,  and from t h e  eas t  wall  to t h e  west w a l l  

is 85 f e e t .  T h i s  g i v e s  you an  i d e a  o f  t h e  t i g h t  space r i g h t  i n  

h e r e  where t h a t  h e l i c o p t e r  had to  l a n d  . 
Of c o u r s e ,  some damage was done  to  t h a t  HH-3 g o i n g  i n  t h e r e ,  b u t  

we h a d n ' t  p l anned  t o  b r i n g  i t  o u t ,  anyway. We had an  e x p l o s i v e  

d e v i c e  o n  t h e r e  w i t h  a t imed f u s e  t h a t  was a c t i v a t e d  and t h e  

h e l i c o p t e r  was d e s t r o y e d .  

T h i s  shows t h e  r e l a t i v e  l o c a t i o n  o f  Son Tay camp--an a c t u a l  

photo--with t h e  c i t y  of Son Tay. T h i s  h a s  some s i g n i f i c a n c e  if 

you r e a d  t h e  Schemmer book, and w i l l  be c o v e r e d  by s p e a k e r s  to  
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come. T h i s  is t h e  r o u t e  t h a t  was f l own  coming i n  h e r e  w i t h  t h e  

C-130. The h e l i c o p t e r s - - a t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  t h e  C-130 went  to  3 ,000  

f ee t  and a l l  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  e x c e p t  5 and 6 s t a y e d  low. 5 and 6 

s t a y e d  h i g h .  They were f l a r e  

c a p a b i l i t i e s ,  n o t  c a r r y i n g  any  t r o o p s .    he f l a r e s  from t h e  

C-130s worked w e l l .  The h e l i c o p t e r s  t u r n e d  back ,  t u r n e d  a round  

to  t h e  l e f t  and  l a n d e d  o n  o n e  of t h e s e  i s l a n d s .  The C-130 con- 

t i n u e d  o n  a r o u n d ,  d r o p p i n g  f i r e f i g h t  s i m u l a t o r s  and  napalm,  and 

went o u t  o f  t h e  a r e a .  T h i s  w i l l  be c o v e r e d  i n  more d e t a i l  by 

C o l o n e l  A l l i s o n .  

- - -  - BREAK - - - - 
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COLONEL ALLISON: Good afternoon. I have been asked to discuss 

the selection, qualification, training, and participation of the 

flight crews that conducted the Son Tay Prisoner of War Camp 

rescue attempt. 

To help understand some of the terminology and what was going 

on--General Manor has covered a lot of it--but I would like to 

put a couple of slides up here to show what I'm discussing,   his 

is the helicopter formation. The COMBAT TALON HC-130 with 6 heli- 

copters in tow. Can I have those viewgraphs at the same time? 

These are the chores they were expected to perform during 

this thing. First one is Cherry l--the COMBAT TALON C-130--to 

lead the helicopters to the objective, illuminate the area with 

flares, drop the firefight simulators and napalm marker beacons 

to anchor the A-1s. Cherry 2, another COMBAT TALON, led the A-1s 

to the objective, dropped firefight simulators, and a second 

napalm marker for use by the reserve A-1s. Provided DF steers- 

direction finding steers--to the exiting aircraft. Banana, the 

HH-3, carried the USA assault group.  his was 14 persons led by 

Captain ~ i c k  Meadows. Apple 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. ~ p p l e  1 carried 

the Army support group-22 persons led by Colonel Bull Simons. 

Apple 2 carried the command group--20 persons led by Lieutenant 

Colonel Elliott Sydnor. Apple 3 was the HH-53 gunship and 

reserve H-53. 4 and 5 were reserve H-53s that ended up rescuing 

the two F-105 pilots. Peach 1 to 5, the A-ls, formed a strike 

force--two of which went into the immediate objective area, three 

remained over the mountains until needed. Lime 1 and 2 were two 



HC-130s who r e f u e l e d  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  inbound and t h e  Ii-53s out -  

bound. They a l s o  r e f u e l e d  Apple 4 and 5 u n t i l  t h e y  fescued t h e  

i lo ts .  

T h i s  adds  up to  1 3  a i r c r a f t  and 118  p e r s o n s  on t h e  ground or . 

i n  t h e  immediate v i c i n i t y  o f  Son Tay P r i s o n .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  F i r e -  

b i r d  1 th rough  5 were t h e  5 F-105s f o r  SAM s u p p r e s s i o n ;  and 1 0  

F - 4 s  were f o r  MIGCAP. 

I n  t h e  s e l e c t i o n  o f  a i r  crews, t h e  Aerospace Rescue and 

Recovery T r a i n i n g  Cen te r  a t  E g l i n ,  which p o s s e s s e d  t h e  o n l y  

s t a t e s i d e  h e a v y + l i f t ,  a i r - r e f u e l a b l e  h e l i c o p t e r s ,  s u p p l i e d  t h e  

p r e p o n d e r a n t  number o f  h e l i c o p t e r  crew members and a l l  t h e  

H-3/53 t r a i n i n g  r e s o u r c e s .  A d d i t i o n a l  crew members were 

r e t u r n e d  from S o u t h e a s t  A s i a  from t h e  4 0 t h  A i r  Rescue Squadron 

and 703rd S p e c i a l  O p e r a t i o n s  Squadron to comple te  t h e  5 H-53 

crews.  The 3 H-3 crew members were from t h e  T r a i n i n g  C e n t e r .  

A l l  o f  t h e  t r a i n i n g  o f  t h e s e  crew members were i n s t r u c t o r  or 

f l i g h t  e x a m i n e r - q u a l i f i e d .  S i m i l a r l y ,  t h e  1st s p e c i a l  Opera- 

t i o n s  Wing a t  H u r l b u r t  s u p p l i e d  p i l o t s  from t h e i r  i n s t r u c t o r  

c a d r e .  C o - p i l o t s  were s u p p l i e d  from t h e  5 6 t h  s p e c i a l  o p e r a t i o n s  
, 

Squadron a t  NKP,  i n  S o u t h e a s t  Asia.  

A l l  o f  t h e  f o r e g o i n g  crew members v o l u n t e e r e d ,  and a f t e r  

be ing  i n t e r v i e w e d  by G e n e r a l  Manor or L i e u t e n a n t  C o l o n e l  Warner 

B r i t t o n ,  were s e l e c t e d  to  p a r t i c i p a t e  on t h e  m i s s i o n .  C o l o n e l  

B r i t t o n  was t h e  A i r  F o r c e  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  who p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  

f e a s i b i l i t y  s t u d y  and was p i l o t  o f  Apple 1 on t h e  m i s s i o n .  



The C-130 COMBAT TALON crews, d u e  to t h e i r  i n t e g r a t e d  crew 

s t a t u s ,  were selected by crew. One f rom the '  7 t h  S p e c i a l  Opera- 

t i o n s  Squadron  i n  Germany, o n e  from ~ e t  2, Special O p e r a t i o n s  

Win9 a t  Pope A i r  F o r c e  Base. Due to  t h e  a d d i t i o n  o f  Forward 

Looking I n f r a r e d ,  a n  a d d i t i o n a l  n a v i g a t o r  was added  to  e a c h  crew. 

The UH-1H crews from t h e  6 t h  s p e c i a l  F o r c e s  Group and  82d 

A i r b o r n e ,  were selected by t h e  Army commander. 

The l o c a t i o n  o f  t r a i n i n g  was a t  E g l i n .  A l l  h e l i c o p t e r  and 

A-1 t r a i n i n g  was c o n d u c t e d  i n  t h e  v i c i n i t y  o f  ~ g l i n  u s i n g  b o t h  

l a n d  and w a t e r  r a n g e s .  The COMBAT TALON a i r c r a f t ,  i n  a d d i t i o n  to  

t r a i n i n g  a t  E g l i n ,  f l e w  m i s s i o n s  o v e r  t h e  m o u n t a i n s  of N o r t h  

G e o r g i a  and  Tennessee  to  s i m u l a t e  t h e  a c t u a l  m i s s i o n  and c o n f i r m  

t h e i r  a b i l i t y  t o  do t h e  t e r r a i n  a v o i d a n c e - - t e r r a i n  f o l l o w i n g  

m i s s i o n  w i t h  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  i n  t o w .  

  raining o f  t h e  a i r  component ,  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  Army U H - 1 H  

o p e r a t i o n s ,  c a n  b e s t  be approached  i n  terms o f  s p e c i a l  equ ipmen t  

deve lopmen t ,  t a c t i c s  and  t e c h n i q u e s ,  f o r m a t i o n ,  and  s p e c i a l i z e d  

a i r c r e w  t r a i n i n g .  

I n  t h e  area of s p e c i a l  e q u i p m e n t ,  i n  a n  e f f o r t  t o  e n h a n c e  t h e  

p r o b a b i l i t y  o f  s u c c e s s  or to  c o u n t e r  a s p e c i f i c  t h r e a t ,  some 

s p e c i a l  e q u i p m e n t s  were e i t h e r  d e s i g n e d  or a d a p t e d  to  t h e  p a r -  

t i c u l a r  n e e d s  o f  t h e  m i s s i o n .  I ' l l  c o v e r  some o f  t h e  more 

s i g n i f i c a n t .  

Two t y p e s  o f  n i g h t - v i s i o n  d e v i c e s  were tested. They were t h e  

l i g h t w e i g h t  s t a r l i g h t  s c o p e  and  e l e c t r o n i c  b i n o c u l a r s  or g o g g l e s .  

While  t h e  g o g g l e s  a r e  i n  u s e  t o d a y ,  t h e s e  e a r l y  models were 
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u n u s a b l e  d u e  to  c o c k p i t  l i g h t i n g .  I f  you t u r n e d  t h e  c o c k p i t  

l i g h t i n g  down to  p r e v e n t  i n t e r f e r e n c e  w i t h  t h e  g o g g l e s ,  nobody 

i n  t h e  a i r p l a n e  c o u l d  r e a d  t h e  i n s t r u m e n t s .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  e v e n  

t h e  v e r y  dim f o r m a t i o n  l i g h t s  used by t h e  h e l i c o p t e r s  and C-130s 

- were too b r i g h t .  The d e v i c e s  were v a l u a b l e ,  however,  as  w e  

w a i t e d  i n  t h e  h o l d i n g  area a f t e r  o f f - l o a d i n g  t h e  t r o o p s  to  check  

t h e  s u r r o u n d i n g  t e r r a i n  and watch t h e  l i t t l e  b i t  o f  a c t i v i t y  

t h e r e  was on  t h e  ground.  

A Forward Looking I n f r a r e d  System, as  I men t ioned ,  was 

i n s t a l l e d  o n  b o t h  COMBAT TALON C-130s. E a r l y  i n  t h e  t r a i n i n g  

p h a s e ,  i t  was d e t e r m i n e d  it would r e q u i r e  t h e  f u l l - t i m e  a t t e n t i o n  

o f  a n  a d d i t i o n a l  n a v i g a t o r ,  which was added.  The FLIR  p roved  to  

be h i g h l y  b e n e f i c i a l  i n  i d e n t i f y i n g  c h e c k p o i n t s  e n  r o u t e  and 

p i n p o i n t i n g  t h e  o b j e c t i v e .  

C-130 o r d n a n c e  d e l i v e r y  r e q u i r e d  t h a t  s p e c i a l  p r o c e d u r e s  be  

d e v e l o p e d  f o r  d r o p p i n g  i l l u m i n a t i o n  f l a r e s ,  f i r e f i g h t  s i m u l a t o r s ,  

and napalm f i r e  bombs. F l a r e s  and f i r e f i g h t  s i m u l a t o r s  were 

l aunched  t h r o u g h  p a r a t r o o p  d o o r s  and l o g  f l a r e s  o v e r  t h e  ramp. 

The B L u - 2 7 / ~  f i r e b o m b s  which were m o d i f i e d  to  f u n c t i o n  as  v i s u a l  

m a r k e r s  r e q u i r e d  s p e c i a l  r i g g i n g  and p a l l e t i z i n g .  C h e c k l i s t s  and . 

p r o c e d u r e s  had to  be d e v e l o p e d  and p e r s o n n e l  t r a i n e d .  

T a c t i c s  and t e c h n i q u e s  were i n  a c o n s t a n t  s t a t e  o f  r e v i s i o n  

and m o d i f i c a t i o n  u n t i l  t h e  f u l l  dress r e h e a r s a l  i n  e a r l y  Oc tobe r .  

All m i s s i o n s  were j o i n t l y  b r i e f e d  and d e b r i e f e d  w i t h  e v e r y  ele- 

ment t h a t  p a r t i c i p a t e d  r e p r e s e n t e d .  The b u i l d i n g - b l o c k  c o n c e p t  

was c o n s t a n t l y  s t r e s s e d  and emphas ized  and p r a c t i c e d .  We would 



p r a c t i c e  e a c h  segment s e p a r a t e l y  and s i n g l e  s h i p ,  i f  f e a s i b l e .  

B a l l a s t  was c a r r i e d  t o  match p lanned f l i g h t  g r o s s  weight .  Forma- 

t i o n s  were f lown a t  d e n s i t y  a l t i t u d e  e x p e c t e d  t o  be encoun te red .  

I n i t i a l l y ,  . . . 
- - -  END OF TAPE 3 - - - 

. ,werm3 cag,?l&$. QE ffiJ;J,&agA,&n any p s i  t i o n  a s  r e q u i r e d  f o r  whatever  

r e a s o n .  Both t h e  H-1 and H-3 crews were q u a l i f i e d  to  pe r fo rm t h e  

a s s a u l t  m i s s i o n .  ~ o t h  COMBAT TALON C-130s were c a p a b l e  o f  per-  

forming,  o r  t o  l e a d  e i the r  fo rmat ion .  The r e s e r v e  H-53s were 

ready  to  r e p l a c e  any o f  t h e  f i r s t  t h r e e  H-53's i f  t h e  need a r o s e  

and t h e  s i t u a t i o n  p e r m i t t e d .  Some o f  t h e  t a c t i c s  t h a t  were 

changed or conf i rmed  d u r i n g  t h e  t r a i n i n g  were: 

The o r i g i n a l  t a c t i c s  a n t i c i p a t e d  were to have been two f o r -  

m a t i o n s ,  e a c h  l e d  by a C-130 and c o n s i s t i n g  o f  h e l i c o p t e r s  and 

A-1s.  The v a r i a n c e  i n  slow-speed c a p a b i l i t y  d i c t a t e d  a change 

which r e s u l t e d  i n  our  f i n a l  c o n f i g u r a t i o n .  A f o r m a t i o n  o f  one 

C-130 w i t h  s i x  h e l i c o p t e r s  p roceed ing  a t  105 k n o t s  and a n o t h e r  

C-130 w i t h  5 A-1s  a t  145 k n o t s .  

They conf i rmed t h e  l o w  a l t i t u d e  p r o f i l e  to  a v o i d  r a d a r  

d e t e c t i o n  was f e a s i b l e .  

One o f  t h e  major changes  i n  t a c t i c s  from t h a t  which was 

o r i g i n a l l y  conce ived  was r e p l a c i n g  a UM-1 w i t h  t h e  H-3. o r i g i n a l  

i n t e l l i g e n c e  i n f o r m a t i o n  m i l i t a t e d  t h e  use of  t h e  H-1 even though 



it would require staging from a forward operating location, but 

there would be fewer troops, and in the event of a mission abort 

in the later stages, the H-1s return to friendly territory would 

be in question. Late intelligence confirmed the feasibility of 

using the H-3 for the compound landing. Increased troop carry- 

ing capacity, twin-engine reliability, greater firepower, and 

in-flight refueling capability making a last-minute abort 

possible dictated the use of the H-3. However, the H-1 crews 

continued to train and deployed with the task force, as General 

Manor has already mentioned. 

The major enemy threat to a successful landing in the com- 

pound were two guard towers, one at each end of the compound. 

Use of an H-53 with its three 7.62 miniguns was conceived as a 

way to take these guard towers out. 

Formation training for all the participants was a challenge. 

All the crews had experience with formation flying to a degree, 

but only the H-3, H-53, and the HC-130 crews had the basic 

experience that was going to be needed, And I emphasize that 

was basic experience. Air refueling is done straight and level. 

This flight was not. The C-130/~-1 formation did not have any 

major problems since their airspeeds were more compatible, but 

the loaded A-1 had a maximum airspeed of 145 knots so that was a 

little below the speed the 130 people would rather have flown. 

The 53s did not have any major difficulty. Although both Apple 

1 and 2 were loaded to maximum gross, they had enough reserve to 

easily stay with the formation. 
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dC*130. The +C-&3Os were f l y i n g  a t  t h e i r  a b s o l u t e  

minin~e"ar8hpecd and t h e  h e l i c o p t e o s ,  a t  n e a r  maximum g r o s s  

weight ,  a t  t h e i r  l a x i m u a  a i r s m e d .  I n  o r d e r  f o r  t h e  f o r m a t i o n  

to j o i n ,  t h e  C-130 would f l y  under t h e  h e l i c o p t e r ,  s lowing to  

105 k n o t s .  The h e l i c o p t e r  would t h e n  descend ,  g a i n i n g  a i r s p e e d  

i n t o  t h e  d r a f t i n g  p o s i t i o n  on  t h e  l e f t  wing. And t h e r e  he 

s t a y e d .  Should t u r b u l e n c e ,  maneuvering , o r  weather  c a u s e  t h e  

helicopter to  lose t h e  f o r m a t i o n ,  t h e  C-130 would have to  c i r c l e  

360 d e g r e e s  f o r  a n o t h e r  jo in-up coming i n  undernea th  t h e  h e l i i  

c o p t e r .  F o r t u n a t e l y ,  no r e j o i n  was r e q u i r e d  d u r i n g  t h e  m i s s i o n .  

S p e c i a l i z e d  a i r c r e w  t r a i n i n g ,  I ' v e  mentioned b e f o r e .  That  

was t h e  m u n i t i o n s  l o a d i n g ,  t h e  gunnery  f o r  t h e  H-53 p e o p l e ,  and 

f o r m a t i o n  t r a i n i n g  f o r  t h e  U H - 1 s .  

J o i n t .  n lng .  Again, almost s i m u l t a n e o u s l y  w i t h  t h e  

f l i g h t  t r a i n i n g .  F a m i l i a r i z a t i o n  t r a i n i n g  w i t h  t h e  H-3 and 53 

was conduc ted  w i t h  t h e  Army f o r c e s .  p r o c e d u r e s  were developed 

to  e n s u r e  t h e  f a s t e s t  p o s s i b l e  on and o f f  l o a d  sequence.  A s  

each  component became p r o f i c i e n t  i n  t h e i r  r e s p e c t i v e  t a s k s ,  more 

and more of t h e  f l y i n g  t r a i n i n g  was j o i n t  t r a i n i n g .  

F r e q u e n t l y  a m i s s i o n  would be f lown i n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n ,  and 

a f t e r  a d e b r i e f  and d i s c u s s i o n s  o f  problems w i t h  c o r r e c t i v e  

a c t i o n s ,  t h e  m i s s i o n  would be r e p e a t e d  a f t e r  d a r k .  ~ u r i n g  t h e  

proper phase  of  t h e  moon, some w i s s i o n s  wer 

o r n i n g  to a c h i e v e  as realiat lc l i g h t i n g  a s  
<->* * r l * 4 yiez9_11(6*. * 



T h a t  c o m p l e t e s  o u r  p r e p a r a t i o n  p h a s e  o f  t h i s ,  N o w  t o  

d i s c u s s  t h e  o c c u r r e n c e s  a s  we went  i n  on  t h e  m i s s i o n .  Some of 

p r o b l e m s  o c c u r r e d  i n  l a u n c h i n g  and p r o c e e d i n g  to t h e  IP ,  b u t  

a l l  were corrected, and t h e  force yaa.4~Lthirc-oa~*,bI~B on;w~MM 

t h e  a s s a u l t  force passed t h e  IP a t  500 f e e t  above  g round  l e v e l ,  

C h e r r y  1 a c c e l e r a t e d  and climbed t o  1500 f e e t  AGL. A h e a d i n g  of 

72 d e g r e e s  was c a l l e d  to  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r  f l i g h t .  The C-130 t h e n  

l a u n c h e d  p a r a c h u t e  f l i e r s  o v e r  t h e  o b j e c t i v e  and g a v e  t h e  c a l l  

s i g n ,  "Alpha , "  which I t h i n k  was picked up a t  Monkey ~ o u n t a i n -  

and a l l  o v e r  t h e  w o r l d ,  e v i d e n t l y .    he h e l i c o p t e r  f l i g h t  s lowed 

to 80 k n o t s  u n t i l  Apple  3,  t h e  g u n s h i p ,  moved ahead  of t h e  

f l i g h t .  Banana,  f o l l o w e d  by Apple  1 and  2 ,  took up a t r a i l  

f o r m a t i o n .  The f o r m a t i o n  d r i f t e d  s l i g h t l y  r i g h t  and down t o  t h e  

o b j e c t i v e .  Apple 3 r e c o g n i z e d  t h e  e r ror ,  t u r n e d  s l i g h t l y  l e f t ,  

and followed by  Banana, e x e c u t e d  h i s  f i r i n g  r u n  as p l anned .  

Banana l a n d e d  i n  t h e  compound, Apple  1 s i g h t e d  - t h e  s c h a a l h o u s e ,  

b u t  under  t h e  l i g h t i n g  c o n d i t i o n s  and s i m i l a r i t y  to  t h e  Son Tay 

Camp, c o n c e n t r a t e d  o n  i ts  l a n d i n g  and  o f f - l o a d .  Rppls 2, b e i n g  

a l i t t l e  b i t  f u r t h e r  b e h i n d  and  b e i n g  able to  see a l i t t l e  b i t  

more, r e c o g n i z e d  t h e  error,  circled r i g h t  and  informed C o l o n e l  

Sydnor ,  Wildroot, who was on  Apple  2,  and a n  a p p r o a c h  and l and -  

i n g  to  t h e  Son Tay Camp was c o m p l e t e d .  Apple 1, upon l i f t - o f f  

f rom t h e  s c h o o l h o u s e ,  r e c o g n i z e d  a t  t h a t  time t h a t  h e  was i n  t h e  

wrong area, b u t  waited f o r  c o n f i r m a t i o n  f rom t h e  g round  forces 

t h a t  t h e y  were r e a d y  f o r  p i c k u p  b e f o r e  h e  r e t u r n e d  to pick them 
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up. The pickup was made and t h e  f o r c e s  moved to t h e  proper 

p s i  t i o n .  

This  c o v e r s  t h e  Air Force p o r t i o n  up to g e t t i n g  t h e  people  

i n t o  the  p r i s o n  camp. NOW Colone l  Sydnor w i l l  t e l l  you what t h e  

Army was up to during a l l  t h i s  time. 



COLONEL SYDNOR: Gentlemen, I was a s k e d ,  when t h e y  were p u t t i n g  

t h i s  p a n e l  t o g e t h e r ,  i f  I would c o v e r  s e v e r a l  t h i n g s .  P a r t l y ,  

i t  would be  my p a r t  and r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  to  G e n e r a l  Manor and to  

C o l o n e l  Simons w i t h  r e g a r d  to  t h e  p l a n n i n g .  But I g o t  t h e r e  t o o  

l a t e .  When I was r e c r u i t e d - - a s  a  volunteer - -by  C o l o n e l  Simons, 

t h e y  were j u s t  a b o u t  to  wrap t h a t  up and my i n t r o d u c t i o n  to  i t  

was to  w a l k  i n t o  a n  area i n  t h e  Pentagon where t h e  JCS had g i v e n  

them a c o u p l e  o f  rooms, and be  g i v e n  t h e  ground p l a n  and t o l d  

t h e r e  was a model i n  t h e  a d j a c e n t  room (which you may have h e a r d  

a b o u t ,  G e n e r a l  Manor m e n t i o n e d ) ,  and t o l d  to c r i t i q u e  t h a t  p l a n .  

What o n c e  was w i d e l y  known as a f a i l u r e  and now is w i d e l y  known 

a s  a classic, was p a r t i a l l y  a p p a r e n t  to m e  a t  t h a t  time. I had 

;;; never  s e e n  auch  a s i m p l e  p l a n  and s o - a L e a r l y  wrlttsn t h a t  even  I 

c o u l d  u n d e r s t a n d  it. ~ i d n ' t  even  have  to  a s k  any  q u e s t i o n s .  

All o f  t h e  e l e m e n t s  t h a t  were t h e r e  i n  f r o n t  o f  m e  were j u s t  

l i k e  t h e y  were punched o u t  of t h e  manual.  And it s t a y e d  t h a t  

way almost w i t h o u t  change  a l l . t h e  way t h r o u g h  t h e  t r a i n i n g  

p e r i o d .  

They s a y  t h a t  t h e  b i o l o g i s t s  and p h y s i o l o g i s t s  and t h a t  s o r t  

of t h i n g ' s a y  t h a t  i f  you want d o  w e l l  g e n e t i c a l l y ,  you want t o  

t a k e  r ea l  care i n  s e l e c t i n g  your  p a r e n t s .  ~f you want to d o  

w e l l  i n  t h e  S e r v i c e ,  you d o  w e l l  t o  select c a r e f u l l y  your  com- 

manders and l e a d e r s .  Of c o u r s e ,  you know, t h a t ' s  n o t  p o s s i b l e ,  

b u t  you a lways  hope t h a t  you' 11 g e t  some good o n e s .  And I 

a lways  d i d ,  and I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  why I had a s u c c e s s f u l  c a r e e r .  

A l l  I e v e r  wanted from them was f o r  them t o  be s m a r t  and know 
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what t h e y  wanted. And t h e r e  w a s n ' t  any  q u e s t i o n  a b o u t  t h a t  i n  

t h e  c a s e  of C o l o n e l  Simons. ~t was l a te r  t h a t  I l e a r n e d  t h a t  

G e n e r a l  B lackburn  was p a r t  o f  t h i s ,  too. H e  f i t  r i g h t  i n  t h e r e .  

C a p t a i n  Meadows, I would t r u s t  w i t h  my v e r y  l i f e ,  But t h e n ,  

a g a i n ,  t h a t ' s  a l l  i n  t h e  e y e  o f  t h e  b e h o l d e r .  My w i f e  s a i d  to  

me when I t o l d  h e r  I was f i x i n g  to  g o  to  wash ing ton ,  s a i d  to me, 

"You're  n o t  g e t t i n g  mixed up w i t h  Simons and Meadows, a g a i n ,  a r e  

you?" 

Well, t h a t  a f t e r n o o n  a f t e r  I r e a d  t h e  p l a n ,  Co lone l  Simons 

t o l d  m e  t h a t  we had a room i n  C r y s t a l  C i t y .  It was t h a t  n i g h t  

t h a t  he  t o l d  me t h a t  a l t h o u g h  he was t h e  Deputy Task F o r c e  

Commander under  G e n e r a l  Manor, t h a t  he was n o t  g o i n g  to  be  i n  

t h e  a i r  commanding t h i s  t a s k  f o r c e  on s i t e ,  b u t  he was g o i n g  to  

be on  t h e  ground.  I c o u l d  work t h a t  o u t .  It d i d  s o l v e  p a r t  o f  

t h e  pack mule problem because  I had more r a d i o s  t h a n  I c o u l d  

h a n d l e ,  T h e r e  w a s n ' t  any  more room on  t h e  p a c k s a d d l e ,  and a l l  

of  a sudden,  a l l  I had to  d o  was g e t  a n o t h e r  radio opera to r - -1  

had t h r e e - - s p l i t  them down t h e  m i d d l e ,  and C o l o n e l  ~ i m o n s  would 

t a k e  h a l f  of them. Now t h a t ' s  n o t  rea l  good communica t ions  

p r o c e d u r e  i n  D i v i s i o n  and a l l  t h a t ,  b u t  t h a t ' s  what happens  

between p e o p l e  t h a t  t r u s t  e a c h  o t h e r .  I t r u s t e d  him e x p l i c i t l y  

and a p p a r e n t l y ,  he  d i d  m e ,  also. So, t h e r e  w e  were. The Deputy 

T a s k  F o r c e  Commander, t h e  l e a d e r  i n  t h e  area, was on  t h e  ground.  

Be had a d u p l i c a t e  set o f  my command n e t  and we t r i e d  to s t a y  

s e p a r a t e  from e a c h  o t h e r  so t h a t  o n e  round w o u l d n ' t  g e t  u s  b o t h .  

H e  t o ld  me also t h a t  e v e n i n g  t h a t  I would be r e s p o n s i b l e  to him 
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b e c a u s e  we were g o i n g  to  E g l i n  and  he would be i n  and o u t  b e c a u s e  

t h e r e  were a g r e a t  number o f  t h i n g s  t h a t  s t i l l  had t o  be d o n e  by 

he  and  G e n e r a l  Manor. So he  e x p e c t e d  m e  to  r u n  h i s  s t a f f ,  to g e t  

t h e  camp mockup erected, t o  make s u r e  t h a t  t h e  special equ ipmen t  

t h a t  had a l r e a d y  been  i d e n t i f i e d ,  and  t h e  equ ipmen t  was coming i n  

on time, t o  s h a k e  t h e  p e o p l e  down t h a t  had v o l u n t e e r e d  and  t h a t  

he  had selected f rom t h e s e  v o l u n t e e r s .  And t h a t  w e  would pro- 

g r e s s  t h r o u g h  t h i s ,  t h r o u g h  t h e  basic p l a n ,  and  w e  would h o l d  o f f  

on  t h e  a l t e r n a t e  p l a n s  u n t i l  w e  had had a c o m p l e t e  p r o f i l e .  And 

so t h a t  is k i n d  of what  we d i d .  I p l a y e d  s t a f f  i n  t h e  morning 

and i n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n  a f t e r  w e  had s h a k e n  o u r s e l v e s  o u t  f o r  a b o u t  

t e n  d a y s ,  work ing ,  g e t t i n g  on and o f f  a i r c r a f t  which w e  were n o t  

f a m i l i a r  w i t h  and  t h a t  sort of t h i n g ,  t h e n  we s t a r t e d  a c t u a l l y  

g o i n g  o u t  t o  t h e  p l a n  and d o i n g  o u r  wAxk-thtbughs.  his was v e r y  

e n l i g h t e n i n g .  

A s  was men t ioned  e a r l i e r ,  when w e  d i d  f i n a l l y  swing i n t o  t h i s  

w e  had k i n d  of what  y o u ' d  c a l l  a showboat .  We had t h r e e  m a t i n e e s  

and t h r e e  n i g h t  shows. As a r e s u l t  o f  t h i s ,  w e  had a t o t a l  o f  

a b o u t  160  t o  1 7 0  f u l l  r e h e a r s a l s .  Now when I s a y  a p p r o x i m a t e l y ,  

b e c a u s e  when w e  g o t  into-and 1'11 show you a s l i d e  i n  a minute--  

we g o t  i n t o  t r a i n i n g  w i t h  l i v e  f i r e ,  we d i d n ' t  have  t h a t  masonry 

wall to  s e p a r a t e  t h e  f i r e s  o f  t h e  a s s a u l t  f o r c e  i n s i d e ,  so w e  

Could o n l y  p u t  o n e - t h i r d  of t h e  force o n  t h e  g round  a t  a t i m e .  

So a c t u a l l y ,  to  do t h e  whole  f o r c e .  We also knew w i t h  some 

c o n c e r n  t h a t  G e n e r a l  B l a c k b u r n  would be showing u p  and h e  would 

c h e c k  u s  o u t  a n d . d e c i d e  f o r  h i m s e l f  whe the r  or n o t  h e  t h o u g h t  we 
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cou ld  c u t  t h e  mustard .  So w e  were working a t  t h a t  a l l  t h e  way. 

When 'he f i n a l l y  d i d  come, 1'11 show you some o f  t h e  t h i n g s  we 

d i d  f o r  him to  c o n v i n c e  him t h a t  w e  were, i n  f a c t ,  do ing  what he 

expec ted  o f  us .  P a r t  o f  t h i s  on h i s  p a r t  was to  t a k e  hold of."" 

kh,e h a r n e s s  .of t h e  machinegunner or t h e  l e a d e r  op whomever he 

chose and run  th rough  t h e s e  t h i n g s + w i t h  u s  3 u s t . a ~  i f  he were 

t h e  other h a l f  o f  t h a t  man. 

Okay, so f i n a l l y ,  t h e n ,  nry-$ob upon be ing  i n s e r t e d ,  and my 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  to  t h e  t a s k  f o r c e  was t&<g@n$~k.~J. &k@, ra4&ng 

, and to ec$n&ml 

the-wdira&t&. Colone l  'Simons had p icked  v o l u n t e e r s  which 

c o u l d  go  e i the r  way. Now t h e r e  were a few p e r s o n s  who were . 

cooks and a few p e r s o n s  t h a t  were picked t h a t  were g u a r d s  and 

a r m o r e r s  and s u p p l y  clerks which d i d  n o t  f i t  i n t o  t h i s  c a t e g o r y .  

However, w e  p layed  i t  a l l  t h e  way as i f  anyone on  t h i s  force--  

even so, w e  never  >told anyone- oxitbid8 the! pl.Hrrn+we staff e x c e p t  

myself  was p r i v y  t o  t h e  words,  *,mW, t h e  l o c a t i o n ,  Son&$y,  or 

a n y t h i n g  beyond our  c o v e r  s t q r y  which s a i d  we were forming and 

t r a i n i n g  a j o i n t  c o n t i n g e n c y  t a s k  f o r c e  i n  case its needed. 

A s  w e  t r a i n e d  t h e  f o r c e ,  w e  i n c r e a s e d  it. I s a i d  w e  made 

some minor changes .  We i n c r e a s e d  i t  from t h e  51 o r i g i n a l  pe r -  

s o n n e l  t o  56 p e r s o n n e l .  T h i s  was augmented t h e n  by t h e  h e l i -  

c o p t e r  t h a t  was go ing  t o  be c o n t r o l - c r a s h e d  i n t o  t h e  compound i n  

o r d e r  t o  g e t  a l a r g e r  h e l i c o p t e r  i n  t h e r e  t h a t  c o u l d  c a r r y  t h e  

optimum 1 4  men which t h e  a s s a u l t  l e a d e r  f e l t  he needed to 

a c h i e v e  e v e r y t h i n g  as soon a s  p o s s i b l e  on i n s e r t i o n .  A s  w e  went 
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a l o n g  w i t h  t h e  showboa t ,  w e  had e a c h  n i g h t  a f t e r  t h a t ,  as w e  

c h o s e ,  we had c e r t a i n  m i s s i o n s  f o l l o w i n g  t h a t .  And w e  had o u r  

s u p p o r t  p e o p l e  b r i n g  o u t  ammunit ion and  t h a t  sor t  o f  t h i n g  for 

n i g h t  z e r o i n g .  We had a n i g h t  s igh t - -had  a n i g h t  p o i n t  s i g h t - -  

which I g i v e  a  l o t  o f  c r e d i t  to  f o r  t h e  b lows  we d e a l t  t h e  enemy 

w i t h  a c c u r a t e l y - a i m e d  f i r e ,  we z e r o e d  a t  40 f e e t  and  w e  d i d  

t h i s  o v e r  and o v e r .  we#- found  o u t  why the serv ices - -orbehe  ' Army, 

h t  t h i s *  s i g h t ,  ,Becaus49 '"i.'w&k9 *%af% *&*=$ 

sold1erdp~p.drf ., It was r a t h e r  Erhgils. and a f t e r  a  few n i g h t s '  

f i r i n g ,  i t  would j a r  o f f  o f  t h e  z e r o  and you would have  to  d o  

t h i s  a g a i n .  So we g o t  i n  a l o t  o f  good n i g h t  t r a i n i n g  t h a t  

way. We also shook eve rybody  down t h a t  had s p e c i a l  weapons . 

o t h e r  t h a n  M-16s or c a r b  15s. The mach inegunne r s  had t h e i r  own 

t r a i n i n g .  The p e o p l e  who c a r r i e d  t h e  LAWs were r e q u i r e d  to  f i r e  

t h e s e  LAWs, I s u p p o s e  t h a t  t h e  o n e  s t a f f  p e r s o n  t h a t  d i d  u s  t h e  

most good a t  Eglin-and I do n o t  know whe the r  h e  e v e r  knew what  

he was supposed  t o  d o ,  b u t  somebody s u r e  p u t  a  f i r e  unde r  t h e  

s a f e t y  o f f i c e r .  When w e  were g i v e n  a d r y  r a n g e  to  t r a i n  o n ,  we 

were g o i n g  to  want t o  f i r e  e v e r y t h i n g  f rom LAWs to  20mm f rom t h e  

A-1Es. And I s a i d  t h a t  is n e v e r  g o i n g  to  happen  u n l e s s  he  shows 

up h e r e  o n e  d a y  and  s a y s ,  wSnyder,M--nobody e v e r  g e t s  my name 

r i g h t - - s a y s ,  "Snyde r ,  youg  re g o i n g  to  have  to write t h i s  your -  

self ." But  he d i d .  And I don '  t know who h e  was, G e n e r a l  Manor, 

b u t  you a l l  g o t  to  him. So it was, t h a t  as l o n g  as we d i d n ' t  

l e a v e  any  d u d s  o u t  t h e r e ,  w e  c o u l d  t r a i n  it t h e  way it  was. 

So e a c h  n i g h t  as  we were t r a i n i n g ,  f o r  i n s t a n c e ,  o n  t h e  M-79 
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grenade  l a u n c h e r ,  i f  we had a dud ,  t h a t  s t o p p e d  t h e  t r a i n i n g  f o r  

t h a t  n i g h t .  A s  b e s t  w e . c o u l d ,  w e  would p i n p o i n t  where it s h o u l d  

have been l o c a t e d  and  t h e  n e x t  d a y ,  t h a t  was o u r  f i r s t  o r d e r  o f  

b u s i n e s s  was to  f i n d  it. 

Okay, w e  also--and w i t h i n  t h e  second  p a r t  o f  t h e  
4 

--needed t o  f i n d  p e o p l e  who c o u l d  r u n  a c e t y l e n e - - o p e r a t e  

a c e t y l e n e  t o r c h e s .  Someone--a p o r t a b l e  a c e t y l e n e  torch--someone 

who knew enough abou h a t  w e  c o u l d  t t a i n  him to u s e  

i n f r a r e d  f l a s h  and f i l m  so t h a t  w e  c o u l d  take some p i c t u r e s .  So 

we p u t  o u t  a l i s t  w i t h  many 9s on  i t  l i k e " -  c h o o l  

q u a l i f i c a t i o n s ,  like,mountain~c.limBing, l i k e  c ~ l d % ~ w e  

-&~g and a l l  t h a t ,  and mixed i n  w i t h  t h i s ,  b u l l d o z e r  o p e r a t i n g  
L. I " 

and a c e t y l e n e  t o r c h e s  and t h a t  so r t  o f  t h i n g .  Of c o u r s e ,  w e  

were p l a y i n g  a game, it seemed, and l u c k i l y  we had t h e s e  long  

number o f  24-hour d a y s  so t h a t  w e  c o u l d  g e t  t o  t h e s e  t h i n g s .  Of 

c o u r s e ,  t h i s  is t h e  f u n  p a r t ,  b e c a u s e  t h e s e  g u y s  are go ing  to  

g e t  t o  s h o o t .  

We had ,  to t e l l  you how l o n g  a g o  it was, w e  had f o u r  n i g h t  

v i s i o n  d e v i c e s  which were g o t t e n  from t h e  n i g h t  v i s i o n  l a b o r a -  

t o r y  a t  A l e x a n d r i a ,  ~ i r g i n i a .  T h a t ' s  a l l  t h e r e  were. We're n o t  

t a l k i n g  a b o u t  s t a r l i g h t  s cope .  We're t a l k i n g  a b o u t  t h e  begin-  

n i n g  o f  t h e  n i g h t  v i s i o n  d e v i c e s  t h a t  you have .  So we t r a i n e d  

on o n e  o f  them, knowing i t  was so s e n s i t i v e  t h a t  i f  S t  was e v e r  

exposed to  l i g h t  we would lose them a l l .  And t h a t  was for o u r  

o b s e r v a t i o n  post. We d i d  t h i s  s u c c e s s f u l l y  and w e  wexe a b l e  t o  

use  a l l  f o u r  o f  them t h a t  n i g h t .  



A s  we s t a r t e d  o u r  u n i t  t r a i n i n g ,  w e  had a11 t h e  "wha t - i f s "  

t h a t  G e n e r a l  Manor was t a l k i n g  a b o u t ,  What i f  t h i s  happens ,  

what i f  t h a t  happens.  But  we c o n c e n t r a t e d  f o r  t h e  f i r s t  p e r i o d  

a l l  t h e  way th rough  t h e  r emainder  o f  September ,  not knowing 

a b o u t  t h e  d a t e s  t h a t  were g i v e n  you by ~ e n e r a l  B lackburn ,  and 

t h e  d i f f i c u l t i e s  o f  g e t t i n g  t h i n g s  c l e a r e d .  W e  were homing i n  

on g e t t i n g  t h e  b a s i c  o n e  down and b e i n g  a b l e  t o  d e p l o y  t h e  

midd le  o f  Oc tobe r .  And so it was, w e  s i m p l y  s a i d ,  w e ' l l  t a k e  

t h a t  up  when w e  g e t  i n t o  a l t e r n a t e  p l a n s .  Then w e  were a b l e  t o  

d o  t h i s .  

Well, t h e  day  w e  read--but  we n e v e r  g a v e  anybody a n y t h i n g  i n  

wr i t ing - - the  day  w e  r e a d  t h e  a l t e r n a t e  p l a n s  to  t h e  g r o u p  

l e a d e r s - - t h e  a s s a u l t  g r o u p ,  t h e  s e c u r i t y  and s u p p o r t - - i t  l ooked  

l i k e  a three-man s tampede .  They a l l  took o f f ,  g o t  i n  i n d i v i d u a l  

v e h i c l e s  t h e r e  o u t  a t  Duke F i e l d  and r a c e d  f o r  F i e l d  3 where we 

had t h e  camp set up. It was from t h a t  d a y  fo rward  t h a t  we had 

t remendous c o o p e r a t i o n  between them. And you w i l l  seef s i n c e  w e  

went i n t o  o n e  o f  t h e  a l t e r n a t e  p l a n s ,  t h a t  was e x t r e m e l y  v a l u -  

abLe t r a i n i n g .  I was a p p r e c i a t i v e  o f  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  we d i d n ' t  g o  

i n  October  s o  t h a t  w e  had a n  a d d i t i o n a l  number o f  d a y s  so t h a t  

we  c o u l d  g e t  t h i s  t h i n g  down. And it  t u r n s  o u t ,  we g o t  i t  

r i g h t .  

I was a s k e d ,  also, to  t o u c h  on  j o i n t  t r a i n i n g  which I ' l l  d o  

b r i e f l y .  A f t e r  t h e  A i r  F o r c e  shook i t s e l f  down and w e  shook 

o u r s  down, w e  began to  see more and more o f  them, t h e n .  And 

t h i s  is when we s t a r t e d  mar ry ing  up o u r  p e o p l e ,  W e  s t a r t e d  



i < -  

d o i n g  ou r  t i m i n g  f o r  t h e  i n s e r t i o n s ,  W e  s t a r t e d  p u t t i n g  m a r k s  

on t h e  g round .  We s ta r ted  f l y i n g  i n  t h e r e .  Our admin p e o p l e  

s p e n t  a n  a w f u l  l o t  o f  time r e b u i l d i n g  t h e  camp. S t  was made o u t  

of t a r g e t  c l o t h  and 2 x 4s s t u c k  i n t o  t h e  s a n d .  So you c a n  j u s t  

imag ine  t h r e e  h e l i c o p t e r s  coming i n  t h r e e  times i n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n  

and t h r e e  times a t  n i g h t ,  what  t h a t  looked l i k e .  I d o n ' t  know 

what a p e r s o n  t h a t  d i d  g e t  h o l d  o f  a p h o t o  by t h i s  s a t e l l i t e  

would have  t h o u g h t  i f  h e  had s e e n  t h i s  c o m b i n a t i o n  2 x 4 s  and  

t a r g e t  c l o t h ,  b u t  to  m e ,  f rom a l i t t l e  h i g h e r  a l t i t u d e  i t  l o o k e d  

l i k e  a p o o r  a t t e m p t  a t  t h e  C h i c a g o  s tockyard- -you  know, k i n d  of 

brown and  w h i t e .  B u t  t h e  d e s i g n  was t h e r e .  The trace of t h e  

r i v e r  was t h e r e .  The trace o f  t h e  r o a d  was t h e r e .  One s e c t i o n  

o f  t h e  b r i d g e  was t h e r e  which  w e  l a t e r  blew t o  see where t h e  

debr i s  was g o i n g  to  go .  

W e  had a  good t i m e  working o u t  t h e  g u n s h i p  p a r t .  T h a t  was 

one  o f  t h e  major c h a n g e s ,  t o  take a g u n s h i p  or o n e  o f  t h e  

r e s e r v e  HH-53s, p u t  a min igun  o n  e i t h e r  s ide  04 i t  and  w i t h  

f u l l  t r a c e r ,  maximum rate  o f  f i r e  4000 r o u n d s  a m i n u t e ,  t h e y  

were l i t e r a l l y  g o i n g  t o  c u t  o f f  t h o s e  towers a s  t h e y  f l e w  o v e r .  

T h e r e  was some c o n c e r n ,  1 u n d e r s t o o d - - t h i s  is a  second-hand 

S t o r y - t h a t  PJs said t h e y  c o u l d  do it. They said ,  you know, 

from muzzle  t o  t a r g e t  is p r o b a b l y  85 f ee t ,  W e  c a n  d o  t h a t .  

Those p e o p l e  t h a t  were f l y i n g  t h e  mach ine ,  knowing it was a n  

u n s t a b l e  p l a t f o r m  and  so f o r t h ,  were less  s u r e .  So we went  o u t  

and t r i ed  it. We b u i l t  t h e  wall o u t  of some cardboard-E-type 

s i l h o u e t t e s ,  as a  matter of fac t - -and  p a r t  o f  t h e  tower. And 



I . .  
t h e  f i r s t  d a y  t h e y  made t h e  p a s s  and  j u s t  s h o t  them up bad. N o  

h o l e s  i n  t h e  wall. We were a f r a i d  o f  r i c o c h e t s  and k i l l i n g  t h e  

p e r s o n s  t h a t  w e  had come to g i v e  a r ide  home. The n e x t  time w e  

d i d  it was a t  n i g h t ,  And a f t e r  t h e  i n i t i a l  b u r s t ,  w e  c o u l d n ' t  

see t h e  t a r g e t  anymore,  so we c o u l d n ' t  do a n y t h i n g  to  f i r e .  So 

somewhere i n  t h e  A i r  F o r c e  i n v e n t o r y  t h e r e  are 
. , 

w i4h--E& a&3: igh t s we&d*q&, &b&. So t h a t  was how t h a t  was 
,* ,b 

s o l v e d .  So we were a b l e  t o  u s e  t h e  g u n s h i p  which r e d u c e d  t h e  

v u l n e r a b i l i t y  o f  t h e  a s s a u l t  force and p e r h a p s ,  t h e  o t h e r  h e l i -  

c o p t e r s  a s  t h e y  were l a n d i n g ,  t h e  i n i t i a l  i n s e r t i o n ,  and  d id  

not--we f e l t  t h a t  we were n o t  l o s i n g  too much s u r p r i s e  by shock-  

i n g  them w i t h  t h i s  i n i t i a l  b u r s t  and t a k i n g  o u t  t h o s e  p e o p l e .  who 

c o u l d  d e l i v e r  t h e  aimed f i r e  t h e  q u i c k e s t .  

L e s s o n s  l e a r n e d  by  j o i n t  t r a i n i n g ,  And I had to  do l i k e  I 

h a v e  d o n e  many times. Noth ing  new. Same o ld  l e s s o n s .  Because  

w e  d o  i t  o v e r  and o v e r  a g a i n .  ~ o b o d y  e v e r y  r e a l l y  d o e s  w e l l  

j o i n t  t h a t  I ' v e  e v e r  s e e n  e x c e p t  two c a p t a i n s - - o n e  S p e c i a l  F o r c e s  

and o n e  A i r  Force- - they  don '  t f i g h t  o v e r  t u r f .  You j u s t  g i v e  

them a m i s s i o n  and t h e y  g o  do it. But  when y o u ' v e  g o t  t u r f ,  you 

g e t  i n t o  a l l  k i n d s  o f  problems. I would s a y  t h a t  you s t i l l  have  

to have  t h e  n e c e s s a r y  b r e a k - i n  u n l e s s  you are a s s i g n e d  and you 

work t o g e t h e r  a l l  t h e  t i m e ,  t h e r e  s t i l l  h a s  t o  be a b r e a k - i n  

p e r i o d  so t h a t  e a c h  one of them, l i k e ,  you know, two g u y s  t a l k i n g  

to o n e  a n o t h e r  a t  a m e e t i n g .  They have  to  e s t a b l i s h  t h e m s e l v e s ,  

so t h a t  t a k e s  a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  time. The d i f f e r e n c e  is i n  t h e  

commo p r o c e d u r e s ,  n o t  t h e  commo p r o c e d u r e s  a s  w r i t t e n ,  b u t  t h e  



way you d o  them. And you have to  g e t  used to e a c h  o t h e r .  The 

v a l u e  o f  l i v i n g  under one  r o o f ,  f o r  whatever  r e a s o n s ,  is n o t  

done a s  o f t e n  a s  it s h o u l d  be. And what you lose t h e r e ,  i n  my 

o p i n i o n ,  is t h e  d i s c u s s i o n  o f  many minor s u b j e c t s  t h a t ,  you know, 

a f t e r  s a y i n g ,  well, I'm going  to  have to  h o l d  o f f  t h i s  u n t i l  two 

or t h r e e  d a y s  when X g e t  t h e  p i c k u p  t r u c k  and g o  i n  and t a l k  to  

him, and t h e n  you don'  t d o  t h a t .  

Our fu l l - sca le - -by  t h e  time w e  g o t  a round to  our  f u l l - s c a l e  

r e h e a r s a l ,  we r-eakly.  hsd +so lvedb  most--WE t h e m  ~ r ~ b l e n b s . , ~ + $ _ j p i n t  

t r a i n i n g  and had r e l e a r n e d  a l l  t h e  l e s s o n s  t h a t  were n e c e s s a r y .  

What I ' d  l i k e  to  d o  is spend a c o u p l e  of m i n u t e s  h e r e  and 

show you f i r s t  one  o f  t h e  items t h a t  I was t a l k i n g  a b o u t  t h a t  

Genera l  Blackburn  was i n t e r e s t e d  i n  when we f i r s t  came down. 

What you see h e r e  was once  an  A i r  Force  b l a n k  form, and it was 

f i r s t  used e a r l y  on by t h e  ops s e r g e a n t  and t h e  o p s  o f f i c e r  and 

myself t r y i n g  to d e c i d e  what w e  were g o i n g  to  need to s u p p o r t  o u r  

t r a i n i n g  f o r  a p p r o x i m a t e l y  t h e  n e x t  t e n  d a y s .  So you see on 

t h e r e  a t y p i c a l  day  and r e h e a r s a l  s c h e d u l e - - t h i s  happens  to be 

l i v e  t ra in ing--happens  t o  be d a y l i g h t  and n i g h t  because  o u r  nor- 

m a l  t r a i n i n g  day  a f t e r  w e  g o t  s e t t l e d  i n  t h i s  r o u t i n e  was from 

twelve  t o  twelve .  D i d n ' t  a lways  w o r k  e x a c t l y  t h a t  way. Here a r e  

t h e  f o r c e s  t h a t  were g o i n g  t o  be t r a i n e d .  Because it was l i v e  

f i r e ,  w e  c o u l d  o n l y  p u t  t h e  a s s a u l t  on t h e  ground and t h e n  come 

back w i t h  them and p u t  t h e  s u p p o r t  on  t h e  ground and t h e n  t h e  

command and s e c u r i t y  f o r c e  on t h e  ground. So a c t u a l l y ,  t h a t  was 

on t h a t  day  w i t h  l i v e  f i r e ,  w e  were o n l y  r e h e a r s i n g  e a c h  o f  t h o s e  



one  t i m e .  We needed a l l  t h i s  s u p p o r t  b e c a u s e  we were u s i n g  t h e s e  

t h i n g s .  I f  w e  needed d e m o l i t i o n  w e  had to  have it p r e p o s i t i o n e d ,  

and w e  had to  have t h e  b u n k e r s  f o r  i t ,  and i f  w e  were g o i n g  t o  

u s e  t h e s e  weapons, w e  are g o i n g  to have  t o  have  t h e  ammunition 

s e t  a s i d e .  And t h i s  is t h e  s e l e c t i o n  o f  a i r c r a f t  t h a t  w i l l  have 

to  be  a v a i l a b l e .  And you see o v e r  t h e r e  t h a t  we were s i m u l a t i n g  

f l a r e s  d u r i n g  t h e  day  and u s i n g  them a t  n i g h t .  We became s o  used 

to  t r a i n i n g  a t  n i g h t  t h a t  a l t h o u g h  w e  had b l a n d ( ? )  f l a r e s  f o r  

p e r i o d  o f  moon p h a s e  t h a t  were d a r k ,  w e  became so used to t r a i n -  

ing  on  t h i s  mockup t h a t  w e  f i n a l l y  j u s t  s i m p l y  knocked t h a t  o f f .  

That  makes you remember your  own t r a i n i n g  where i f  you a re  g o i n g  

to s a y ,  " 1 ' m  n i g h t  t r a i n e d , "  i t ' s  go ing  t o  have to be  w i t h i n  t h e  

l a s t  two or t h r e e  weeks or you w i l l  b e g i n  to  f o r g e t  t h e  p a r t s .  

What I would l i k e  to  show you now is t h e  p l a n  as  it was 

supposed to  work. And I am g o i n g  t o  s k i p  a  l o t  o f  t h e  d e t a i l  i n  

t h e  i n t e r e s t  of  time, b u t  h e r e  is a t h r e e - d i m e n s i o n a l  s k e t c h  

which was one  o f  t h e  i t e m s  p r e p a r e d  by f o l k s  f o r  t h e  development  

of  t h e  p l a n  and t h e  b r i e f i n g s .  And i t  shows it w i t h o u t  much o f  

t h e  f o l i a g e  l i k e  t h e  t rees ,  t h e  enemy t rees t h a t  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r  

was g o i n g  t o  have t o  s t i c k  i t s  b l a d e s  i n t o  and chew on i n  h e r e ,  

and t h e  t rees a l o n g  h e r e  and a l o n g  h e r e .  Yous re g o i n g  to  see 

some o f  t h o s e .  A t  H-hour, as d e s c r i b e d ,  t h e  C-130 and t h e  

g u n s h i p  were a p p r o a c h i n g  t h e  compound w i t h  t h e  o t h e t  h e l i c o p t e r s  

beh ind  them, t h e  g u n s h i p  would f i r e  up  t h i s  tower, t h i s  tower, 

w i t h  i ts  c u t o f f  being as it p a s s e d  o v e r  t h e  wall. And t h e n  it 

would p i c k  up  and f i r e  t h i s  b u i l d i n g  up,  which is t h e  l a r g e s t  



b u i l d i n g  o u t s i d e ,  and  w e  assumed t h a t  was where t h e  c o n c e n t r a t i o n  

of t r o o p s  would be. T h i s  b e i n g  t h e  s e c o n d - l a r g e s t  b u i l d i n g ,  

h e r e .  Each o f  t h e s e  arrows you are g o i n g  t o  see- - the  l e a d  arrow, 

o n l y ,  is a n  e l e m e n t .  And t h i s  would be C a p t a i n  Madows w i t h  a  

three-man e l e m e n t .  H e  was g o i n g  to  f i n i s h  o f f  a n y t h i n g  t h a t  

migh t  be i n  t h e  tower and q u i c k l y  c h e c k  o u t  t h e  t w o  l a t r i n e s .  

One u n i t  h e r e  t o  f i n i s h  o f f  t h a t  tower and check  o u t  t h e s e  and 

one  e l e m e n t  h e r e  which was g o i n g  to  s e c u r e  . . . 
- - - -  END OF TAPE 4 - - - - 

. . . Something g e n e r a l l y  l i k e ,  " W e  a re  ~ m e r i c a n s ,  w e  a r e  h e r e  t o  

r e s c u e  you ,  g e t  down, do n o t  move." And w e  k e p t  r e p e a t i n g  t h a t  

a s  l o n g  as w e  p r a c t i c a b l y  c o u l d .  AS t h e y  came i n ,  b e f o r e  t h e y  

set t led i n  o v e r  t h e  wall i n  t h i s  area, h e r e ,  t h e r e  was a machine- 

gunne r  f i r i n g  o n  t h e  tower--or t h e  remains--and a  r i f l e m a n  s t a n d -  

i n g  i n  t h e  door f i r i n g  h e r e ,  w i t h  a n o t h e r  r i f l e m a n  on  t h e  deck 

below t h a t  r i f l e m a n  o n  t h e  s t a r b o a r d  door r e a d y  to  f i r e  a t  t h e  

g a t e  tower o v e r  t h e  g a t e h o u s e  a t  t h i s  p o i n t  when it came i n t o  

v iew u n d e r  t h e s e  s e v e r a l  bushy  trees a t  t h i s  l o c a t i o n .  The d i f f i -  

c u l t y  h e r e  was l a n d i n g  h e r e  meant  to  clear t h e  t a i l  no  matter how 

he c r a b b e d  i n  h e r e ,  to  c l e a r  t h e  t a i l  he  was g o i n g  t o  have  to p u t  

t h e  rotor blades i n t o  t h e  tree and  t h e n  q u i c k l y  c u t  power and 

d r o p  t h a t  l a s t  8 to 9 feet i n t o  t h e  g r o u n d  p r e t t y  s o u n d l y .  The 

crew c h i e f  t h a t  g o t  h i s  f o o t  broken-- the r e a s o n  f o r  t h a t ,  we had 

f i r e  e x t i n g u i s h e r s  b e c a u s e  d r o p p i n g  h e r e  we t h o u g h t  w e  m i g h t  



s p r i n g  a l e a k  i n  t h e  f u e l  t a n k  and  he  would t a k e  t h e s e  foam f i r e  

e x t i n g u i s h e r s  and expend  them unde r  t h e  b i r d  to keep t h a t  from 

happen ing .  T h a t  was o u r  g r e a t e s t  f e a r  t h a t  we would have  a f i r e  

i n  t h e r e  and t h a t  would be  t h e  end  o f  t h e  s e a r c h .   heir c u t o f f  

for f i r i n g  on t h e  towers was a l s o  when t h e y  crossed h e r e  b e c a u s e  

30 s e c o n d s  l a t e r ,  a t  H p l u s  1 m i n u t e ,  t h e s e  h e l i c o p t e r s  app roached  

n o s e - t o - t a i l .  T h i s  is Apple  1 and 2 w i t h  t h e  s u p p o r t  fo rce - -wi th  

a l l  t h e  g r e e n  f o r c e  t h a t  had t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h i s  a r e a  

h e r e ,  t h i s  major b u i l d i n g ,  and  f i n a l l y  to  blow t h e  b r i d g e .  The 

r e d  force was to  come i n  h e r e  w i t h  t h e  min igun  on  t h e  s t a r b o a r d  

s i d e .  They would f i r e  up a pumphouse t h a t  was h e r e  a t  t h i s  c a n a l ,  

and t h e n  he would s e t t l e  i n  h e r e  a n d  t h e  p a t h f i n d e r s  would c l e a r  

t h e  pumphouse and blow t h i s  down. A roadblock crew would g o  from 

h e r e  o v e r  to  t h e  road. The command g r o u p  would h o l d  up h e r e  i n  

t h i s  d i t c h  and  t h i s  f o r c e  would go  h e r e  and  c l e a t  t h e s e  b u i l d i n g s .  

The way it would u n f o l d  h e r e ,  a t  H p l u s  3, t h e y  s h o u l d  have  com- 

p l e t e l y  s e c u r e d  t h e  i n s i d e s  o f  t h e  compound, b e g i n n i n g  t o  s e a r c h  

o u t  and release i n s i d e ,  An access h o l e  was to  be  blown h e r e ,  

Whi le  t h a t  was happen ing  t h i s  force would clear t h i s  b u i l d i n g  and 

t h e  o t h e r  p o r t i o n  would clear t h i s  b u i l d i n g ,  h o l d i n g  up h e r e  u n t i l  

t h i s  had t a k e n  p l a c e ,  Over h e r e ,  t h e  f i r s t  a t t a c k  would be t h i s  

b u i l d i n g ,  t h i s  b u i l d i n g  and t h i s  b u i l d i n g ,  s i m u l t a n e o u s l y  by t h e  

l a rges t -however ,  i t  was r e l a t i v e l y  small-it was a b o u t  a 7-man 

e l e m e n t ,  here--and t h e n  t h e y  would c o n t i n u e  h e r e .  T h i s  g r o u p  h e r e  

would release t h e  machinegun team to--and t h a t  was o n e  o f  t h e  two 

c h a n g e s  made w i t h  g round  p l a n s - - r e l e a s e  a 2-man team as  s o o n  a s  



- , '  t h e y  r e a c h  t h e  r o a d  to  r u n  as  f a s t  a s  t h e y  c o u l d  to t h e s e  c a t -  

h o l e s  a l o n g  t h i s  e l e v a t e d  area be tween  t h e s e  two lower a r e a s  t o  

t h e  b r i d g e ,  and  would p r e v e n t  anyone  f rom coming i n  and anyone  

from l e a v i n g  t h e  area u n t i l  t h e  b r i d g e  was l i n k e d  up. These  

p e o p l e  would clear t h i s  b u i l d i n g ,  p u t  g r e n a d e  f i r e  o n  t h a t  o n e ,  

and a t  a b o u t  H p l u s  6, t h e  c l e a r i n g  h e r e  would have  been  com- 

p l e t e d .  The p a t h f i n d e r s  se t  up t h e  perimeter and  t h e  a l t e r n a t e  

e x t r a c t i o n  p o i n t s .  The b r i d g e  team would be p a s s e d  a f t e r  t h i s  

had b e e n  c l e a r e d  and  a l i n k - u p  made h e r e  a l o n g  t h a t  l i n e  of 

a r r o w s  h e r e .  T h i s  team would c l e a r  t h i s  b u i l d i n g ,  t h i s  b u i l d -  

i n g ,  and  t h i s  b u i l d i n g  and  s e t  up a r o a d b l o c k .  The r o a d b l o c k  

would b e  p l a c e d  t h e r e  a t  t h e  c u l v e r t  where t h e  c a n a l  went unde r  

t h e  r o a d .  A t  H p l u s  9 w e  s h o u l d  be i n  place to low t h e  b r i d g e .  

T h a t  would have  g i v e n  Blueboy,  t h e  a s s a u l t  leader, time to  

o r g a n i z e  h i s  f i r s t  e x t r a c t i o n  l o a d ,  b u t  w e  would n o t  b r i n g  t h e  

h e l i c o p t e r  i n  u n t i l  t h i s  e x p l o s i o n  had t a k e n  place, .an a s s e s s -  

ment made and  a s e c o n d  e x p l o s i o n ,  i f  n e c e s s a r y ,  j u s t  t o  p r e v e n t  

t h a t  p o s s i b i l i t y  o f  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r  b e i n g  miss i led  by f l y i n g  i n t o  

t h a t  e x p l o s i o n .  So, it was a t  t h a t  p o i n t  t h a t  w e  were free to  

b r i n g  i n  t h e  f i r s t  h e l i c o p t e r .  T h i s  would be d o n e  unde r  t h e  

d i r e c t  a p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  g r o u n d  f o r c e  commander by c o n t a c t i n g  him 

o n  t h e  r a d i o .  We also had f l a r e  s i g n a l s - - c o l o r e d  f l a r e s  and  

combina t ions- -which  would h a v e  done  t h e  same t h i n g .  Blueboy 

would announce  o v e r  t h e  command n e t  t h a t  he  had a c e r t a i n  number 

of items, which was o u r  code word for POWS and  a c e r t a i n  number 

o f  raiders r e a d y  t o  d i s p a t c h .  T h i s  would be m o n i t o r e d  by t h e  
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MAKO(?) who was waiting at the extraction point, and would also 

be monitored by the aircraft commander who was picking up and 

making his entry, here. And only after the MAKO had loaded on 

and counted and given that count to the ground force commander, 

monitored by the one who dispatched them, and monitored by the 

aircraft commander, would he be released by him and not released 

under any other conditions than release by the ground force 

commander. And that's the control. At H plus 20, the second 

group was to come in. We planned, basically, to use three. If 

there had been some additional POWS there that required, in 

other words, up to a hundred as earlier mentioned--or more, we 

would have been able to do this by using the two additional 

helicopters. ~t H plus 20, the last helicopter--whether that 

would be 3, 4, or 5--would be--the support force now in these 

positions here and Blueboy with radio operator and demolitions 

here, and the Command Group here. Before Blueboy left, he would 

have activated a pre-p1aced.a delay charge to destroy that bird 

with an explosive device . And so 

that would be the last element off the ground. We had alternate 

plans. Should we have arrived with all the helicopters--that 

is, all the ground forces intact, and there was an obstacle here 

that would have prevented the shoehorning of the helicopter. 

The control-crashing of the helicopter at this location, they 

would go in here. This required adding on some equipment like a 

throwaway machinegun--one where a person could come out, set up 

the machinegun, fire on the tower until his ammunition was 
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expended, s imply  l e a v e  i t  i n  p l a c e ,  and t h e n  j o i n  p e o p l e  w i t h  

c h a r g e s  and a n  aluminum l a d d e r  if t h e y  had to n e g o t i a t e  t h i s  

w a l l .  There was t h i s  door, t h e r e ,  so t h e r e  was a lways  a  

b i l i t y  t h a t  t h a t  would be  used.  

So you see by t h e  color scheme, t h e  s u p p o r t  a r e a  o f  respon- 

s i b i l i t y ,  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h e  coarnand and s e c u r i t y  and 

t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  for  t h e  a s s a u l t  group.  

Other  a l t e r n a t e  p lans - - i f  we were o v e r  ha l fway and w e  los t  

n o t  more t h a n  one  a i r c r a f t  c o n t a i n i n g  a n  e lement  of t h e  e l e m e n t s  

of t h e  ground f o r c e ,  w e  would c o n t i n u e  and employ a n  a l t e r n a t e  

p l a n  and i t  would be coded t h e  same a s  t h e  m i s s i n g  a i r c r a f t .  I n  

t h i s  case, t h e  g r e e n  s u p p o r t  would a l s o  t a k e  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  

for t h i s  and p i c k  up t h e  a d d i t i o n a l  equipment  l i k e  t h e  beanbag 

l i g h t i n g  and t h a t  sor t  o f  t h i n g  and se t  up . The 

a l t e r n a t e  p l a n  b l u e ,  t h e  r e d  f o r c e  would have t o  n e g o t i a t e  t h e  

w a l l  and would have to  have w i t h  them t h e s e  d e v i c e s ,  b o l t c u t t e r s  

and t h a t  so r t  o f  t h i n g  f o r  t h e  r e l e a s i n g  o f  the .  p r i s o n e r s  i n s i d e  

t h e  compound. And a l t e r n a t e  p l a n  g r e e n ,  which was t h e  one  we 

d i d  g e t  in to - - i f  t h e  g r e e n  a i r c r a f t  were n o t  t h e r e ,  t h e  r e d  

a i r c r a f t ,  a f t e r  f i r i n g  up t h i s  pumphouse w i t h  t h e  s t a r b o a r d  

minigun,  would n o t  l a n d  i n  i ts  normal p o s i t i o n  b u t  would p u l l  

forward  i n t o  h e r e  and f i r e  up t h e  major  danger  a r e a  o u t s i d e  w i t h  

its p o r t  minigun.  And t h i s  is t h e  scheme I am go ing  to describe 

to you i n  j u s t  a  moment. 

Here, i n  f a c t ,  is e x a c t l y  what went on  t h a t  n i g h t .  T h i s  

was--when we s t a r t e d  w r i t i n g  t h e  , t h i s  came 
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o u t  i n  t h e  P e n s a c o l a  News Journal--and t h a t  is what t h e  whole  

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  ( f o r  anybody who was i n t e r e s t e d )  was asking--what 

r e a l l y  went  on .  A s  G e n e r a l  Manor h a s  e a r l i e r  i n d i c a t e d ,  we d i d  

g o  a d a y  e a r l y  and  o u r  approach- -us ing  t h i s  photomap--he a lso 

ment ioned  K e i t h  Grimes. T h i s  photomap was o n c e  a l i t t l e  wide r  

and t h r e e  times a s  l o n g ,  and  it was one  o f  t h e  i n n o v a t i v e  i d e a s  

you c a n  e x p e c t  f rom p e o p l e  who are  g e n e r a l l y  t r y i n g  to  h e l p  

you. One d a y  he a s k e d  m e  i f  i t  w o u l d n ' t  be  a good i d e a  to  have  

one  o f  t h e s e  p h o t o s  g r i d d e d  so t h a t  t h e  ground f o r c e  commander 

and t h e  A-1  l e a d  c o u l d  t a l k  to  e a c h  o t h e r  and b e  a l i t t l e  more 

p r e c i s e  a b o u t  i d e n t i f y i n g  t a r g e t s  or g i v i n g  warn ings .  L i k e ,  he  

may see t e n  sets o f  h e a d l i g h t s  t u r n  n o r t h  s o u t h  o f  u s  and a s k  if  

w e  are i n t e r e s t e d  i n  them, s h o u l d  we d o  a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  it. And 

t h a t  was so r t  of a n  example.  I p u t  t h i s  up h e r e  s e c o n d a r i l y ,  

t h o u g h ,  to  show you w i t h o u t  t h i s  h a i r p i n  t u r n ,  h e r e ,  t h i s  camp, 

a l t h o u g h  n o t  o u t l i n e d  e x a c t l y  l i k e  it is o u t l i n e d  t h e r e ,  and  i t s  

s o u t h e r n  boundary  and  i ts r e l a t i o n s h i p  and d i s t a n c e  to  t h i s  d r y  

c a n a l  w i t h  mud i n  t h e  bo t tom--dr ied  mud, and i t s  a z i m u t h ,  is 

somewhat s i m i l a r  t o  t h i s  a r e a  h e r e  and t h e  d i s t a n c e  to  t h i s  r o a d  

which a p p e a r s  t o  b e  somewhat s imilar  to  t h a t .  ~ n d  it was when 

t h e y  were coming in- -as  C o l o n e l  A l l i s o n  s a i d ,  t h e  g u n s h i p  was 

g o i n g  i n  h e r e .  H e  r e c o g n i z e d  it f o r  what i t  was, and h i s  e r ror ,  

and  h e  went up h e r e  and  h e  went  o v e r  t h e  compound and l i t e r a l l y  

c u t  o f f  o n e  o f  t h o s e  towers. Of c o u r s e ,  t h e r e  was nobody i n  

t h a t  b e c a u s e  t h e r e  were no  POWs i n  t h a t  camp. And he  set  t h e  

t h a t c h e d  r o o f  o f  t h e  o t h e r  o n e  on f i r e  and h e  a l s o  f i r e d  up t h i s  



b u i l d i n g  t h r o u g h  t h e  r o o f  and set it on  f i r e  a l t h o u g h  it d i d  n o t  

b e g i n  to  b u r n  b r i g h t l y - - i t  d i d  l a t e r ,  The a i r c r a f t  o f  t h e  

a s s a u l t  force also d i d  a n  S - tu rn  and went i n  t h e r e  and l a n d e d  

p r o p e r l y .  Apple 1, w i t h  b e t t e r  c o n c e n t r a t i o n ,  and t h e  o t h e r s  

b o r e  r i g h t  on  i n  h e r e  and p u t  f o l k s  o u t  r i g h t  h e r e  and took o f f .  

N o w ,  I l e a r n e d  some t h i n g s  today  t h a t  I h a v e n ' t  known f o r  t h e s e  

1 8  years--and t h a t  was par t  o f  t h e  t r a n s m i s s i o n s  t h a t  were t a k i n g  

p l a c e  between o n e  o f  t h e  copi lots  and t h e  p i l o t  of  ~ p p l e  1 a s  he  

was l i f t i n g  o f f .  A l l  h e  needed was a m a r k  and he  was g o i n g  t o  

come back i n  and p i c k  them up. The f i r s t  p e o p l e  on t h e  ground 

h e r e  to  know t h a t  t h e  p l a c e  d i d n ' t  t r a c k  w i t h  what t h e y  e x p e c t e d  

was t h e  machinegun team when t h e y  g o t  o u t  h e r e  and e x p e c t e d  to  

f i n d  t h e  road  t o  t h e  b r i d g e .  I n  o u r  d e b r i e f s ,  some of t h e  

s e r g e a n t s  t o l d  m e  t h a t  t h e y  t h o u g h t - - t h e i r  i n i t i a l  t h o u g h t  was 

t h a t  t h e y  p e r h a p s  wete on  t h e  o t h e r  end o f  t h e  compound. They 

j u s t  c o u l d n ' t  deduce  what was happening .  C o l o n e l  Simons and h i s  

t w o  r a d i o  o p e r a t o r s  t h e n  took t h e i r - - t h e y  had s t r o b e l i g h t s  and 

f l a s h l i g h t s ,  and I d o n ' t  remember which t h e y  used--went o u t  and 

se t  up a l a n d i n g  p o i n t  f o r  Apple 1 and t h e s e  p e o p l e  who were 

mee t ing  p e o p l e  coming o u t  of t h e s e  b u i l d i n g s  and f i r i n g  on them 

p u l l e d  back o u t  o f  t h e r e ,  t h e  a i r c r a f t  came i n  and t h e y  were 

e x t r a c t e d  hav ing  been  o n  t h e  g round  t h e r e  p r o b a b l y  t h r e e  or f o u r  

m i n u t e s ,  They a i r c r a f t ,  Apple 2, also d id  a  maneuver and went i n  

and l a n d e d  n o t  a t  i ts  normal  p o i n t ,  b u t  d r i f t e d  fo rward  i n t o  

h e r e .  I have  a l w a y s  said-and i f  I recal l  c o r r e c t l y  t h a t  C o l o n e l  

A l l i s o n  was t h e  o n e ,  r e c o g n i z i n g  t h a t  w e  had t h e  e l e a e n t s  o f  
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a l t e r n a t e  p l a n  g r e e n ,  had h i s  gunne r  f i r e  i n t o  t h i s  and was 

t e l l i n g  me a t  t h e  same time t h a t  Apple Green was n o t  p r e s e n t .  I 

r e a c h e d  o u t  a b o u t  t w o  f e e t  and  g o t  h o l d  o f  r e d  wine who had t h e  

s e c u r i t y  f o r c e  and  b e f o r e  he e v e n  opened  h i s  n e t ,  I had t o l d  him 

t h a t ,  a s  h e  g o t  o u t  f rom under  t h e  t a i l e n d  o f  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r ,  

t h a t  p l a n  g r e e n  was i n  e f f e c t .  T h a t  p l a n  g r e e n  d i d  n o t  g e t  to  

Meadows f o r  some time b e c a u s e  as  this--we d i d n ' t  know how t h i c k  

t h i s  t ree  was,  a l l  w e  c o u l d  see were t h e  o u t e r  l e a v e s  and w e  

were wonder ing ,  you knowo when t h a t  h e l i c o p t e r  b l a d e  g o t  i n  

t h e r e ,  what i t  was g o i n g  t o  meet, whe the r  it was g o i n g  to  be 

heavy boughs  and t h i n g s  t h a t  migh t  e v e n  a f f e c t  t h e  h e l i c o p t e r ,  

m igh t  e v e n  t u r n  i t  o v e r .  The re  were some heavy  l i m b s .  And as 

t h e  men came o f f ,  i n i t i a l l y  t h e  a i r  was f u l l  o f  t w i g s  and  l e a v e s  

and t h a t  so r t  of t h i n g  and a l s o  some chunks  o f  f i r e w o o d ,  o n e  o f  

which c a u g h t  Meadows' r a d i o  o p e r a t o r  r i g h t  be tween  t h e  s o f t  c a p  

and t h e  t o p  o f  h i s  r a d i o  and  knocked b o t h  o f  them o f f  a b o u t  o n e  

c l i c k .  And w e  were h a v i n g  some d i f f i c u l t y  w i t h  t r a n s m i s s i o n s  

b e c a u s e  o f  t h a t .  Be--while t h i s  was g o i n g  on  and we had banded 

o u t s i d e  and t h e  r e d  f o r c e  had begun to clear t h e s e  b u i l d i n g ,  a l l  

o f  a sudden--and I s t i l l  d o n ' t  know t o  t h i s  d a y  e x a c t l y  t h e  

t i m i n g ,  b u t  somewhere a round  H p l u s  8 or 9 m i n u t e s ,  t h i s  h e l i -  

c o p t e r  came f l o a t i n g  i n  h e r e  [ I  was r i g h t  up h e r e ]  and  I d o n ' t  

know now e i t h e r  whether  I was happy or what ,  b u t  t h e  t h i n g  I was 

t h i n k i n g  a b o u t  was,  "1 hope he  d o e s  proper. ' '  And he  d i d .  And 

a l l  t h i s  g o e s  back t o  t h e  number o f  r e h e a r s a l s  w e  had t h a t  w e  

had t i m e  f o r  on  o u r  a l t e r n a t e  p l a n s .  H e  and r e d  wine ,  who was 
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h e r e ,  j u s t  as  t h e y  had many times, had a sor t  o f  p a s s a g e  of l i n e s  

h e r e ,  and t h e y  went back i n .  H i s  p e o p l e  p u l l e d  back o u t  of h e r e -  

They had n o t  g o t t e n  to  t h e s e  b u i l d i n g s .  P u l l e d  back o u t  o f  h e r e  

and t h e y  went i n  to  c l e a r  t h e s e  b u i l d i n g s  t h e n .  Found a c o u p l e  

of guys  p l a y i n g  possom i n  t h i s  one .  I n  t h e  meantime, we had 

r e c e i v e d  s e v e r a l  t r a n s m i s s i o n s  from Blueboy s a y i n g ,  ' n e g a t i v e  

i t e m s ,  s e a r c h  c o n t i n u e s . "  And t h e n  h i s  f o u r t h  t r a n s m i s s i o n  came 

a t  a b o u t  H p l u s  1 2  s a y i n g ,  " s e a r c h  comple te - -nega t ive  i t e m s  i n  

t h e  compound, s e a r c h  c o m p l e t e , "  And so it  was a t  t h a t  t i m e  t h e  

ground f o r c e  commander s a i d  we w i l l  wi thdraw. The rest is 

h i s t o r y .  I t  is f a i r l y  w e l l  documented i n  M r .  Schemmer's book, 

and I w i l l  l e a v e  i t  t h e r e .  

COL LONG: We w i l l  have  a s h o r t  b r e a k  b e f o r e  we have  o u r  n e x t  

s p e a k e r .  

- - -  BREAK - - - 

Our l a s t  s p e a k e r  d i d  n o t  thumb a r i d e  o u t  w i t h  t h e  f o r c e  on 

t h e  n i g h t  o f  t h e  r a i d .  H e  measures  t h e  s u c c e s s  of t h e  r a i d  by 

a n o t h e r  means,  and I t h i n k  w e  w i l l  f i n d  h i s  s p e e c h  q u i t e  i n t e r -  

e s t i n g .  H e  is C o l o n e l  R i c h a r d  A. Dut ton .  After a t t e n d i n g  t h e  

Georg ia  I n s t i t u t e  o f  Technology where he  was named t h e    is tin- 

g u i s h e d  M i l i t a r y  Gradua te  of 1951,  C o l o n e l  Du t ton  was g r a d u a t e d  

from advanced p i l o t  and f i g h t e r  t r a i n i n g  and f l e w  59 combat 

m i s s i o n s  i n  Korea. He was a combat crew f i g h t e r  and i n s t r u c t o r  



a t  Nell is  A i r  F o r c e  Base from 

Germany a s  F l i g h t  Commander, 22d T a c t i c a l  

B i t b u r g  A i r  F o r c e  B a s e ;  and  a t  Nel l is  A i r  

1959, A f t e r  t o u r s  i n  

F i g h t e r  Squad ron ,  

F o r c e  Base he s e r v e d  

as F l i g h t  Commander w i t h  t h e  4 6 9 t h  T a c t i c a l  F i g h t e r  Squad ron  a t  

Korat Roya l  T h a i  A i r  F o r c e  Base ,  and  t h e n  r e t u r n e d  to  Nell is  i n  

1966.  One y e a r  l a t e r ,  h e  was a s s i g n e d  t o  T a k h l i  Royal T h a i  A i r  

F o r c e  Base  as  F l i g h t  Commander, On 5 November 1967 ,  h i s  F-105 

Wild Weasel a i r c r a f t  was s h o t  down and  h e  was t a k e n  p r i s o n e r .  

H e  was h e l d  c a p t i v e  u n t i l  March 1973 ,  and  t h i s  i n c l u d e d  a l i t t l e  

t o u r  i n  Son Tay. I n  1976  u n t i l  1 9 8 1  h e  was Commandant o f  t h e  

U n i t e d  S t a t e s  A i r  F o r c e  S p e c i a l  O p e r a t i o n s  S c h o o l .  P l e a s e  join 

me i n  welcoming C o l o n e l  Dutton. 



* " . \  
COLONEL DUTTON: One of t h e  o b j e c t i v e s  o f  t h i s  e n t i r e  

my o n l y  c o m e n t  is, "what a h e l l  of  a way to  come home 

have been." BOY, I would have g i v e n  anything-and n o t  

because  i t  would have  s h o r t e n e d  my t o u r .  I would have 

o b j e c t i v e - -  

t h a t  would 

j u s t  

ex tended 

over  t h e r e  i f  I c o u l d  have come home t h a t  way. That  would have 

been--well ,  I would s t i l l  be o u t  o f  my mind on t h a t .  Well, q u i c k  

and d i r t y .  L e t  m e  g i v e  you a s h o r t  h i s t o r y  o f  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  of 

t r e a t m e n t  i n  North Vietnam. Remember, o n l y  N o r t h  Vietnam. S t a r t -  

ing  on 5 August 1964, t h e  number one  POW i n  North Vietnam, A l b e r t  

A l v a r e z ,  was s h o t  down i n  t h e  Bay o f  Tonkin i n c i d e n t .  H e  was t h e  

number two POW i n  l o n g e v i t y .  An Army s p e c i a l  f o r c e s  o f f i c e r  i n  

t h e  South--who was h e l d  i n  t h e  South--was a c t u a l l y  number one  and 

s p e n t  t h e  l o n g e s t  t i m e .  From t h a t  d a t e  u n t i l  t h e  6 t h  of July--  

which was t h e  n i g h t  119661--which was t h e  n i g h t  of t h e  Hanoi 

pa rade ,  which is what we c a l l e d  it when t h e y  s h a c k l e d  a b o u t  a 

hundred POWs t o g e t h e r  by twos, herded them th rough  t h e  s t reets  o f  

Hanoi, i n c i t e d  t h e  crowds to  r i o t ,  f i n a l l y  ended up i n  t h e  o l d  

s o c c e r  s t a d i u m ,  j u s t  b a r e l y  a l i v e ,  many o f  them, was t h e  f i r s t  

p e r i o d  o f  t i m e .  The t r e a t m e n t  d u r i n g  t h a t  t i m e  was n o t  good,  b u t  

it wasnl t t e r r i b l e .  T o r t u r e  was p r i m a r i l y  r e s t r i c t e d  to t h e  

i n i t i a l  i n t e r r o g a t i o n  for g e t t i n g  what h a r d  m i l i t a r y  i n f o r m a t i o n  

t h e  Vietnamese wanted or hoped t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  had; and a f t e r  t h a t  

was o n l y  used s e l e c t i v e l y  on  a p p r o v a l  of h i g h e r  h e a d q u a r t e r s  t o  

g e t  s p e c i f i c  t h i n g s  from v e r y  p a r t i c u l a r  peop le - - l ike  t h e  s e n i o r  

Navy man, Admiral  S t o c k d a l e ;  t h e  s e n i o r  ~ i r  F o r c e  man a t  t h a t  

time; Time magazine c e l e b r i t y ,  K a s s l e r ;  and p e o p l e  l i k e  t h i s - - t o  



' - c  o b t a i n  e i t h e r  t h e i r  s p e c i f i c  i n f o r m a t i o n  or t h e i r  c o o p e r a t i o n  

and t h i s  sor t  o f  t h i n g .  S t a r t i n g  on  t h e  n i g h t  o f  6 J u l y  1966 

u n t i l  t h e  n i g h t  o f  1 5  O c t o b e r  1969 ,  i n  o u r  camp--the time v a r i e d  

s l i g h t l y  a  few d a y s  o n e  way or t h e  o t h e r  d e p e n d i n g  on  which camp 

you were i n - - t r e a t m e n t  was,  by Gsd, t e r r i b l e !  Any Vietnamese-- 

man, woman or c h i l d ,  boy or pet--had t h e  r i g h t  o f  d o i n g  a n y t h i n g  

t h e y  wanted a n y t i m e  t h e y  wanted o n  wha teve r  whim t h e y  wanted.  

And p e o p l e  d i e d  d i r e c t l y  d u r i n g  t h i s  time, or as a  r e s u l t  o f  

t r e a t m e n t  handed o u t  d u r i n g  t h i s  t i m e .  T h i s  is o v e r  and above-- 

or a f t e r ,  I s h o u l d  say- - the  i n i t i a l  i n t e r r o g a t i o n  p e r i o d  which 

was s t i l l ,  t h e y  d i d  what t h e y  wanted to or needed to  to  g e t  

t h e i r  i n f o r m a t i o n .  On t h e  1 5 t h  o f  o c t o b e r ,  f o r  whatever  

r e a s o n - - w e b e  n o t  a hundred  p e r c e n t  su re - - I  c o u l d  g i v e  you lo ts  

o f  p o s s i b l e  r e a s o n s ,  t r e a t m e n t  went f rom n i g h t  to  day .  On t h e  

morning o f  t h e  1 5 t h  o f  Oc tobe r  i n  Son Tay, a l l  t h r e e  q u i z  

rooms--as we c a l l e d  them-- th i s  is where t h e y  a s k e d  t h e i r  p e t  

q u e s t i o n s  was f u l l ;  and on  t h e  n i g h t  o f  t h e  1 5 t h  a f  O c t o b e r ,  

t h e y  were empty ,  n e v e r  to  b e  f i l l e d  a g a i n  e x c e p t  on  s i n g l e  

o c c a s i o n s  f o r  p e o p l e  t h a t  more or less e a r n e d  what t h e y  g o t .  

And f rom t h a t  d a t e  u n t i l  we came o u t  i n  Feb rua ry - - in  March o f  

1973,  t h e  t r e a t m e n t  was--by r e l a t i v e  s t a n d a r d s - - p r e t t y  good and  

g o t  b e t t e r .  S o r t  o f  l i k e  t h e  s t o c k m a r k e t .  Had i t s  ups  and 

downs, b u t  g o t  b e t t e r  a l l  t h e  t i m e  u n t i l  a b o u t  a  y e a r  b e f o r e  we 

came back ,  t h e y  r e a l i z e d  t h a t  we were, i n  f a c t ,  g o i n g  t o  come 

back and t h e y  s t a r t e d  f a t t e n i n g  u s  up  and s t a r t e d  g i v i n g  u s  a l l  

t h e  s t a r c h  t h a t  w e  would ea t .  



What a r e  p r i s o n s  l i k e  i n  Nor th  Vietnam? Most of you,  when 

you t h i n k  o f  p r i s o n s ,  you see something  on t e l e v i s i o n - - I  d o u b t  

v e r y  many p e o p l e  h e r e  have  been  i n  a r ea l  p r i s o n ,  b u t  you t h i n k  

of  what  you see on  TV w i t h  t h e  b a r s  open  and you c a n  see t h e  

p e o p l e  walk ing  up o n  t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  o r  g o i n g  by or whatever  l i k e  

t h a t .  N o  way. Every ce l l  o v e r  t h e r e  was s e a l e d .  N o  windows-- 

d o o r s  b a r r e d .  ~f t h e r e  was a window, it would b e  t e n  or f i f t e e n  

f e e t  up i n  t h e  a i r .  I n  t h e  case l i k e  a t  Son Tay, t h e y  even-- 

what windows t h e r e  were, t h e y  had b a r s  i n  them b u t  t h e y  had been  

b r i c k e d  u p  so you c o u l d n ' t  see o u t .  Doors were sealed. So, 

t h e o r e t i c a l l y ,  no  p r i s o n e r  from any  o n e  room e v e r  saw an  American 

from any  o t h e r  room. The o n l y  people he was a l l o w e d  to  see were 

h i s  roommates,  i f  any.  Every ce l l  had a l i g h t  t h a t  burned  2 4  

h o u r s  a day ,  and e v e r y  ce l l  had a t  l eas t  o n e  l o u d s p e a k e r .  If t h e  

c e l l  was l a r g e  enough,  it would have 2, 3, or 4 so you c o u l d n '  t 

g e t  o f f  i n  a c o r n e r  and i g n o r e  i t ,  They would a l l  s a y  t h e  same 

t h i n g  a t  t h e  same t ime .  They w e r e n ' t  s p e a k i n g  d i f f e r e n t  messages  

on  d i f f e r e n t  s p e a k e r s ,  So t h a t  is t h e  g e n e r a l  f e e l i n g  of what 

t h e i r  p h i l o s o p h y  o f  i n c a r c e r a t i o n ,  if t h e y  had had t h e  faci l i -  

t i e s ,  would have  been  e v e r y  o n e  of u s  i n  s o l i t a r y  c o n f i n e m e n t  for 

t h e  e n t i r e  p e r i o d  t h a t  w e  were o v e r  t h e r e .  But t h e y  d i d n ' t  have  

t h e  f a c i l i t i e s .  So a s  t h e y  g o t  more and more of u s  t h e y  had to 

p u t  more and more o f  u s  t o g e t h e r ,  So t h e  f i r s t  8 months t h a t  I 

s p e n t  t h e r e  a f t e r  my i n i t i a l  i n t e r r o g a t i o n  and s o l i t a r y  c o n f i n e -  

ment,  and when t h e y  had f i n i s h e d  up w i t h  m e ,  I s p e n t  i n  a  6 x 9 

ce l l  w i t h  3 o t h e r  p e o p l e .  So t h e r e  were 4 o f  u s  i n  a 6 x 9 ,  

T h i s  was u n t i l  we moved o u t  t o  Son Tay, 



Okay. L e t  me g i v e  you a  q u i c k  and d i r t y  h i s t o r y  o f  Soa Tay. 

Son Tay was f i l l e d  by Americans i n  3  i n c r e m e n t s ,  s t a r t i n g  on  t h e  

2 4 t h  o f  May 1968,  20 p e o p l e  moved i n t o  o n e  s e c t i o n  o f  t h e  b u i l d -  

i n g .  Our name f o r  that--we named t h a t  b u i l d i n g  t h e  Beer H a l l ,  

no,  e x c u s e  me, t h e  Opium Den. And t h e y  were m o s t l y  i n  o n e s  and 

twos* p it her s a l i t a r y  c o n f i n e m e n t  or two rooms. I t  was a  v e r y  

d a r k ,  d i n g y  p l a c e  w i t h  v e r y  l i t t l e  windows or no  windows a t  a l l .  

N o  v e n t i l a t i o n .  Even up h i g h .  They were m o s t l y  i n  t h e  b l a c k  

e x c e p t  f o r  t h a t  l i g h t  t h a t  was on .  Oh, y e s ,  I f o r g o t  t o  men t ion  

t h a t  e a c h  c e l l  h a s  a t  l eas t  o n e  p e e k h o l e  o p e r a t e d  from t h e  o u t -  

s i d e  so t h a t  t h e  g u a r d  or i n t e r r o g a t o r s  or whoever c o u l d  come up 

and open  it and watch you and  l o o k  a t  you a n y t i m e  t h e y  w a n t . ,  

The second  con t ingen t - -wh ich  I was i n - - c o n s i s t e d  o f  1 7  p e o p l e  

and went  i n  on t h e  1 8 t h  of ~ u l y  1968. We o c c u p i e d  t h e  o t h e r  

s e c t i o n  o f  t h o s e  two b u i l d i n g s  t h a t  were b u t t e d  t o g e t h e r .  The 

real  l o n g  b u i l d i n g  and  o u r  b u i l d i n g  t h a t  w e  c a l l e d  t h e  Beer  H a l l .  

The t h i r d  c o n t i n g e n t  o f  1 3  p e o p l e  moved i n  on  t h e  2 7 t h  o f  

November and f i l l e d  up  t h e  camp t h e n  w i t h  52 p e o p l e .  I t  s t a y e d  

t h a t  way u n t i l  t h e  1 0 t h  o f  December 1 9 6 9  when t h e y  t o o k  1 0  p e o p l e  

o u t - - a l l  t h e  C a t h o l i c s .  It t o o k  u s  a l o n g  time to  come up w i t h  

what was t h e  common f i g u r e - - o r  why d i d  t h e y  move t h o s e  p a r t i c u l a r  

1 0  p e o p l e .  I t  t u r n e d  o u t  t h a t  a l l  1 0  of t h o s e  p e o p l e  were 

C a t h o l i c s  or had p r o f e s s e d  t o  be C a t h o l i c .  One guy  l i e d .  H e  

l i e d  a b o u t  e v e r y t h i n g  to  them--as many p e o p l e  d i d .  And t h e y  t o l d  

him he was a C a t h o l i c  so t h e y  t o o k  him o u t  w i t h  t h e  C a t h o l i c s  and 

t h e y  p u t  1 4  P r o t e s t a n t s  i n  w i t h  t h e  r e s t  o f  u s  P r o t e s t a n t s  and we 



. - 6  

had an  a l l - p r o t e s t a n t  camp, You f i g u r e  t h a t  one. We n e v e r  have 

been  a b l e  to. 

So now w e  are up  to  55 p e o p l e  and i t  s t a y e d  t h a t  way u n t i l  a 

l i t t l e  l a t e r  when t h e y  g o t  t i r e d  o f  t h e  way t h i n g s  were g o i n g .  

They moved o u t  t h e  camp commander a l i t t l e  l a t e r ,  Render C r a y t o n ,  

t h e y  moved him back and w e  dropped a p e r s o n .  Then t h e  man who 

came up to b e  camp commander was a Major H o w i e  Dunn. H e  was 

worse as  f a r  a s  t h e y  c o n s i d e r e d .  They moved him o u t ,  And l a t e r  

t hey  moved i n  one  p e r s o n  and w e  ended up  w i t h  52 people u n t i l  

t h e y  closed t h e  camp o n  t h e  n i g h t  o f  1 4  J u l y  1970--four months 

and s i x  d a y s  b e f o r e  t h e  a r r i v a l  o f  o u r  would-be r e s c u e r s .  

Why d i d  we i e a v e  Son Tay? Tha t  q u e s t i o n  c o n e s  up time and 

t ime  a g a i n .  I n  t h e  book, The Ra id ,  Ben Schemmer m a k e s  a case f o r  

maybe w e  were g o i n g  t o  be f l o o d e d  o u t  by t h e  o~rrrti~h~~Piigeys--~ 
- 

b e l i e v e  was a t  l eas t  o n e  name o f  it. They were s e e d i n g  t h e  

wea the r  c l o u d s  i n  Laos or whereever  it was t h e y  were s e e d i n g  them 

and we were go ing  t o  be f l o o d e d  o u t .  ,me t f u e .  The o t h e r  case 

You may have  h e a r d  o f  was t h a t  we were r u n n i n g  o u t  o f  water. 

H e l l ,  w e  were o u t  o f  water e v e r y  d r y  s e a s o n  and t h e y  would p u t  u s  

down i n  t h e r e  d i g g i n g  o u t  t h e  bottoms o f  t h e  w e l l  u n t i l  we c o u l d  

g e t  down to  where we c o u l d  g e t  a b u c k e t  o f  water to  wash i n  or 

cook i n  and so on.  W e  moved--pure, p l a i n ,  p r e d e t e r m i n e d ,  s t a n -  

d a r d  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  move t o  q u a r t e r s  t h a t  had been  i n  t h e  p l a n -  

n ing  and b u i l d i n g  f o r  u s  f o r  a c o n s i d e r a b l e  p e r i o d  o f  time. It 

was j u s t , ~ o i n c i d e n c e ,  i f  you w i l l ,  and it was o b v i o u s  to  u s  t h a t  

w h i l e  w e  were t h e  f i r s t  o n e s  t o  open Camp F a i t h ,  t h e  Dong h o i  



* - b  M i l i t a r y  Bar racks- -our  name, Camp F a i t h - - t h a t  t h a t  camp was 

d e s i g n e d  and a b u i l d i n g  t6  accommodate 342 p e o p l e .  Which is how 

many p r i s o n e r s  t h e r e  were a l i v e  a f t e r  i n i t i a l  i n t e r r o g a t i o n  up 

to and  i n c l u d i n g  tQe c e s s a t i o n  o f  them bombing i n  t h e  Nor th  i n  

1968--342 o f  u s  had s t a y e d  a l i v e  and were s t i l l  i n  t h e  sys t em.  

And t h a t  was j u s t  a p l a i n  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  move. No u l t e r i o r  

m o t i v e s  wha t soeve r  and no  problem--when I s a y  no  p rob lem,  t h e r e  

was a l w a y s  a  problem w i t h  w a t e r ,  t o o  much or too l i t t l e - - b u t  

t h a t  was n o t  why w e  moved. 

The c o n s e q u e n c e s  o f  t h e  r a i d  were n o t h i n g  b u t  good f o r  us. 
0 

Now d o  I mean t o  say t h a t  t h e  v i e t n a m e s e  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  t r e a t e d  

u s  b e t t e r ?  N o .  But t h e y  a l s o  d i d  n o t  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  t r e a t  u s  

worse. And t h e  main  consequence  o f  t h e  r a i d  was a f t e r  t h e y  

f i n a l l y  f i g u r e d  o u t  t h a t  maybe what t h e y  were a f t e r  was u s ,  t h e y  

took a l l  o f  t h e  POWs s c a t t e r e d  i n  t h e  v a r i o u s  camps a round  ~ i e t -  

nam--North ~ i e t n a m - - a n d  moved them a l l  back t o  Wa Lo ,  which was 

t h e  o l d ,  F r e n c h  maximum-securi ty  p r i s o n  i n  downtown Hanoi.  Our 

name f o r  i t  was t h e  Hanoi H i l t o n .  To u s  t h a t  was t h e  H i l t o n .  I 

know to p e o p l e  back h e r e ,  any  p l a c e  we were was t h e  H i l t o n ,  b u t  

t h i s  was t h e  o n e  we c a l l e d  t h e  ~ i l t o n .  And t h e  o n l y  p l a c e  t h e y  

had t o  p u t  t h a t  many p e o p l e  were i n  b i g ,  open-bay pens .  They 

e v a c u a t e d  them v e r y  q u i c k l y .  A s  a  matter o f  f a c t ,  w e  passed 

some o f  t h e  Vie tnamese  p o l i t i c a l  p r i s o n e r s  t h e y  had .  On t h e i r  

way o u t ,  t h e y  p u t  u s  i n t o  t h e s e  b i g ,  bay  p e n s  w h e r e i n  b e f o r e  we 

had b e e n  i n  i n d i v i d u a l  and s m a l l  rooms. A l a r g e  room b e i n g  4  or 

5 p e o p l e .  Now t h e  e n t i r e  camp o f  Son Tay was i n  o n e  open-bay 

pen ,  a l l  t o g e t h e r .  



N o w ,  I d o n ' t  know i f  you p e o p l e  c a n  u n d e r s t a n d  t h e  t e rm o f  a 

social  o r g y  or not ,  b u t  t h e r e  is s u c h  a t h i n g  and w e  had i t 1  To 

be a b l e  to  g o  up and  s h a k e  t h e  hand,  o r  p a t  soaebody on t h e  back 

o r  see h i s  f a c e  c l e a r l y ,  and  so o n ,  when you had j u s t  been  

l o o k i n g  t h r o u g h  a p e e k h o l e  you d r i l l e d  t h r o u g h  a b r i c k  wall o r  

th rough  a window or a d o o r  f o r  so many y e a r s  t r y i n g  to  p u t  a name 

w i t h  a  f a c e  and t h i s  sort  o f  t h i n g .  And it was l i t e r a l l y  a 

social  o r g y .  N o  bad came t o  u s .  SO i t  was n o t h i n g  b u t  good f o r  

us .  Our morale was up. It took u s  a b o u t  6 days--maybe 5--I 've 

f o r g o t t e n - - b e f o r e  w e  had a good p i c t u r e  o f  what t h e  t h i n g  had 

a c t u a l l y  been .  We g o t  f rom t h e  p o l i t i c a l  p r i s o n e r s - - t h e  V i e t -  

namese p r i s o n e r s  i n  a d j a c e n t  c e l l s  to u s - - t h e i r  l o u d s p e a k e r s  had 

been t e l l i n g  them a b o u t  t h i s  infamous ,  d a s t a r d l y ,  commando a t tack 

42 k i l o m e t e r s  n o r t h w e s t  o f  Hanoi [and  g u e s s  where Son tray was] 

and h a r a n g u e i n g  a t  them, and t h e y  p a s s e d  a l l  t h i s  i n f o r m a t i o n  to  

us. C o v e r t  and c l a n d e s t i n e  communica t ions  i n  t h e r e .  And so we 

knew what  had gone  on.  The n i g h t  o f  t h e  r a i d ,  we . . . 
- - - -  END OF S I D E  5 - - - - - 

. . . POW'S wives ,  I t h i n k  it was p h i 1  ~ u t l e r - i t  d o e s n ' t  

matter-wrote, or s teamed t h e  l a b e l  o f f  a p e a n u t  b u t t e r  jar 

l a b e l ,  p u t  t h e  d e t a i l s  o f  t h e  raid--and when I s a y  t h e  de t a i l s ,  I 

mean i n  g r e a t  d e t a i l ,  almost t h e  whole s t o r y .  She used v e r y  f i n e  

p r i n t  and p u t  almost t h e  whole book, The Ra id ,  o n  t h e  back of a 

p e a n u t  b u t t e r  jar label ,  s t u c k  t h a t  t h i n g  back o n  t h e  jar and 
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Sent  i t  o v e r .  Vietnamese d o n ' t  P i k e  peanut b u t t e r  so they  l e t  i t  

go through1 And you can' t read much on t h e  back o f  one u n t i l  you 

e a t  t h e  peanut b u t t e r ,  and i t  was a l l  t h e r e .  So t h e r e  a r e  t h e  

consequences .  I w i l l  l e a v e  any f u r t h e r  d i s c u s s i o n s  to q u e s t i o n  

and answer which I w i l l  be glad to d o .  
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COLONEL LONG: We have  t i m e  for a few q u e s t i o n s ,  and what I 

would l i k e  t o  do ,  gen t l emen ,  is j u s t  to a s k  you to  s t a y  where 

y o u ' r e  s e a t e d  and w e ' l l  open i t  for q u e s t i o n s  now. So I have 

one--if I may--10 y e a r s  l a t e r ,  w e  seem to  have  f o r g o t t e n  some of 

t h e  l e s s o n s ,  a t  l e a s t  t h e  o p e r a t i o n a l  l e s s o n s  l e a r n e d .  Your 

m i s s i o n  had d i f f i c u l t y  w i t h  i n t e l l i g e n c e .  Ten y e a r s  l a t e r ,  we 

had a l i t t l e  d i f f i c u l t y  w i t h  o p e r a t i o n s  w i t h  a l m o s t  p e r f e c t  

i n t e l l i g e n c e .  One of t h e  f a c t o r s  i n  t h a t  p e r f e c t  i n t e l l i g e n c e  

were e y e s  o n  t h e  ground e a r l y .  I t h i n k  you know a b o u t .  Was 

t h e r e  e v e r  any i n t e n t ,  G e n e r a l   lackb burn--General Manor, to  p u t  

e y e s  on t h e  ground e a r l y  to  d e t e r m i n e  i f  t h e  p r i s o n e r s  were, i n  

f a c t ,  t h e r e ?  

GENERAL BLACKBURN: No, t h e r e  was n o t  because  w e  f e l t  a t  t h e  

t i m e  t h a t  t h i s  was i n i t i a t e d ,  t h a t  t o  t r y  to  p u t  somebody i n  a t  

t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  t i m e  it would t a k e  too much time--in o t h e r  

words--to g e t  a n  a g e n t  i n  t h e r e .  Also, w e  were hav ing  t r o u b l e  

wi th  t h e  U.S. Government. N o w ,  I was runn ing  SOG and w e  were 

t r y i n g  to  p u t  people i n  t h e  North t o  o p e r a t e  on t h e  ground.  I 

c o u l d  never  do t h a t .  I never  p u t  an  American up t h e r e .  Whether 

he was from t h e  boats or i f  w e  dropped them w i t h  Vietnamese. 

Every time we asked a b o u t  p u t t i n g  Americans i n t o  North ~ i e t n a m  

to d o  a n y t h i n g ,  t h e  answer was no. Well, so from t h e  m i l i t a r y  

s i d e ,  w e  d i d  n o t  a t t e m p t  to  d o  it. I asked t h e  Agency if t h e y  

had anyone i n  t h e r e  and t h e y  s a i d  no. So, we f e l t  from what we 

were g e t t i n g  from i n t e l l i g e n c e  and I ' l l  go c a r e f u l  on  t h i s  one- 
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w e  knew from t h e  s y s t e m ,  t h a t  t h e y  were i n  Ap Lo and Son Tay. 

The sys t em t h a t  was work ing  a t  t h e  t i m e .  Based on t h a t  s y s t e m  

t h a t  was working a t  t h e  t i m e ,  t h a k w a s  when w e  d rew down on t h e  

dro.nes-- the 71s--to k e e p  t r a c k  o f  i n d i c a t i o n s  i n  t h o s e  camps of 

what was t r a n s p i r i n g .  We saw t h i n g s  b e g i n n i n g  to  change .  B u t  

h e r e ,  a g a i n ,  we r a n  i n t o  a dilemma b e c a u s e  i f  w e  s t a r t  r u n n i n g  

t h a t  same p a t t e r n  e v e r y  day ,  too many times a d a y ,  a g a i n  we 

would f o r e c a s t  what we were t r y i n g  t o  do so we t r y i n g  to change  

o u r  So t h e  answer  t o  your  q u e s t i o n  now, 

what happened ,  and I t h i n k  t h i s  f o l l o w s  o n ,  t h e  n i g h t  b e f o r e  

Admira l  Moorer was t o  meet w i t h  Mr. L a i r d ,  when t h e  d e c i s i o n  was 

made to  g o  or no  g o ,  t h a t  a f t e r n o o n ,  G e n e r a l  B e n n e t t  of D I A  came 

up--and I t h o u g h t  he  was g o i n g  t o  have apoplexy- - to  my e x e c ,  and 

s a i d ,  " T h e y ' r e  n o t  t h e r e . "  My e x e c  cal led m e  and b e f o r e  f c o u l d  

g e t  i n t o  t h e  n e x t  room, B e n n e t t  was r u n n i n g  down t h e  h a l l  t o  

Moorer.  So I c a u g h t  up w i t h  him as  h e  went i n t o  t h e  s h o p  and he 

s a i d ,  " T h e y ' r e  n o t  t h e r e . "  I s a i d ,  wait a  m i n u t e ,  l e t ' s  take i t  

e a s y  now b e f o r e  we s t a r t  h i t t i n g  t h e  o l d  p a n i c  side. We went  i n  

to see Admira l  Moorer and B e n n e t t  s a id ,  " I t  looks l i k e  t h e y  have  

gone.* Well, I w o n ' t  u s e  t h e  e x p l e t i v e  t h a t  came o u t  o f  Admira l  

Moorer's inouth, b u t  i t  was p r e t t y  d i s c o u r a g i n g  to  him. I s a i d ,  

"How d o  you know? Who to ld  YOU? What ' s  t h e  p r o o f ? "  And he  

s a i d ,  'My peop le . "  Well, w e  had a g r o u p  o f  t h e s e  p e o p l e  t h a t  

knew t h e  s y s t e m  t h a t  were working  i n  t h e  Pen tagon ,  and I s a i d ,  

"How a b o u t  c a l l i n g  down to  t h a t  g r o u p  and t e l l i n g  them t o  s t a y  

t h e r e . "  T h i s  was a b o u t  f i v e  o q c l o c k  i n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n .  I sa id ,  



"I would l i k e  t o  g o  down and t a l k  t o  them and see how t h e y  came 

up w i t h  t h i s  conclusion. .* So I went down and met t h i s  grbup.  

It  must have been a b o u t  1 5  a n a l y s t s .  They were a l l  g e t t i n g  

ready  to  g o  home, and I s a i d ,  *NO,  s i t  still." I s a i d ,  " T e l l  

me how you have been f o l l o w i n g  t h i s  o v e r  t h e s e  las t  w e e k s  and 

months." Well, I must admit it d i d n n  t sound v e r y  c o n v i n c i n g  t o  

m e  t h a t  a l l  o f  t h e  p r i s o n e r s  had been moved. So t h i s  Navy 

c a p t a i n  t h a t  h a s  t h e  g r o u p ,  I s a i d ,  'Now,  tomorrow morning, a t  

s i x  o ' c l o c k ,  I want t o  meet you h e r e  i n  t h i s  o f f i c e  and I am 

going to  a s k  you one  ques t ion- -a re  any of them t h e r e  or have 

t h e y  a l l  been moved?" I s a i d ,  "With t h a t  answer ,  w e  a r e  g o i n g  

to g o  up and see Admiral  Moorer and Lai rd ."  So t h i s  was a b o u t  

f i v e  o r  s i x  o'clock. Well, I g o t  home and t h e  phone was r i n g -  

ing .  Ed Mayer, my d e p u t y ,  was on t h e  o t h e r  end and he s a i d ,  

"Hey, t h o s e  p e o p l e  have a l l  gone home." So, I c a l l e d  up and g o t  

them a l l  rounded back i n t o  t h e  Pentagon.  It was a b o u t  t w e l v e  

o ' c l o c k .  I s a i d ,  m D o  you u n d e r s t a n d  what w e  need f o r  tomorrow 

morning?" So t h e y  s t a r t e d  working a g a i n .  W e l l ,  t h a t  f o l l o w i n g  

morning I went i n  a t  s i x  o'clock and I s a i d r  "Okay, I d o n ' t  want 

any d i s c u s s i o n .  I am go ing  to  a s k  you one  q u e s t i o n .  I want one  

answer. A r e  t h e y  t h e r e  or a r e n 1  t they." W e l l ,  t h e y  s t a r t e d  

e q u i v o c a t i n g .  They w e r e n ' t  c e r t a i n .  So w e  went up to SO(?) t o  

go s e e  t h e  Admiral  now and he was g o i n g  t o  see L a i r d  and t h e y  

were g o i n g  t o  make t h e  d e c i s i o n  today.  So w e  d i d .  Well, he  

e q u i v o c a t e d .  Moorer s a i d ,  " M y  ~ o d ,  where d o  we g o  from here?"  



. c h  ~ e t  me i n j e c t  a n o t h e r  t h o u g h t  i n  h e r e  which,  maybe t h i s  is 

i r r e s p o n s i b l e ,  b u t  I t o l d  him e a r l i e r  t h a t  any  endeavor  t o  m ~ v e  

or d o  a n y t h i n g  i n  Nor th  Vietnam, I had r u n  i n t o  n o t h i n g  b u t  a  

s t o n e  w a l l .  The R u s s i a n s  were c o m p l e t i n g  t h e  h y d r o e l e c t r i c  

s y s t e m  t h a t  would r e e s t a b l i s h  t h e  e l e c t r i c  g r i d  t h a t  went f rom 

Bai Phong t o  Hanoi down to  Vien .  And t h a t  was t o  b e  a c t i v a t e d  

t h i s  summer. Summer o f  70. I f e l t  t h a t  i f  w e  c o u l d  d e m o n s t r a t e  

t h a t  w e  c o u l d  go i n t o  Nor th  Vietnam and  n o t  lose anybody, t h a t  

4 w e  c o u l d  o p e r a t e  up t h e r e ,  t h a t  w e  had i n d u s t r y  t h a t  p r o v i d e d  

t h e  d e v i c e s  and  equipment ,  t h a t  w e  had t h e  c a p a b i l i t y  o f  g o i n g  

i n  t h e r e  and  removing t h e  c a p a b i l i t y - o r  t h e  e lec t r i c  g e n e r a t o r s  

o n  t h a t  dam s i t e .  There  was a v e r y ,  v e r y  t e c h n i c a l  way t o  d o  

i t ,  b u t  f i r s t  we had t o  g e t  t h e  p e r m i s s i o n  to  g o  i n  t h e r e  and d o  

it. I had g i v e n  t h e  P r e s i d e n t - -  t h e  

P re s iden t - -wha t  I c o n s i d e r e d  a 95% c o n f i d e n c e  f a c t o r  t h a t  w e  

c o u l d  g o  i n  t h e r e  and come o u t  w i t h o u t  l o s i n g  a p e r s o n ,  d u e  to  

t h e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  o f  t h e  number o f  Vie tnamese  t r o o p s ,  g u a r d s ,  and  

e v e r y t h i n g  i n  t h e  whole  a r e a .  And so w i t h  t h i s  d e g r e e  o f  c o n f i -  

dence ,  w i t h  t h i s  dam s i t e  b e i n g  comple t ed  and t h i s  e l e c t r i c a l  

g r i d  b e i n g  p u t  back ,  w i t h  t h e  U.S. adamant  a g a i n s t  r e - i n i t i a t i n g  

t h e  bombing, and  i f  i t  was, t h e  f u r o r  i t  would c a u s e  back  h e r e ,  

I f e l t ,  h e r e  a g a i n ,  was a m i s s i o n  you c o u l d  d o  w i t h  a  l i t t l e  b i t  

l e s s  f u e l .  So when we s t a r t e d  d i s c u s s i n g  whe the r  t h e y  were 

t h e r e  or n o t  t h e r e - - t h e s e  two t h i n g s  s t u c k  i n  t h e  back  of my 

mind. I s a i d  t o  , g i v e  u s  more p r o o f  t h a t  some 

o f  them or a l l  o f  them are gone .  And he d i d n ' t  have  it a t  t h a t  
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time. There may be  some l e f t  t h e r e .  Well, t h i s ,  f r a n k l y ,  was a l l  

I needed f o r  t h e  amount .of  c o n f i d e n c e  f a c t o r  I had i n  t h e s e  p e o p l e  

and LeRoy Manor d i d n l  t know t h i s .  so w i t h  t h i s ,  Admiral Moorer 

went up to S e c r e t a r y  L a i r d  and t h e y  d i s c u s s e d  i t  up t h e r e .  And 

t h e  sum of  t h e  s u b s t a n c e  was t h a t  if we d i d n ' t  d o  it now, w e  would 

never  be  a b l e  t o  p u l l  t h i s  t h i n g  t o g e t h e r  l a t e r  on. L e t ' s  g o  f o r  

it. It was a v e r y ,  v e r y  s . That  summer t h e  

f o c u s  went . Fur the rmore ,  some o f  t h e  psychologi -  

c a l  impact  t h a t  I was t a l k i n g  a b o u t  e a r l i e r  was a g a i n  to l e t  t h e s e  

guys o u t  t h e r e  know t h a t  somebody needed them. 

So t h i s  was a very ,  v e r y ,  v e r y  tough d e c i s i o n  to  make ,  I'll admi t .  

And to  be  c e n s u r e d  f o r  i t ,  1'11 a c c e p t  i t ,  I approved i t ,  I 

a c c e p t  it. Because t h a t  is how it stood when L a i r d  made t h e  

d e c i s i o n .  T h i s  was t a k e n  to  t h e  White House, and when Nixon s a i d ,  

"GO," t h e y  were o f f .  D o  you have a q u e s t i o n ,  s i r ?  

QUESTION: S i r ,  it was b r i e f e d  t h a t  t h e  Commanders o f  MAC and 

TAC were b r o u g h t  i n  on  t h e  o p e r a t i o n .  I've s e e n  it w r i t t e n  t h a t  

t h e  commander o f  SAC d i d  n o t  know o f  t h e  o p e r a t i o n ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  t h e  

q u a l i t y  of t h e  overhead  coverage  t h a t  you g o t  was poor because  

t h e y  had a n  a r e a  requ i rement  r a t h e r  t h a n  a p i n p o i n t  r equ i rement .  

Would t h a t  have a i d e d  i n  v e r i f i c a t i o n  of t h e  p r i s o n ?  

ANSWER: GENERAL BLACKBURN: Well, I would s a y  t h a t  when w e  

were b a t t l i n g  i t  from o u r  shop  f o r  ope r a t i o n a l  

s t a f f ,  o u r  i n t e l l i g e n c e  p e o p l e  from NSA on down, f e l t  t h a t  w e  were 
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g e t t i n g  what we wanted.  And t h e  r e c o n  p e o p l e  t h a t  were i n  t h e  

Pen tagon ,  t h e y  wefe s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  t h e  r e s u l t s .  

GENERAL MANOR: A s  a matter o f  f a c t ,  we were g e t t i n g  e x c e l -  

l e n t  SR-71 c o v e r a g e .  We were g e t t i n g  e x a c t l y  what we a s k e d  

f o r .  B u f f a l o  Hunter  we c o u l d  g e t  a n y t i m e  w e  wanted e x c e p t  t h a t  

W e  were l e e r y  o f  u s i n g  i t  too o f t e n  b e c a u s e  o f  g i v i n g  away o u r  

i n t e n t i o n s .  The w e e k  t h e y  s p l i t  t h e  camp, w e  d i d n ' t  u s e  B u f f a l o  

Hun te r .  B u t ,  you s e e ,  some o f  o u r  B u f f a l o  Hunter  m i s s i o n s  d i d  

n o t  p r o d u c e  t h e  r e s u l t s . b e c a u s e  t h e  d r o n e  was s h o t  down b e f o r e  

it  c o u l d  be  r e c o v e r e d .  So w e  d i d n ' t  a l w a y s  r e a p  t h e  b e n e f i t s  

from them. There  was a m i s s i o n  f lown  t h e  v e r y  d a y  ouE o p e r a t i o n  

t o o k  p l a c e .  Tha t  n i g h t ,  I g o t  a  d e b r i e f i n g  by t e l e p h o n e  from 

A r t  A n d r a d i s ( s p )  , who was a t  t h a t  time where t h e  a i r p l a n e  

l a n d e d ,  a t  . And he c a l l e d  and gave  

me a b r i e f i n g .  A t  any  r a t e ,  I had e v e r y  c o n f i d e n c e  t h a t  e v e r y -  

t h i n g  was no rma l .  The t i m e  t h a t  t h i s  o c c u r r e d  i n  t h e  Pen tagon ,  

as  G e n e r a l  B l a c k b u r n  r e f e r r e d  t o  e a r l i e r ,  I had a l r e a d y  r e c e i v e d  

what w e  c a l l e d  a  'Red Rocket"  message.  W e  had a g r e e n  l i g h t  to  

g o  t o  T a k h l i .  And I w a s n ' t  aware  o f  a n y  o f  t h i s  g o i n g  on. ~ n d  

I am g l a d  t h a t  I w a s n ' t .  I t  would have  been some th ing  e l se  f o r  

m e  t o  have been c o n c e r n e d  w i t h .  I am s u r e  g l a d  t h a t  i t  happened 

t h e  way t h a t  i t  d i d .  Because  o t h e r w i s e  i t  w o u l d n ' t  have  gone  so 

w e l l .  While  I ' m  o n  my f e e t ,  I ' d  l i k e  to  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  t h i s  

b r i n g s  o u t ,  I t h i n k ,  a v e r y  i m p o r t a n t  r e q u i r e m e n t  t h a t  you 

p e o p l e  have--and t h a t  i s  human i n t e l l i g e n c e .  You c a n ' t  do 
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w i t h o u t  it. You have  g o t  to have human i n t e l l i g e n c e .  We d i d n ' t  

h a v e  it, and I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h e r e  was any way we cou ld  have  g o t -  

t e n  i t  i n  t h a t  s h o r t  p e r i o d  o f  time t h a t  w e  had. But t o d a y ,  w e  

ough t  t o  be p l a n n i n g  t o  have  p rov ided  to  u s  t h a t  so r t  o f  i n t e l -  

l i g e n c e .  We have t o  have  o p e r a t i v e s  i n  v a r i o u s  p a r t s  o f  t h e  

world--people we can depend on. T h i s  h a s  g o t  to be reestab- 

l i s h e d .  I f  i t  e v e r  was. I f i g u r e  it was a t  one  time 

. It went away. It o u g h t  to  be b r o u g h t  back and 

I hope it  is. We r e a l l y  need t h a t .  

GENERAL BLACKBURN: I would l i k e  t o  add something to  what he 

is s a y i n g ,  a g a i n ,  on  t h e  i n t e l l i g e n c e  p i c t u r e .  You see, i n  t h e  

6 4 ,  o r ,  70 t imeframe,  or e a r l i e r  i n  t h e  68 timeframe, 

teams had been dropped i n t o  t h e  North.  I p u t  some of  them i n  

t h e r e .  W e  d i d n '  t p u t  a n  American i n  t h e r e ,  o f  c o u r s e ,  j u s t  

c o u l d  n o t  p u t  them i n  t h e r e .  ' Supposedly h i g h l y  t r a i n e d  teams. 

I t  was a  f o o l i s h  v e n t u r e  t h a t  we were e x e c u t i n g .  W e  'had t aken  

t h i s  m i s s i o n  o v e r  f row some o t h e r  peop le .  But  you cou ldn '  t g e t  

a n y t h i n g  r e a l l y  r e l i a b l e  back from them. And t h i s  is why, when 

i n  6 5 ,  MacNamara f i n a l l y  ag reed  t o  l e t  u s  p u t  Americans--two 

Americans or t h r e e  Americans w i t h  8 or 9 vietnamese-put  them i n  

Cross Boar,  w e  were d e m o n s t r a t i n g  t h a t  t h i s  c o u l d  work because  

the No Chi ~ i n h  T r a i l  was p r e t t y  chopped up  by t h e  1st ~ i v i s i o n  

and we c o u l d  s t i l l  work o v e r  t h e r e .  The n e x t  move was to  s a y ,  

*Okay, i f  w e  c o u l d  o p e r a t e  C r o s s  Boar i n  Laos,  how a b o u t  

o p e r a t i n g  o u t  o f  Makhom Phanom and p u t  teams o v e r  i n  t h e  
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p a n h a n d l e  o v e r  i n  Nor th  Vietnam? Same i n s t r u c t i o n .  For t h e  

Americans--no way. So t h e n  we a t tempted- -asked- - tha t  t h e s e  PT 

b o a t s  t h a t  w e  were s h o o t i n g  up a s  Ear a s  Hai Phong [crews, 

eve rybody ,  were Vie tnamese]  we wanted to  p u t  some SEALS and 

o t h e r  p e o p l e  o n  t h o s e  b o a t s  when t h e y  went n o r t h .   gain, t h e  

p i n t  c o l l e c t i n g  i n t e l l i g e n c e ,  p r i m a r i l y ,  N o  way. So e v e r y -  

where you would t u r n ,  you were b l a c k e d  i n  t h i s .  And b e l i e v e  i t  

or n o t ,  H U M I N T  i s  a v e r y  t ime-consuming problem t o  d e v e l o p  i t  

p r o p e r l y ,  You c a n ' t  j u s t  a l l  o f  a sudden  d e c i d e  t o  d e v e l o p  an 

a g e n t ,  I t  t a k e s  a l o t  o f  time, and I j u s t  d i d n ' t  t h i n k  we had 

t h e  t i m e .  T h a t ' s  a l o n g  s t o r y .  

QUESTION: C o l o n e l  D u t t o n ,  how l o n g  d i d  it t a k e  b e f o r e  t h e  

POWs found  o u t  a b o u t  t h e  r a i d ,  How d i d  t h e y  f i n d  o u t  a b o u t  i t  

and what was t h e  e f f e c t ?  

ANSWER: COLONEL BUTTON: The n i g h t  o f  t h e  r a id ,  t h e r e  was 

a h e l l  o f  a r u c k u s ,  We knew there was some th ing  g o i n g  on.  Very 

u n u s u a l ,  and t h a t  was p a r t i c u l a r l y  f rom t h e  crews £rod t h e  p r e -  

v i o u s  Son Tay camp--where w e  were now a t  Camp F a i t h ,  t h e  Dong 

Hoi M i l i t a r y  Barrackso-we s a i d ,  "I wonder i f  . . .a But i t  was 

l i k e  I s a y ,  one  of s e v e r a l  "I wonder i f ' s m  and "But maybe i ts," 

you know, I would s a y  5 n i g h t s  l a t e r  or 4 n i g h t s  l a t e r ,  t h e y  

moved u s  back t o  Hanoi.  They took u s  o n e  night--maybe two, I ' v e  

f o r g o t t e n - - b e f o r e  we e s t a b l i s h e d  good c o n t a c t ,  c o v e r t  c o n t a c t  

w i t h  t h e  a d j o i n i n g  ce l l s  w i t h  t h e  p o l i t i c a l  v i e t n a m e s e  p r i s o n e r s  
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i n  t h e r e .  They had been  h e a r i n g  o n  t h e i r  l o u d s p e a k e r s  a b o u t  

t h i s  d a s t a r d l y  commando a t t a c k  42 k i l o m e t e r s  n o r t h w e s t ,  So t h a t  

was when w e  knew a b o u t  i t  f o r  s u r e .  

QUESTION: And t hen ?  Did you f e e l  bet ter?  

ANSWER: COLONEL DUTTON: Great! From o u r  s t andpo in t - -you  

see, I ' v e  a l r e a d y  b r i e f e d  t h i s  . . . 

QUESTION: Any downside?  

ANSWER: COLONEL DUTTON: N o ,  N e g a t i v e  downs ide  a t  a l l .  

The Vie tnamese  d i d  n o t  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  t r ea t  u s  be t ter ,  They were 

f o r c e d  i n t o  d o i n g  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  were to  o u r  b e n e f i t ,  l i k e  t h e y  

p u t  u s  back  i n t o  a b i g  room where  w e  c o u l d  g e t  t o g e t h e r  i n s t e a d  

of b e i n g  i n  o n e s  a n d  twos a n d  t h r e e s .  Now w e  were i n  o n e  room 

w i t h  52 p e o p l e .  A 1 1  o f  Son Tay is now a squadron .  T h i s  is,  by 

t h e  way, when t h e  4 t h  A l l i e d  POW Wing was e s t a b l i s h e d  was a f t e r  

t h e y  movad a l l  342  o f  u s  back i n t o  Wa to and  p u t  u s  i n  t h e  

v a r i o u s  rooms i n  t h e r e  and  formed t h e  wing,  t h e  wing commander, 

t h e  wing s t a f f ,  a l l  t h e  wing s t a f f  d i r e c t i v e s  t h a t  had to  be 

memorized, t h e  s q u a d r o n s ,  the  s q u a d r o n  leaders, a n d  t h a t  whole  

POW--both c o v e r t  a n d  o v e r t  o r g a n i z a t i o n .  And it was n o t h i n g  b u t  

b e n e f i c i a l ,  They n e v e r  took i t  o u t  o n  u s ,  So it was a l l  to  o u r  

b e n e f i t ,  p l u s  o u r  morale was way up. Noth ing  b u t  good. 
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QUESTION: Yes. You alluded to some friction and some turf 

issues, I think, General Blackburn--some early-on problems. I 

lust want to ask a question, General Manor was selected as the 

task force commander and it is interesting that you had an avia- 

tion package that cut across the entire Air Force--what were the 

politics or the friction points in selection of which Service 

was going to pcovide the Task Force Commander, number I; and 

number 2, General Manor, do you think that had we not had an Air 

Force Task Force Commander that the Service components would 

have provided the same level of enthusiasm for it? 

ANSWER: GENERAL BLACKBURN: Well, this is a very over- 

simplified problem because when the point was raised who was 

going to command this [as a matter of fact, I raised it because 

I figured I would] the Chairman and the Directors said, "Just 

come off it, no way, Jose, you are going to play the politics." 

And so I said, "Well, we have got to settle on this and so 

General Daugherty, DCSOPS of the Air Force, and ~tilwell was 

there, then he said, -"Well, you have been down talking with 

Simons and the commanders down at EgLin and a11 this--if we 

run it at Bragg it is going to be Army, if we run it at the 

Air Force facility--," It wasn't a personality thing at the 

time, he was running special ops there and Simons had been in 

special ops. So, okay, if its not going to be Blackburn running 
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it, j u s t  f l i p  t k , , , c o i n  as  to  where  w in- 

w"+c- ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ * * w  qy k , , * * ' 

t n ~ a ~ ~ n d  t h i s  is e x a c t l y  how it happened. I t  was t h a t  s i m p l e .  
u" 

There  no  argument  on  it a t  a l l ,  Kind o f  a c r a z y  way to  g e t  

s e l e c t e d ,  b u t  it was b e t t e r  t h a n  g e t t i n g  i n t o  a h a s s l e .  

ANSWER: GENERAL MANOR: The o t h e r  p a r t  o f  your  q u e s t i o n  

was would t h e  A i r  F o r c e  s u p p o r t  had been  t h e  sane i f  I had n o t  

been a n  A i r  F o r c e  commander. I hope so. I hope i t  would n o t  

have been  d i f f e r e n t .  My f i r m  b e l i e f  h a s  a lways  been t h a t  f o r  an  

o p e r a t i o n  a t  t h a t  t ime--for  almost a n y  o p e r a t i o n - - r e a l l y ,  t h e  

c o l o r  o f  t h e  un i fo rm t h e  p e r s o n  is wear ing  a t  t h e  commander l e v e l  

r e a l l y  s h o u l d n ' t  m a t t e r  b e c a u s e  we a r e  i n v b l v e d  i n  j o i n t  ope ra -  

t i o n s ,  We know t h a t  w e  are g o i n g  to--or a t  l eas t ,  w e  s h o u l d  be 

t h i n k i n g  t h a t  way-that t h i s  k i n d  o f  o p e r a t i o n  must  u s e  t h e  

i n h e r e n t  capabi l i t ies  o f  wha teve r  se rv ice -o f  a l l  t h e  S e r v i c e s ,  

And for  t h a t  r e a s o n ,  I b e l i e v e  t h a t  a n  A i r  F o r c e  commander , a n  

Army commander, Navy--although t h e  Navy d i d n ' t  p l a y  a b i g  role i n  

t h i s  one  e x c e p t  f o r  t h a t  d i v e r s i o n a r y  r a i d  which was v e r y  impor- 

t a n t ,  b u t  I t h i n k  t h a t  b e c a u s e  of t h e  way t h i s  o p e r a t i o n  was r u n ,  

it c o u l d  have  been  e i t h e r  Army or ~ i r  F o r c e .  I t  c o u l d  have  been  

e i t h e r  o n e . '  I would hope t h e  S e r v i c e s  would p r o v i d e  t h e  k i n d  of 

s u p p o r t  t h a t  was needed r e g a r d l e s s  o f  who t h e  coramander is. The 

commander r e a l l y  s h o u l d  be a p u r p l e - s u i t e r .  I b e l i e v e  t h a t  a 

command s u c h  a s  t h i s ,  f o r  example ,  c o u l d  b e  A i r  F o r c e  ~ o m a n d e d  

or c o u l d  be Army commanded. I t  is Army commanded, But I t h i n k  

we have  to  t h i n k  t h a t  way--real ly  j o i n t .  sometimes I am a l i t t l e  



& - 
C 1.1. 

conce rned  t h a t  maybe t h e  S e r v i c e s  a r e n ' t  b e h i n d  a11 o f  t h i s  a s  

much a s  t h e y  o u g h t  t o  be .  I s h o u l d  have  p o i n t e d  o u t  v e r y  e a r l y  

c h i a l  p rob lems  when we were working on  t h e  Son Tay p l a n n i n g ,  

t r a i n i n g ,  or e x e c u t i o n ,  t o  my knowledge. Are you aware  o f  any? 

GENERAL BLACKBURN: I would l i k e  t o  s a y  th i s - - and  I ' m  n o t  t r y i n g  

to g e t  a  f r e e  d r i n k  o u t  o f  him t o n i g h t ,  b u t  I t h i n k  t h e  d e c i s i o n  

to have  LeRoy command t h a t  t h i n g  t u r n e d  o u t  t o  be a v e r y  wise 

d e c i s i o n  b e c a u s e  t h e  d e l i v e r y  c a p a b i l i t y  i n  h e r e  was e x t r e m e l y  

i m p o r t a n t ,  and a s  you c a n  see from t h e s e  c h a r t s ,  my God, w e  

t a c k l e d  t h e  A i r  F o r c e  a l l  o v e r  t h e  world to  g e t  t h i s  c a p a b i l i t y  

t o g e t h e r  t o  move t h i s  team i n  t h e r e .  And I h o n e s t l y  f e e l  t h a t  i t  

was a wise d e c i s i o n  t o  p u t  t h e  ~ i r  F o r c e  i n  command o f  it a t  t h e  

time. I'll s a y  a g a i n ,  a n o t h e r  t h i n g  f o r  your  c o n s i d e r a t i o n ,  i f  a t  

t h a t  time w e  had had  Range r s  , -.+wa~&&~haveAAp~C*fi""e~?I?"ed &%n4 R h i j e r  s 

t h a t ,  : n*i'*gr,f ' $.ali&*ki** ,' them* 4 

t h e  s p e c i a l  f o r c e s  c o u l d n ' t  do t h e  j o b ,  b u t  t h i n k i n g  down t h e  

l i n e ,  now, which you p e o p l e  have  to  t h i n k  a b o u t ,  o n  t h e s e  d i r e c t  

a c t i o n s ,  I h o n e s t l y  f e e l  t h a t  t h i s  type.-of-. t h h p i w  tlrot&'d!SCting 

to,- t h_c;- 
+wy w k  "-2 .& ap&t~ak"-.::2& 8. The r e s u l t s  o f  i t  is p r o o f  o f  

what I s a y ,  b u t  I t h i n k  t h e  Rangers  c o u l d  have  done  i t  j u s t  as  

well. 

QUESTION: What happened t o  Ap Lo? 

it a p p e a r e d  t o  be l i k e ,  because o f  t h e  way t h a t  t h i s  
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t h a n  I r a n .  ' h i t  Son Tay and Ap Lo 

t o g e t h e r ,  b u t  Ap Lo j u s t  d r o p s  o u t  o f  t h e  p i c t u r e .  

ANSWER: : That  is correct b e c a u s e  w e  

d i d  g e t  i n t e l l i g e n c e  t h a t  as Ear a s  w e  were c o n c e r n e d ,  it had 

been abandoned. 

: W e  t h o u g h t  maybe t h e y  had 

moved them o v e r  to  Son Tay b e c a u s e  i t  w a s n ' t  v e r y  f a r .  W e  

d ropped i t  v e r y  s h o r t l y  a f t e r .  

QUESTION: Was t h e r e  a n y t h i n g  t h a t  came o u t  a f t e r  t h a t  

i n d i c a t e d  t h e y  s t i l l  had p r i s o n e r s  a t  t h a t  camp? 

ANSWER: : NO. 

QUESTION: Why didn't- id you t h i n k  o f  g o i n g  p r e t t y  low 

l e v e l  a f t e r  it? Of t r y i n g  to  sor t  o f  b u r y  t h e  whole o p e r a t i o n  

a f t e r  t h e  f a c t  r a t h e r  t h a n  hav ing  t h e  p u b l i c i t y  a b o u t  it? 

ANSWER: GENERAL BLACKBURN: Well, as  I n e n t i o n e d  ea r l i e r ,  

t h i s  is o n e  o f  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  I f e l t - - p r e v e n t i v e  a c t i o n s  w e  

shou ld  have  t a k e n  and  wanted t o  g e t  t h e  p u b l i c  r e l a t i o n s  press 

r e l e a s e s  a l l  n a i l e d  down. "oh,  we ' l l  take care o f  t h a t . "  And I 

just d i d  n o t  get  t h i s  done .  And f u r t h e r m o r e ,  t h e r e  was t h e  

p s y c h o l o g i c a l  impact 
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and t h e r e  is a f u l l  C o n g r e s s i o n a l  copy  of t h e  C o n g r e s s i o n a l  

Record t h a t  s o r t  o f  b e a r s  o u t  t h a t  had w e  d o n e  t h i s ,  w e  would 

h a v e  min imized  t h e  c r i t i c i s m  t h a t  went  o n .  Bu t  t h i s  is o n e  of 

t h e  t h i n g s  w e  were s tumped  o n .  

GENERAL MANOR: Let m e  comment o n  how t h i s  d e v e l o p e d .  On 

t h e  same d a y  t h a t ,  well .  on i t  was on November 23d,  Admi ra l  

Moorer c a l l e d  and s a i d  t h a t  be  wanted  Simons and  I back  i n  

Washing ton  a s  q u i c k l y  a s  p o s s i b l e  b e c a u s e  t h e r e  were a l o t  o f  

q u e s t i o n s  b e i n g  a s k e d  t h a t  t h e y  t ~ o u g h t  we had t h e  a n s w e r s  to  

b e c a u s e  we were o n  t h e  s c e n e .  ~ h ,  r e a s o n  t h a t  some o f  t h i s  had 

h i t  t h e  p r e s s ,  t h e  N o r t h  V ie tnamese  announced  a f t e r  i t  had 

happened t h a t  w e  had  bombed POW camps.  W e l l ,  t h a t  wasn'  t t r u e ,  

w e  h a d n ' t  bombed POW camps ,  b u t  i t  w a s n ' t  u n u s u a l  f o r  t h e  Nor th  

V ie tnamese  to  t e l l  s o m e t h i n g  t h a t  w a s n ' t  t r u e !  So w e  go tL& 

t o  t a k e  u s  t o  S a i g o n  and  w e  g o t  su t h e  f i r s t  Pan American f l i g h t  

o u t  o f  S a i g o n .  . W e  

s t o p p e d  and had a v i s i t  and b r e a k f a s t  w i t h  ~ d m i r a l  ~ c ~ a i n  on t h e  

way i n ,  and  h e  c a n c e l l e d  o u r  a i r l i n e  t i c k e t s  and p u t  u s  o n  o n e  

o f  h i s  t r a n s p o r t  a i r c r a f t  and  p u t  u s  t h r o u g h  to  . We 

m e t  e a r l y  i n  t h e  morn ing- -aga in ,  i t  was a b r e a k f a s t  meeting--  

w i t h  S e c r e t a r y  L a i r d ,  Admi ra l  Moorer, Don , Mr. 

P a c k a r d ,  a whole  bunch . And w h i l e  we 

d i s c u s s e d  what  happened  and  what  s h o u l d  w e  d o  now--should w e  g o  

p u b l i c  w i t h  t h i s .  -- p u b l i c  . Well, 
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L1 a) t h e  p rob lems  t h a t  I c o u l d  see was t h a t  i f  we d i d n '  t d g  t h a t ,  we 

c o u l d n ' t  k e e p  a wrap o n . a l l  t h e  p e o p l e  i n  t h e  whole f o r c e .  It 

was g o i n g  t o  come o u t  i n  b i t s  and  pieces and  it was g o i n g  to be 

i n a c c u r a t e  and  it was p r o b a b l y  g o i n g  t o  be a much b i g g e r  problem 

t h a n  t h e  p r e s e n t  . 
And t h a t  was where t h e  d e c i s i o n  was made--at t h a t  breakfast  

mee t ing .  Then t h e y  c a l l e d  f o r  a  press c o n f e r e n c e  t h a t  t o o k  

p l a c e  l a t e r  t h a t  a f t e r n o o n .  W e  had a p r e s s  c o n f e r e n c e  and t h a t  

was when, o f  c o u r s e ,  w e  t o l d  t h e  p u b l i c  what w e  d i d - - t h a t  was 

u n c l a s s i f i e d .  Then immedia t e ly  a f t e r  t h e  p r e s s  c o n f e r e n c e  we 

went to  t h e  Whi te  House and b r i e f e d  t h e  P r e s i d e n t  o n  what had 

happened.  W e  had t o  f a c e  up  t o  it. I t h i n k  t h a t  was t h e  b e s t  

way t o  d o  it. I f  w e  had t r i e d  to c o v e r  t h a t  up I t h i n k  we would 

have ended  up w i t h  some o t h e r  problem b e c a u s e  it would have  come 

o u t .  

QUESTION: I was j u s t  g o i n g  t o  comment t h a t  I was o v e r  t h e r e  

a t  t h a t  time and e v e n  though  i t  came up n e g a t i v e ,  t h e  t h o u g h t  

t h a t  somebody would g o  a f t e r  them was w e l l  wor th  t h e  t h o u g h t .  

I f  anybody had  c o v e r e d  t h a t  up ,  well, it would have  a f f e c t e d  t h e  

res t  o f  t h e  combat  f o r c e s .  

ANSWER: GENERAL BLACKBURN: Well, if  I had t o  d o  i t  

a g a i n ,  I would do it t h e  same way. I have  n o  r e g r e t s  f o r  d o i n g  

it and  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  LeRoy has ,  e i t h e r .  It was a good s h o t .  A 

good c h a n c e .  Bad l u c k .  
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COLONEL LONG: Gentlemen, on behalf sf our CINCB General 

Lindsay, and our component commanders and our staff, we really 

&ppreciate what you have done and the insights you have given 

[as. Thank you very much. 


